
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Phil Garnett (0113 
39 51632) 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Friday, 20th September, 2013 
at 2.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

P Grahame 
N Taggart 
T Hanley 
G Hussain (Chair) 
E Taylor 
J Illingworth 
J Hardy 
 

J Bentley 
 

C Fox 
R Wood 
 

R Finnigan 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).  
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration  
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS’ 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 10TH JULY 2013 
 
To confirm as correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 10th July 2013. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  DECISION MAKING FRAMEWORK; ANNUAL 
ASSURANCE REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the City Solicitor which is the 
annual report to the committee concerning the 
Council’s decision making arrangements. The 
report brings together arrangements for planning 
and licensing matters together with all other 
decisions taken by officers. 
 

7 - 34 

8   
 

  ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT ON RISK & 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
To receive a report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
providing the Committee with assurances on the 
strength of the Council’s risk and performance 
management arrangements. 
 

35 - 
42 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  ANNUAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
(INCORPORATING CAPITAL) 
 
To receive a report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
This report outlines the key systems and 
procedures which are in place to deliver such 
arrangements whilst ensuring the maintenance of 
adequate reserves. The report covers in detail the 
key components of the Council’s financial 
management arrangements and aims to give 
members assurance that these systems and 
procedures are fit for purpose, up to date, 
embedded and being complied with. 
 

43 - 
60 

10   
 

  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
providing a summary of internal audit activity for 
the period 1st July to 31st August 2013 and 
highlighting the incidence of any significant control 
failings or weaknesses. 
 

61 - 
82 

11   
 

  REPORT ON THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER 
2012/13 
 
To receive a report of the Chief Officer (Customer 
Access) which discusses the LGO’s Annual 
Review Letter to the Council, summarises the 
Council’s complaints and LGO cases for the period 
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and to assess the 
overall effectiveness of the Council’s approach to 
complaints. 
 

83 - 
100 

12   
 

  AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND 
THE VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT 
2012/13 
 
To receive a report submitted by the Deputy Chief 
Executive. The Committee agreed to release the 
unaudited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts for 
public inspection on the 10th July 2013. Under the 
Committee’s terms of reference, Members are now 
required to approve the Council’s final audited 
Statement of Accounts and consider any material 
amendments recommended by the auditors. 
 

101 - 
124 



 

E 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

13   
 

  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
To receive a report of the City Solicitor presenting 
the Annual Governance Statement to the 
Committee for approval.   
 

125 - 
140 

14   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report of the City Solicitor notifying 
and inviting comment from the Committee on the 
work programme. 
 

141 - 
144 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2013 

 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Wednesday, 10th July, 2013 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor G Hussain in the Chair 

 Councillors P Grahame, T Hanley, C Fox, 
E Taylor, J Bentley, J Hardy, N Walshaw 
(as substitute for N Taggart) and 
B Anderson (as substitute for R Wood) 
 

  
 

Apologies Councillors N Taggart, R Wood and 
J Illingworth 
 

 
 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed councillors and officers to the first meeting of the 
Committee in the new Municipal Year. 
 

2 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents  
 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents. 
 

3 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

There were no resolutions to exclude the public. 
 

4 Late Items  
 

There were no late items submitted to the agenda.  
 

5 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests’  
 

No declarations were made. 
 

6 Apologies For Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received form Councillors E Taylor N Taggart and 
R Wood.  In reporting Councillor Taggart’s absence the chair wished to 
convey the committee’s best wishes for a speedy recovery. 
 

7 Minutes of the Meeting held on 22nd April 2013  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 22nd April 2013 were approved as a 
correct record. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2013 

 

8 Matters Arising  
 

Minute No. 60 Calderdale Shared Services Agreement  
 
With regards to this item it was confirmed by the Head of Governance  
Services that a report will be brought back to the Committee in November 
following a report which is being received by the Executive Board on the 
Calderdale Shared Services Agreement. 
 
Minute No.61 Business Continuity Arrangements for LCC’s most critical 
Services  
 
The Head of Governance Services confirmed that the Chief Officer (Audit and 
Investment) had relayed the Committee’s concerns, about Business 
Continuity Plans currently not being in place for all business critical services to 
the Director of Resources. 
 

9 Update regarding progress with the development of Business Continuity 
Plans for LCC's most critical services.  

 
The Business Continuity Programme Manager provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress made towards completing the outstanding 
Business Continuity Plans for the Council’s most critical services. 
 
Members re-iterated that they had been disappointed with the number of 
Business Continuity Plans completed in April and that, whilst considerable 
progress had been made the remaining 26 plans that were still to be 
completed was unsatisfactory. 
 
Members agreed that they wished to see all Business Continuity Plans 
completed by the end of September in time for a further update report to the 
Committee at its November meeting. 
 
RESOLVED - The Committee resolved to: 
 
(a) note that progress with the development of Business Continuity Plans 
for the Council’s most critical services is being made with all directorates in 
order to meet the statutory duties required of the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004; and 
 
(b) request a report to November’s meeting informing the Committee 
whether the completion of all outstanding Business Continuity Plans for the 
most critical services have been completed.  
 

10 KPMG Interim Audit Report  
 

The Principal Audit Manager form KPMG presented a report which identified 
the findings from KPMG’s interim audit work in relation to the 2012/13 
financial statements and the initial work undertaken to support their 2012/13 
VFM conclusion. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2013 

 

 
It was noted by the Committee that in previous years substantial audit reports 
have been received which have set out the extent of KPMG’s work with 
assurances provided to Members. In light of this Members questioned the 
KPMG representative whether all the work identified in their audit plan had 
been completed. It was confirmed to the Committee that all work had been 
completed. 
 
KMPG outsourcing work to India was raised by the Committee, specifically in 
relation to the security and storage of data. Members were also keen to 
ensure KPMG contributed to job prospects for local people. 
 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note: 
 
(a) the positive assurances provided by KPMG on the systems and 

controls which underpin the Council’s financial statements; and 
(b) that no significant issues had been identified by KPMG during the year. 
(c) KPMG’s opinion that Internal Audit are fully compliant with the “The 

Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government” and that fully 
reliance can be placed on their work. 

 
11 The Statement of Accounts 2012/13  
 

The Principal Finance Manager presented a report which presented the 
2012/13 Statement of Accounts prior to them being made available for public 
inspection. It was confirmed to the Committee that the Director of Resources 
had reviewed the accounts and signed them as a true and fair view of the 
Council’s financial position. 
 
Members raised a number of questions on the accounts, specifically in 
relation to a £1.6m grant re-fund from 2011/12 and the level of reserves held 
by schools.   
 
Members also gave consideration to the contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets of the Council. 
 
 
Members also commented on the significant fall in the net worth of the 
Council as recognised by the Council’s balance sheet. However assurance 
was provided by the Principal Finance Manager, that if market value, rather 
than social value, was applied to the Council’s housing stock, and if 
infrastructure was also to be included at full value, then this would significantly 
enhance the Council’s balance sheet. It was however recognised that the 
Council’s balance sheet contained some significant liabilities, notably in 
relation to pensions and debt. These liabilities are carefully monitored to 
ensure they are effectively managed. In particular it was noted that the 
Council’s actuaries estimated that the pension liabilities are currently over 
90% funded and are expected to reduce under planned changes to the 
scheme. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2013 

 

 
 
It was noted by the Committee that although the Council does have significant 
debt expenditure, the cost of servicing this debt amounted to only 6% of the 
Council’s spend which compared well to comparable organisations of the 
Council’s size. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
 
(a) to note the contents of this report; and 
(b) agree to release the accounts for public inspection. 
 

12 Internal Audit Annual Report  
 

Head of Internal Audit presented a report which brought to the attention of the 
Committee the basis of the Internal Audit Assurance for 2012/13. 
 
Members discussed the report commenting on the administration of 
community centres and discussing whether they give value for money when 
booking them for events. 
 
Members also considered the positives and negatives of framework contracts 
and that on occasion certain items were available more cheaply when 
purchased outside a framework contract. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit welcomed suggestions from Members of areas of 
the authority to review. 
 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to receive the Internal Audit Annual 
report 2012/13 and note the assurances given. 
 

13 Internal Audit Quarterly Report 1st April to 30th June 2013  
 

The Head of Internal Audit presented a report which provided a summary of 
Internal Audit Activity for the period 1st October to 30th November 2012 and 
highlighted the incidence of any significant control failings or weaknesses.  
 
The proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 was also included as part of this 
report and has been challenged and agreed by the Director of Resources. 
 
Members asked questioned about the role of Internal Audit in relation to 
Business Continuity Planning and were informed that the service is subject to 
routine audit. 
 
The role of Internal Audit with regards to the new combined authority and the 
LEP was discussed by the Committee and the Head of Internal Audit 
welcomed any support Members could offer which might enable regular 
review of these areas to take place.  
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2013 

 

 
RESOLVED - The Committee resolved to: 
 
(a) Receive the Internal Audit April to June 2013 report and note the work 

undertaken by Internal Audit during the period covered by the report 
and the assurances given; and  

(b) Note the Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14. 
 

14 Work Programme  
 

The City Solicitor submitted a report notifying Members of the work 
programme. 
 
The Committee reviewed its forthcoming work programme. 
 
RESOLVED - The Committee resolved to note the forthcoming reports. 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of City Solicitor 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013 

Subject: Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This is the annual report to the committee concerning the Council’s decision making 
arrangements.  For the first time the report brings together arrangements for planning 
and licensing matters together with all other decisions taken by officers. 

2. From the review, assessment and ongoing monitoring carried out, the Head of 
Governance Services, Head of Licensing and Registration and Chief Planning Officer 
have reached the opinion that, overall, decision making systems are operating soundly 
and that arrangements are up to date, fit for purpose, effectively communicated and 
routinely complied with. 

Recommendations 

3. Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in this 
report. 

 Report author:  Kate Sadler 

Tel:  0113 39 51711 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This is the annual report to the committee concerning the Council’s decision 
making arrangements.  For the first time the report brings together arrangements 
for planning and licensing matters together with all other decisions taken by 
officers. 

1.2 This report provides one of the sources of assurance which the Committee is able 
to take into account when considering the approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

1.3 Members are asked to consider the results of monitoring shared within the body of 
this report and to note the assurances given by the Head of Governance Services, 
the Head of Licensing and Registration and the Chief Planning Officer, that the 
decision making framework in place within Leeds City Council is up to date, fit for 
purpose, effectively communicated and routinely complied with. 

 

2 Background information 

Previous Reports 

2.1 The committee has received previous assurance reports separately in respect of 
Executive decision making, planning and licensing matters.  The most recent 
reports to be received in each respect were:- 

• Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report – 28th September 
2012 

• Assurances of the process by which planning decisions are taken by the 
Council – 23rd April 2012 

• Licensing Decision Making Framework – 27th March 2013 

This report seeks to update the committee in respect of each of these decision 
making areas. 

Executive Decision Making Framework 

2.2 The Council’s decision making framework comprises of the systems and 
processes through which decision making is directed and controlled.  Whilst a 
number of these systems and processes are put in place in direct response to 
primary and secondary legislation, others reflect the implementation of locally 
adopted definitions and choices made to ensure maximum transparency and 
accountability within Council practice and procedure. 

2.3 The principal systems and processes are set out in the Council’s Constitution as 
follows; 

Page 8



 

 

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution 

2.3.1 Article 1 (describing the powers and purpose of the Council and the purpose of 
the constitution), Article 3 describing the rights of Citizens (for example rights to 
attend meetings, rights in respect of the forward plan, access to information 
regarding decisions), Article 4 – the budget and policy framework of the Authority, 
Article 6 the role of function of Scrutiny Boards, Article 7 the role, form and 
composition of the Executive, Articles 8-10 describing the role, function and 
membership requirements of committees and Article 13 (which describes 
requirements relating to decision making); 

Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions 

2.3.2 The responsibility for Council, Local Choice and Executive functions and how 
these have been delegated to committees and officers.  (Each Director 
documents how these functions are discharged within their directorate by making 
and maintaining a sub delegation scheme.) 

Part 4 – Procedure Rules 

2.3.3 Rules in relation to the decision making processes which make provision for 
decision making in relation to Executive and Council functions by both Members 
and officers. 

Part 5 - Codes and Protocols 

2.3.4 Codes of conduct for members and officers (specifically arrangements for 
members and officers to register and declare relevant interests) and protocols 
describing the respective roles of members and officers in decision making. 

2.4 In addition to these documented processes there are a number of Statutory 
Officers appointed to ensure that the Council acts within its powers and budgets.  
Of particular relevance to decision making are:- 

The Head of Paid Service 

2.4.5 In Leeds the Chief Executive, responsible for ensuring that the Council appoints 
and directs a staff compliment sufficient to ensure that it can fulfil its functions. 

The Monitoring Officer 

2.4.6 In Leeds the City Solicitor, responsible for ensuring that the Council acts at all 
times within its legal authority. 

The Chief Finance Officer 

2.4.7 Also known as the Section 151 Officer, in Leeds the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director of Resources, responsible for ensuring that the Council acts at all times 
within its financial capacity. 

 
 

Page 9



 

 

Licensing Matters 

2.5 A separate framework supports decision making in relation to the Licensing Act 
2003, Gambling Act 2005, taxi and private hire and miscellaneous licensing (scrap 
metal dealers, motor salvage dealers, sex establishment licence, place of 
marriage, hypnotism, house to house collections and street collections). 

2.6 Under the legislative framework certain licences are automatically granted in the 
absence of objections in accordance with the legislation, whilst other applications 
are decided in accordance with policies determined and reviewed by Councillors 
as required.  Details of the policy reviews currently being undertaken are set out 
at paragraph 3.51 below.  Dependant on the type of licence, Officers or Licensing 
Sub Committee make individual decisions in accordance with relevant law and 
policy. 

Planning Matters 

2.7 The framework for decision making in relation to planning matters in England and 
Wales is plan-led. This involves the authority in preparing plans that set out what 
can be built and where. All decisions on applications for planning permission 
should be made in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
planning considerations indicate otherwise. 

2.8 The decision on whether to grant permission is within the context of the 
development plan and other material considerations which includes national and 
local planning policy and guidance.  Material considerations cover a wide variety 
of matters including impact on neighbours and the local area. 

2.9 All applications are publicised so the public are aware of them and some are 
subject to more detailed consultation (depending on their scale and sensitivity).   

 

3 Main issues 

EXECUTIVE DECISION MAKING 

3.1 The Head of Governance Services has responsibility to ensure that the Council’s 
decision making arrangements are up to date, fit for purpose, effectively 
communicated, routinely complied with and monitored.   

Amendments to the Decision Making Framework 

3.2 As in any other municipal year it has been necessary to review and amend the 
Constitution in order to implement changing legislation and to ensure that it 
remains an accurate reflection of practice and procedure within the Council.  
Changes have taken place in accordance with Article 15 of the Constitution.  Any 
amendments made by the Monitoring Officer in the 2012/13 Municipal Year were 
recorded as Significant Operational Decisions and published on the Council’s web 
site, amendments made by the Leader of Council or Executive Board were 
reported to the next available meeting of the Council, and decisions to be taken by 

Page 10



 

 

Full Council were first considered by the General Purposes Committee in order 
that recommendations could be made. 

Executive Arrangements Regulations 

3.3 As previously reported, in August 2012 the Secretary of State introduced The 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 to govern 
executive decision making within local authorities.  A review of the arrangements 
in place in Leeds at the time indicated that minimal changes were necessary to 
existing practice and procedure to meet the requirements set out in the 
regulations.  Appropriate amendments were made to the way in which decisions 
were publicised and recorded and steps were taken to ensure that these changes 
were embedded throughout the Council’s decision making practice. 

3.4 In particular the regulations have led to the following changes:- 

3.4.1 The Forward Plan has been restyled the List of Forthcoming Key Decisions.  The 
list differs from the Plan in that it can be amended in real time, allowing items to 
be added to the list responsively and ensuring that there is no unnecessary delay 
in taking a Key decision, whilst publishing the Council’s intention that the decision 
will be taken no less than 28 clear calendar days prior to taking it in accordance 
with the regulations.   

3.4.2 The general exception and special urgency provisions allowing decisions to be 
taken at less notice continue to apply.  Statistics in relation to the use of the 
General Exception and Special Urgency in Leeds are detailed at paragraphs 3.16 
to 3.22 of this report.   

3.4.3 Procedures have been introduced to provide notice of the Executive’s intention to 
consider part or parts of the agenda for Executive Board or Area Committee 
meetings in private.  There is no equivalent procedure for decisions to be taken by 
officers as, by their nature, these decisions are never taken in public.  

3.4.4 In accordance with the report received in September 2012, the Head of 
Governance Services wrote to DCLG outlining Leeds City Council’s practice and 
procedure, particularly in respect of recording Significant Operational Decisions, 
and indicating the Council’s intention to maintain this practice in the absence of 
requirements to extend recording further to include all Administrative Decisions.  
In the absence of a response to the contrary the Head of Governance Services 
concludes that the practice in Leeds is sufficient to fulfil the regulations.  

3.5 During the annual review of the Constitution, which takes place each year to 
ensure that the Constitution is up to date and fit for purpose, appropriate 
amendments were made to ensure that these arrangements are captured clearly 
and concisely within the Council’s Executive and Decision Making Procedure 
Rules and Access to Information Procedure Rules.  Appropriate consequential 
amendments were also made to the Constitution. 

Page 11



 

 

Delegation of Functions 

3.6 The Constitution documents the delegation of Council and Executive functions to 
Officers.  In turn a framework has been established whereby those functions are 
sub delegated (normally by Directors) to other officers of the Council.  These 
arrangements provide for transparency in terms of officer accountabilities.  In 
summary for 2013;- 

3.6.5 Each of the 10 officers who have functions delegated to them through the 
Constitution is required to make a new sub delegation scheme each municipal 
year to reflect the Executive Arrangements determined by the Leader (and those 
determined by Full Council concerning Council Functions).  

3.6.6 The Head of Governance Services maintains a record of sub delegation schemes 
as they are made and amended by Directors and can confirm that each Director 
(or Chief Officer) with functions delegated to them through the Constitution made 
and reviewed their own sub delegation scheme in the 12/13 Municipal Year.  In 
addition each of the 10 officers with delegations under the 13/14 constitution 
signed off a new sub delegation scheme following the Annual Meeting in May 
2013. 

3.6.7 Since then the City Solicitor, Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and 
Communities), the Chief Planning Officer, the Director of Environment and 
Housing and the Director of Resources / Deputy Chief Executive have each 
amended their sub delegation scheme. 

3.6.8 These amendments, which are publicised as Significant Operational Decisions, 
reflect the requirement that each scheme should contain an accurate 
representation of the way in which functions are carried out and the officers with 
authority to make decisions under the scheme.  In this way they ensure 
transparency of decision making within the Council in relation to both Council and 
Executive functions. 

Performance Monitoring 

3.7 To provide a test of the extent to which the council’s arrangements are routinely 
complied with a suite of performance indicators have been established.  These 
are explored further below.  In order to ensure continuity of reporting to the 
Committee these statistics cover the period from September 2012 to August 2013. 

Publication of Agendas 

3.8 The Council is required to publish agendas and reports for committees five clear 
working days in advance of a meeting.  This requirement is contained within 
Section 100B of the Local Government Act 1972 for Council Committees and in 
the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 for Executive committees.  Both pieces of legislation also 
contain exception provisions for meetings to be called at short notice.    

Page 12



 

 

3.9 The Head of Governance Service has established a target for 99% of agendas to 
be issued and published within the five day statutory deadline1; this being a 
reasonable measure of timely transparency and an indication of the extent to 
which exception provisions are utilised to call meetings at short notice.   

3.10 Of 305 meetings which took place within the reporting period covered by this 
report, 7 agendas were not issued within the 5 clear day deadline.   

3.11 Overall this gives a performance of 98% of agendas published within the required 
notice period.  This continues the trend of improvement on the 3 previous years 
which show performance indicators as follows:- 

2010 95% 
2011 96% 
2012 97% 
2013 98% 

Publication of Minutes 

3.12 There is no statutory framework stipulating the time period for the publication of 
committee minutes.  To enable the decisions of the Council to be accessible and 
transparent the Head of Governance Service has established a local target; this 
being for 100% of draft minutes to be published on the Council’s internet site 
within ten working days. 

3.13 In addition, to enable speed of implementation and facilitate Call In, all Executive 
Board minutes are published within 48 hours of the Executive Board meeting. 

3.14 Of 305 committee meetings which have taken place within the period covered by 
this report, 11 sets of draft minutes were published outside the deadline.  This 
gives a performance indicator of 96% draft minutes published within the required 
period. 

3.15 This continues the standard set in the 3 previous years which show performance 
indicators as follows:- 

2010 96% 
2011 96% 
2012 96% 
2013 96% 

Key Decisions on the List of Forthcoming Key Decisions 

3.16 As Members are aware, a significant element of the decision making framework 
concerns requirements surrounding the pre-notification of an intention to take a 
Key decision.  These provisions seek to ensure transparency of decision making 
and allow representations from stakeholders etc.   

                                            
1
 Licensing Sub Committee’s are not bound by these statutory requirements but, for completeness, are 
included in the monitoring information. 

Page 13



 

 

3.17 The Council Business Plan contained a target for 89% of Key decisions to have 
appeared in the Forward Plan.  The appearance of items on the list of forthcoming 
Key decisions for 28 days prior to decisions being taken (as required by the new 
regulations) is not reflect in the new Best Council Plan, but is none the less 
subject of monitoring by the Head of Governance Services. 

3.18 During the period covered by this report of 242 Key decisions taken 11 were not 
on the Forward Plan or List of Forthcoming Key Decisions as appropriate.  This 
gives a performance indicator of 95% Key decisions on the List of Forthcoming 
Key Decisions.   

3.19 This continues the trend of improvement on the 4 previous years which show 
performance indicators as follows:- 

2010 89% 
2011 84% 
2012 93% 
2013 95% 

3.20 Each of these decisions was taken in accordance with the general exception 
provisions contained in Regulations.  Having considered the reasons given for 
urgency the Head of Governance Services has noted that:- 

• one was a result of the cross over between the Forward Plan and new list 
arrangements in which the publication requirement extended from 14 to 28 
days; 

• three were urgent because of pressures to secure or spend grant funding in 
the current economic climate; 

• one was urgent because a supplier had given notice to cease operation 
where the Council has statutory duties to provide gas servicing to property, 
and failure to do so could endanger life and property; 

• one was the result of an unforeseen increase in the capital cost of the 
scheme, taking it over the threshold for a Key decision in circumstances 
where the scheme needed to progress during the school holidays; and  

• the remaining five related to procurement decisions and the reasons given 
indicated that the circumstances could have been avoided through improved 
planning. 

3.21 The Head of Governance Services is of the view that the steps taken through the 
transforming procurement project to ensure better management of procurement, 
together with the increased ownership of decision making within directorates and 
the on-going programme of training offered to officers involved in the decision 
making process will continue to minimise the number of Key decisions taken 
without having been included on the List of Forthcoming Key Decisions for the 
required 28 calendar days. 

Page 14



 

 

3.22 The Head of Governance Services is able to confirm that the Special Urgency 
Provisions, enabling an Executive Decision to be taken at less than 5 days’ notice, 
have not been used during this period. 

Eligible Decisions Open for Call In 

3.23 The Council has established arrangements for significant Executive decisions2 to 
be available for Call In.  This allows for Overview and Scrutiny Committees to 
request that a decision, which has been taken, but not yet implemented, be 
considered by the relevant Scrutiny Committee.  This mechanism is an important 
element of democratic accountability arrangements in place at Leeds and was 
reflected in the Council Business Plan which required that 95% of eligible 
decisions should be open for Call In.  Again this requirement is not reflected in the 
new Best Council Plan but continues to be monitored by the Head of Governance 
Services. 

3.24 Of 328 eligible decisions taken only 11 (6 decisions taken by officers and 5 taken 
by Executive Board) were not open for call in.  This gives a performance of 96% 
Key decisions being available for Call In. 

3.25 This shows a slight improvement on the level recorded in 2012.  The 4 previous 
years show performance indicators as follows:- 

2010 99% 
2011 98% 
2012 96% 
2013 97% 

3.26 In the reporting period all those decisions exempted from Call In were exempted 
on the grounds of urgency: six decisions were urgent because of deadlines 
imposed by statute, procedure or funding agencies: one had been planned but 
costs rose unexpectedly and required a Key decision to be made and 
implemented instead of the planned Significant Operational Decision, and the 
remaining four appear to have been circumstances that could have been avoided 
through appropriate planning and preparation. 

3.27 Again the Head of Governance Services is satisfied that the implementation of 
transforming procurement, increased ownership of decision making within 
directorates and on-going training in relation to the decision making framework will 
continue to improve the number of decisions appropriately open to call in. 

Decisions Not Treated as Key 

3.28 At its meeting of 18th June 2013 the Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and 
Culture) considered a request for scrutiny in relation to the decision making 
process supporting the implementation of charging arrangements for Party in the 
Park. 

                                            
2
 All decisions of Executive Board and all Key decisions of officers are eligible for Call In provided that they 
are not decisions made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules (as part of 
the development of the budget and policy framework) and they have not been the subject of a previous call 
in. 

Page 15



 

 

3.29 The Board noted that this was the first occasion on which the constitutional 
mechanism for identifying decisions which appear to have been wrongly treated 
had been invoked.  The Scrutiny Board were asked to determine whether the 
decision should have been treated as a key decision, and if so whether to 
exercise the right to require the Executive to submit a report to Council setting out 
particulars of the decision together with the Leader’s opinion as to whether the 
decision was or was not a key decision and the reasons for that opinion. 

3.30 Representations were considered from both the Councillor who had submitted the 
request for Scrutiny and the Director to whom the function is delegated.  The 
discussion included consideration of both the financial criteria and the significance 
of the impact of the decision on local people.  

3.31 The Scrutiny Board resolved that the decision in relation to the proposal to 
introduce charges for Party in the Park was correctly treated and therefore no 
further action is required by scrutiny on this occasion.  However, the meeting 
expressed the importance of the Call In mechanism within the decision making 
framework as enabling scrutiny by councillors.  It was considered that this request 
for Scrutiny was an appropriate way in which to carry out the responsibility of 
councillors to ensure that the delegation scheme they had agreed was properly 
implemented. 

Implementation of Key Decisions 

3.32 A sample of 15 Key decisions has taken across all directorates3 in order to assess 
the timeliness with which decisions are implemented.   

3.33 Whilst it has been confirmed that all 15 decisions sampled have been fully 
implemented it was noted that only 8 of the decisions sampled set out clear 
information as to the proposed start date in the body of the report.   

3.34 In order to provide increased focus on the need to ensure timely implementation 
of decisions the Head of Governance Services has amended the Council’s 
Corporate Report Writing Guidance to indicate that officers should include:- 

• details of the steps required in order to implement the preferred option as set 
out in their report; and  

• a recommendation outlining the timescales proposed for implementation and 
naming the officer accountable for implementation. 

These details will then be reflected in the minutes of any meeting of the Executive 
Board, or in the Delegated Decision Notice relating to any Key Decision taken by 
an officer. 

                                            
3
 Neither the Director of Pulic Health nor the City Solicitor had taken Key decisions within the sample period 
and they are not therefore included within the survey. 

Page 16



 

 

Embedding the Decision Making Framework 

Training 

3.35 The Head of Governance Services has continued to provide training in relation to 
Council Structures and Decision Making throughout the past Municipal Year.  In 
the 2013/14 Municipal Year this training offer has been broadened to include:- 

3.35.1 Participation in the Corporate Induction event through the Knowledge Café: 
providing information in relation to the context of the political organisation in which 
officers are employed, and details as to further information and learning resources 
available; 

3.35.2 A restructured decision making course, placing increased emphasis on the 
political environment in which decisions are taken; 

3.35.3 An amended political awareness course, offering an opportunity to meet and learn 
from a senior elected Member; and 

3.35.4 A set of workshop sessions in relation to report writing, focussing on the use of 
reports to support decision making in order to achieve the Best Council ambition; 

Decision Making Toolkit 

3.36 In addition to the training events on offer the Head of Governance Services has 
used the re-launch of the Council’s intranet site, to establish a Decision Making 
Toolkit, providing one place in which officers can access:- 

• Links to items published on the Council’s web site including the constitution, 
sub delegation schemes, the list of forthcoming key decisions, and records of 
decisions taken by officers; 

• Advice in the form of briefing notes, frequently asked questions and How To 
guides; 

• Corporate guidance; and  

• Templates for the addition of decisions to the list of forthcoming key 
decisions, delegated decisions and reports. 

3.37 The Head of Governance Services ensures that when any of the items included in 
the toolkit is amended or updated, information is shared via the Corporate 
Communications ‘Essentials’ bulletin and a link included to the toolkit.  Feedback 
received from officers using the toolkit has been complimentary. 

Migration of Publishing Requirements 

3.38 As part of the review of Governance Services undertaken during the Enabling 
Corporate Centre Project, the Head of Governance Services undertook to hand 
over to Directorates the control of publication of decisions made within each 
Directorate.  As part of this project the Head of Governance Services ensured 
that:- 

Page 17



 

 

• Officers nominated by each directorate were trained in the use of the Modern 
Gov software used to publish decisions; 

• Manuals were created to support directorate staff in using the software; 

• Advice and guidance has been made available to officers as and when 
required, using both staff in governance services and a peer support group; 
and 

• Key decisions published on the Council’s website have been checked to 
ensure compliance with the decision making framework. 

3.39 The transfer of responsibility took place on 1st May 2013, enabling directorates to 
take fuller control of decision making processes and therefore enabling them to be 
increasingly responsive to individual directorate governance arrangements.  The 
chart below shows the distribution of recorded decisions taken by officers 
between 1st May and 31st August 2013.  Of the 287 decisions recorded by officers 
in that period, 41 were Key, 220 Significant Operational and 26 Council decisions.  
37% (105) of these decisions were taken by or on behalf of the Director of City 
Development, and 23% (66 decisions) were taken by or on behalf of the Director 
of Environment and Housing. 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

C
X
 

A
C
E
  

D
C
S
 

D
A
S

D
E
H
 

D
C
D
 

C
P
O
 

D
P
H
  

D
R
 

C
S
 

Key

SOD

Council

 

3.40 A discussion at Corporate Leadership Team on 20th August 2013 confirmed that 
the governance framework for decision making is up to date and fit for purpose.  It 
was felt that the migration of responsibility for publishing requirements, in 
conjunction with the learning offer, lead to a shared understanding of the 
legislative framework for decision making.  This shared understanding has in turn 
lead to an increased awareness of the need to plan decisions in order that they 
can be taken and implemented in a timely manner. 

Page 18



 

 

DECISIONS IN RELATION TO LICENSING MATTERS 

3.41 The Head of Licensing and Registration has responsibility to ensure that the 
Council’s arrangements in respect of licensing matters are up to date, fit for 
purpose, effectively communicated, routinely complied with and monitored.   

Entertainment and Miscellaneous Licensing Decisions 

3.42 As Members are aware the Council is required to take a variety of licensing 
decisions in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005 and 
other miscellaneous legislation providing for the licensing of scrap metal dealers, 
motor salvage dealers, sex establishment licence, place of marriage, hypnotism, 
house to house collections and street collections. 

3.43 The table set out at Appendix A to this report shows the number of applications 
received for 2010, 2011, 2012 and the period between January and June in 2013.  
The table indicates the numbers of decisions made by Licensing Sub-Committee 
after representations were received.  Members should note that where no 
representations have been received the legislation dictates certain licences must 
be granted. 

3.44 Since the last report, HM Government has introduced new legislation on the 
licensing of scrap metal dealers.  As this is an executive function, the refusal of 
applications will be delegated to officers through the sub delegation scheme, until 
such time as it becomes a council function when it will be delegated to Licensing 
Committee.  Guidance on refusals is being developed and will be approved 
through the DDN that will deal with the matter of fees, application process, forms 
and guidance. 

Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Decisions 

3.45 As Members are aware, the granting, suspension, revocation and enforcement of 
an individual hackney carriage (HC) or private hire (PH) licence whether for a 
vehicle, driver or operator is a council function under the Local Government Act 
2000.  In Leeds, these functions are concurrently delegated to the Licensing 
Committee and to the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) 
under the Scheme of Delegation approved annually at full Council.   The Assistant 
Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) has sub-delegated that power to the 
Head of Licensing and Registration, the Section Head of Taxi & Private Hire 
Licensing and, in some circumstances, to Principal Managers, Licensing Officers 
and Licensing Supervisors.  All decisions taken by officers are taken in 
accordance with policy and guidance decided by Members of Licensing 
Committee. 

Page 19



 

 

3.46 The figures for 2010, 2011, 2012 and for January to August 2013 for applications, 
renewals, refusals, suspensions and revocations of taxi and private hire driver 
licences are set out in the table below. 
 

 Applications Refusals Suspensions Revocations 

2010 629 18 86 69 

2011 508 15 129 46 

2012 794 16 74 37 

2013 (1st 
January to 31

st
 

August) 

415 6 59 15 

3.47 When considering the above information it is important to note that there is no 
direct correlation between the number of suspensions and revocations in any one 
year.  For example, the number of licences revoked in any one year will include a 
proportion which were suspended in the previous year. 

3.48 It is also important to note that many decisions result from the application of other 
legislation and the decisions of other bodies such as the courts or DVLA.  As 
explained earlier in this report, many officer decisions flow directly from the 
application of an approved council policy.   

3.49 The legal provisions relating to the grant, refusal, suspension and revocation of 
Licences set out statutory Rights of Appeal to the Magistrates Court against 
almost all the decisions that would take effect.  In the period between 1st January 
and 31st August 2013 25 appeals have been received.  The reason for these 
appeals and the outcomes are set out below:- 

Type of Appeal Volume Result 
 

Against conviction 1 Refused 
 

Against conviction and sentence 3 Dismissed 
 

Withdrawn for training, no 
costs against Council 

 

Withdrawn 
 

Page 20



 

 

 

Type of Appeal Volume Result 
 

Against refusal 2 Refused 
 

Allowed 
 

Against revocation 
 

10 
 

Remain suspended 
 

Withdrawn 
 

Refused x 2 
 

Appellant unable to attend 
 

Re-listed x 2 
 

Dismissed  x 2 
 

Allowed in part 
 

Against sentence 1 Withdrawn 
 

Against suspension 7 

Dismissed 

Refused x 2 
 

Withdrawn x 3 
 

Badge returned 
 

Refusal to renew 1 Licence will be granted 
 

 Total 23  
 

Licensing Policy Review 

3.50 As Members are aware, the licensing decision making framework is dependent 
upon a comprehensive list of policies agreed, as appropriate, by the then 
Licensing and Regulatory Panel, the now Licensing Committee, Executive Board 
or Full Council.  These policies are regularly reviewed by Licensing Committee in 
response to changes in legislation, law and practice, or other circumstances.  Any 
changes are carried out after a full public consultation. 

3.51 The report which Members received in March 2013 set out details of planned 
policy reviews.  Since this time the following progress has been made:- 

Page 21



 

 

• The Statement of Licensing Policy for the Licensing Act 2003 is presently out 
for public consultation before returning to Licensing Committee in September 
to be agreed at Full Council in November 2013; 

• The Statement of Licensing Policy for the Licensing of Sex Establishments, 
incorporating amendments to deal with local concerns, was agreed at 
Executive Board on 17th July 2013, to take effect from 1st September 2013; 

• Taxi and private hire licensing policies in Groups 1 and 2 have been reviewed 
and are in place, and initial consultation on group 3 policies closed on 3rd May 
2013.  This group of policies are now being reviewed with a view to returning 
to Licensing Committee in late 2013 / early 2014 prior to further consultation;  

• A working group has been established to consider the proposed new policy to 
direct officers when exercising their delegated power to suspend a licence 
with immediate effect.  Public consultation on the proposals closed on Friday 
12th April 2013.  Officers are currently collating responses to the feedback 
with a view to returning to Licensing Committee in late 2013/early 2014; and 

• A working group has also been established to consider; 

i.  The Hackney carriage and private hire driver renewal process (including 
the length of licences issued; up to 3 years); 

ii.  How the transfer of a Hackney carriage licence is processed upon the 
death of a proprietor; 

iii.  How consultation can be more effective with the trades; and 

iv.  Third party applications to renew a licence on behalf of an absent licence 
holder. 

There are two further scheduled meetings with the trade and Members in 
September and October before returning to the Licensing Committee. 

3.52 This review process ensures that all polices remain up to date and are fit for 
purpose, reflecting the up to date position on changes to legislation or law and 
practice.   

3.53 Licensing policies are published on the council’s website and form part of a 
comprehensive training programme designed for new Members of the Licensing 
Committee.  Newly recruited officers are provided training in the policies as part of 
their initial appraisal process and can only take decisions after they have 
completed their training.  Only a limited number of officers can take decisions at 
different levels in accordance with the scheme of delegation.  All training is 
monitored through the appraisal process and regular meetings with their line 
manager. 

3.54 Reports on the numbers of licences granted and any delegated decisions are 
provided to Licensing Committee so they can monitor the effectiveness of the 
licensing decision making framework and the policies that guide it.  Entertainment 

Page 22



 

 

Licensing and Taxi and Private Hire Licensing last provided reports to Licensing 
Committee in July and August 2013 respectively.   

Regular CRB Disclosures for Taxi and Private Hire Licence Holders 

3.55 As reported in March 2013 the intention remains to introduce 3 yearly Disclosure 
and Barring Service (DBS) checks for Taxi and Private Hire License holders.  The 
finer details of these arrangements have yet to be determined , however the 
committee will be advised of progress in future reports. 

 

DECISIONS IN RELATION TO PLANNING MATTERS 

3.56 The Chief Planning Officer has responsibility to ensure that the Council’s 
arrangements in respect of planning matters are up to date, fit for purpose, 
effectively communicated, routinely complied with and monitored.   

3.57 The planning service is committed to continuous improvement and seeks to 
ensure that the decision making process is transparent, fit for purpose and is 
accountable.  A number of actions and service improvements have taken place 
over the last year which help provide assurance in the decision making process 
and these are described below. 

Decision Making Framework for Planning Matters 

Delegation Scheme 

3.58 The Chief Planning Officer is authorised to carry out functions on behalf of the 
council.  The delegation scheme forms part of the Constitution and was last 
reviewed and approved by Full Council in May 2013. 

3.59 All planning applications are considered to fall within the delegation scheme and 
will be determined by officers under the sub-delegation scheme, unless they fall 
into defined exceptional categories which were detailed in the previous report to 
this Committee. 

Sub Delegation Scheme 

3.60 The scheme sets out which functions have been sub-delegated by the Chief 
Planning Officer to other officers and any terms and conditions attached to the 
authority sub-delegated by the Chief Planning Officer.   The latest sub delegation 
scheme was approved on 4th July 2013. 

Officer conflict of interest 

3.61 Officer conflict of interest, declaration of interests and public and member access 
to the declared interest of officers in high risk posts has been discussed at 
Scrutiny Board (Housing and Regeneration) and at Executive Board in recent 
months. 

Page 23



 

 

3.62 At the 11 January 2013 meeting of the Standards and Conduct Committee, the 
Chief Planning Officer presented a report responding to the concerns of the 
Committee, about planning officer conflicts of interest and declaration of interests. 
The report clearly outlined the measures and procedures that are involved in the 
development management process for officers to declare or make known any 
beneficial interest in land and property and how potential conflicts of interest are 
avoided.   

3.63 An independent review of the controls in place to detect any potential conflicts of 
interest on the decisions made in respect of planning applications was also 
carried out in 2012-13.  A report of the Head of Internal Audit was presented to 
the Scrutiny Board (Housing and Regeneration) following the review, which gave 
the Board a high level assurance that key controls were in place within the 
planning application process to mitigate the risk of planning decisions being 
subject to a conflict of interest and inappropriate external influence. 

3.64 A report to the Executive Board on 17 July 2013 described a number of practical 
steps that will be taken to provide additional assurances that employees are 
declaring interests, arrangements for Members in accessing the register of 
employee interests and arrangements for making information public about 
employees’ interests, where those interest relate to their decision making or 
advisory role.  Executive Board agreed to a number of actions to strengthen the 
process, which are being progressed. 

Restructure of planning service 

3.65 Changes have been made to planning officer responsibilities through a restructure 
of the service.  A principal planning officer or more senior officer has responsibility 
for an area committee area, meaning there is a single and consistent point of 
contact for MPs, members and community groups in an area.  These new 
arrangements will help planning officers gain a clearer understanding of the local 
and political concerns,  resulting in better communication and greater sensitivity 
brought to the decision making  process.  The arrangements are mirrored in local 
planning teams, helping to ensure integration into policy work and the preparation 
of neighbourhood plans. 

Review of the Plans Panels 

3.66 In 2012, an all-party working group of members and council officers reviewed the 
arrangements for the operation of the plans panels.  The review recommended 
amending the geographical boundaries for the area panels to balance up 
workloads and for the creation of a new panel, which would deal with the largest 
and strategic applications received by the authority.  Full Council agreed to the 
creation of three new panels – North and East, South and West and City Panel.  
Each panel is authorised to discharge functions within its own geographical area 
and in the case of the City Panel, to deal with strategic applications.  The area 
planning teams have also been aligned to the new plans panel boundaries 
through the restructure of planning services, as described in more detail at 
paragraph 3.65 above. 

Page 24



 

 

3.67 The new panel arrangements have provided the opportunity for the use of the 
three phase process: pre-application presentation, position report and final 
determination for the largest and most complex applications.  This has led to more 
Plans Panel involvement throughout the life of an application and first time 
decision making, even on the most complex schemes. There is strong evidence 
that applications dealt with through this approach also deliver more predictable 
outcomes in a timely fashion. 

3.68 The new arrangements have also made provision for additional ward member 
and/or community involvement at the pre-application stage, by providing a 
speaking opportunity following the developers’ presentation.  This provides a 
greater balance between the role of the applicant and views of the community and 
ensures there is appropriate focus on the largest and most sensitive applications, 
in order to fully deal with the issues, resulting in a more transparent and 
accountable planning decision making process. 

3.69 The new panel arrangements have also allowed opportunities for special 
meetings for very significant development proposals including the energy from 
waste proposals, NGT and large scale housing schemes.  This has meant that 
there is the appropriate level of scrutiny afforded to particularly sensitive or 
strategic proposals.   

Governance Documents 

3.70 The importance of ensuring that the council’s procedures for decision making on 
planning applications are lawful, accountable, transparent, fair and in compliance 
with the principles of good governance and best practice is crucial to ensuring 
public confidence in the system.  Two key documents have been revised and 
updated in 2012-13: 

Planning Code of Good Practice 

3.70.1 On 1 July 2012 the new standards regime under the Localism Act 2011 came into 
force and introduced a mandatory requirement for local authorities to adopt a local 
code of conduct. As a result of the new Members Code, the Standards and 
Conduct Committee embarked on a review of the local codes, including the Code 
of Practice for the Determination of Planning Matters and asked the Joint Plans 
Panel to review the code to assess the appropriateness of its style, function and 
purpose. Consequently, a new guide was drafted and was approved by the Joint 
Plans Panel in June 2013.  The new guide, Planning Code of Good Practice, is 
more practical in its approach and supportive in its tone and assists members in 
keeping decisions safe and mitigating the risk of possible challenge.    

Protocol for Public Speaking at Plans Panel 

3.70.2 Following the changes to the Plans Panel arrangements in September 2012 and 
the introduction of a public speaking opportunity at the pre-application stage, the 
protocol for public speaking has been fully reviewed with the changes agreed by 
the Joint Plans Panel in June 2013.   

Page 25



 

 

Planning Performance and Workload – January 2012 - August 2013 

3.71 The number of planning applications received in 2012-13 was down by 3.5% 
compared with 2011-12, with major applications seeing the greatest reduction in 
numbers, being 6.1% down on the previous year’s levels.  However, there has 
been a real improvement in performance in determining applications in 2012-13, 
with improvements across all application types.  The service uses several 
measures to determine the quality of decision making: number of lost appeals, 
numbers of complaints and upheld complaints.  Performance in these areas 
compares favourably with previous years.   

3.72 A total of 3,976 decisions were made in 2012-13, compared with 4,137 in 2011-
12.  3,849 decisions were made by officers under the delegation scheme.  The 
delegation rate for the year was therefore 96.8%, a small increase on 2011-12 
where the delegation rate was 95.9%.   

3.73 The government sets national performance targets for decision making on 
planning applications as follows:  

• 60% of major applications determined within 13 weeks 

• 65% of minor applications determined within 8 weeks 

• 80% of other applications determined within 8 weeks 

For 2012-13, Leeds also had a local target for major applications of 75% 
determined in 13 weeks and 80% of minors in 8 weeks.   

3.74 Performance during 2012-13 is described below, in comparison with 2011-12: 

 

 

 

 

3.75 The table above shows a marked improvement in performance, particularly for 
major applications, where 2012-13 shows an 8.1% increase of applications 
determined in time, compared with 2011-12. In quarter 4 of 2012-13, 76% of 
major applications were in time.  Within the national context, only 56%4  major 
applications were determined within 13 weeks, therefore Leeds performance is 
not only a significant improvement on last year’s figures, but is also higher than 
the national rate of determination.  Overall, in 2012-13, 85% of applications of all 
types were determined in time. 

3.76 The number of out of time major applications still in the system at the end of 2012-
13 was 34, a decrease of 22 from 56 at the end of 2011-12.  This provides a 
sound platform for the coming year where a target of 70% of major applications 

                                            
4
 Department of Communities and Local Government Planning Applications: October to December 2012 
(England) 12.4.2012 

 Majors  Minors  Others  

2011-12 56.3% 76.9% 85.1% 

2012-13 61.3% 77.4% 88.9% 

2013-14 (1st 
January to 31

st
 August 

2013) 

70.83% 75.27% 83.77% 

Page 26



 

 

determined in 13 weeks has been set.  The number of out of time non-major 
applications at the end of the year was 119.  All out of time applications are being 
actively progressed to reach a conclusion.  New performance reporting 
arrangements have been introduced in August 2013 by the Government which 
means that timescales can be negotiated to extend the period of time in which to 
determine applications.  In future, all applications determined within the statutory 
time period or the agreed extended time period will be counted as being  “in time”.  
The service is proactively working with applicants to negotiate new determination 
dates. 

Planning Performance Agreements  

3.77 The Government strongly encourages the use of PPAs for the largest and most 
complex applications.  The service determined 9 Planning Performance 
Agreements (PPA) in 2012-13, all within the agreed timescales.  Within the 
system are a further 21, which are signed and are under consideration.  In the first 
four months of 2013-14, six PPAs have been completed, all of them within agreed 
timescales. 

3.78 The Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 makes provision for developers to submit 
planning applications directly to the Planning Inspectorate where the local 
planning authority has a poor record of performance on major applications.  Local 
Planning Authorities will be placed in “special measures” if they determine 30% or 
fewer major applications in time and have more than 20% of major appeal 
decisions overturned.  It is very unlikely that the service will be placed in special 
measures based on the current criteria.  The use of PPAs has been embedded in 
our practice for a number of years but it is likely that the service will try to make 
increasing use of PPAs to deal with complex applications which would take such 
applications outside the statistics and allow them to be determined in bespoke 
timescales, commensurate with their complexity. 

Appeals 

3.79 In 2012-13, there were 187 appeal decisions, which represents about 4.7% of the 
total number of decisions made in the year.   

3.80 There has been a steady improvement in the performance levels of dismissed 
appeals on the authority’s decision to refuse on planning applications over the last 
few years, but it has slipped a little in 2012-13 to 67% from 69% in 2011-12.  A 
number of appeals on smaller applications were allowed in March 2013. 

Decisions Contrary to Officer Recommendation 

3.81 Decisions on planning applications must be taken in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. From time to 
time the Panel may attach different weight to the potential planning considerations 
and therefore, take a decision which differs from the officer recommendation. 

3.82 Where this occurs, Members must be able to give a clear basis and reason for not 
taking the officer recommendation.  It is important to ensure, as far as possible, 
that any decision made will be capable of surviving a legal challenge or appeal.  

Page 27



 

 

The consequence of a high level of decisions contrary to the officer 
recommendation is that it may appear that members and officers are not working 
well together, with the potential risk of a lack of confidence in the planning system 
in Leeds. 

3.83 Considerable work has taken place over the last few years to ensure that officer 
reports are robust, to improve member training and to ensure better pre-
application involvement. 

3.84 During 2012-13, 127 decisions were made by the three plans panels.  This 
compares with 171 decisions in 2011-12. 

3.85 During the year, eight decisions were made that were not in accordance with the 
planning officer’s recommendation; this represents 6.3% of the total number of 
decisions made by Members and only 0.2% of the total decisions made by the 
Local Planning Authority.  This is similar to the figure for the last two years and a 
continuous improvement over time, since the peak in 2006-07 when almost a 
quarter of decisions made were contrary to the officer’s recommendation. 

3.86 Of the eight decisions, five were refusals, of which three went onto appeal the 
decision.  All three decisions were allowed on appeal.  So far in 2013-14, there 
have been three decisions not in accordance with the officer recommendation. 

Ombudsman Complaints 

3.87 The planning service received 22 Ombudsman complaints in 2012-13 compared 
with 23 in 2011-12. Due to the restructuring of cases by the Ombudsman, these 
include requests for Preliminary Information pending full investigation.  14 of these 
were closed on arrival and required no investigation and two older full cases were 
closed during the year by Local Settlement. 

3.88 Both complaints related to officers not taking into account the amenity of existing 
homes when assessing a planning application for a new development on the 
adjacent site.  Both resulted in financial settlements to the complainants, totalling 
£6,500, because of the loss of amenity they suffered as a result of the new 
development’s implementation. 

3.89 Between April and July 2013, five Ombudsman complaints have been made, four 
of which were closed with no action required and one which was outside the 
jurisdiction of the Ombudsman. 

Embedding the Framework for Planning Matters 

Training for officers 

3.90 The service places considerable emphasis on ensuring officers are up to date with 
current legislation, best practice and government initiatives.  Regular in-service 
planning officer case workers meetings take place every six to eight weeks and 
are a forum for cascading information, inviting guest speakers and sharing of 
good practice.  The meeting allows for two way communication on a range of 
issues and is an effective forum for ensuring there is a consistent approach 

Page 28



 

 

across the planning teams.  It also ensures that officers have all the information 
they require in order to make high quality robust decisions.   

3.91 There have also been a number of in house training sessions over the year on 
issues which are topical and have an immediate impact on the operation of the 
service, including, the National Planning Policy Framework, Ethical Framework, 
material considerations, Community Infrastructure Levy, planning conditions, 
Section 106 agreements and enforcement.  The government’s planning reform 
agenda has meant that there have been many significant changes recently and 
officers have needed to keep up to date and understand the implications of the 
changes on the service in order to deal effectively with applications and make 
high quality decisions. 

3.92 A number of officers have accessed external training courses on the 
government’s reform agenda; information from the courses has been cascaded to 
colleagues at case workers meetings. 

3.93 The service is committed to learning from past errors by identifying the learning 
points arising from complaints and putting measures in place to minimise the risk 
of them occurring again.  This year, a presentation to the case workers meetings 
centred on the relationship of new development to existing properties and 
ensuring that the impact had been fully taken into account and addressed in 
officer reports.  Training has also been provided by a Local Government 
Ombudsman Investigator on the common grounds for upholding complaints and 
advised officers how to make reports as robust as possible to minimise the risk of 
challenge on decisions. 

Training for Plans Panel Members 

3.94 All members of the Plans Panel must receive prescribed compulsory training in 
order for them to be able to sit on the Plans Panel. Article 8 of the Council’s 
Constitution makes specific reference to this principle; however, nowhere does it 
say what the prescribed training comprises.  Arrangements have now been 
formalised, clarifying what is compulsory training for members and what is 
additional.  This clarity provides the assurance that sufficient training has been 
undertaken in order for members to fulfil their responsibilities correctly. 

3.95 A new training opportunity has been offered to members this year: in house 
sessions with members “shadowing” planning officers in the office environment.  
Feedback from members has been very positive with members saying they have 
a deeper understand the planning process from accessing the training. 

3.96 A range of other training and learning opportunities have been offered to 
members, including Planning Reform Update by Dr Hugh Ellis Chief Planner 
Town and Country Planning Association and through the Leeds and Bradford 
Planning training series programme, training on planning policy, heritage and 
conservation, health and housing and neighbourhood planning. 

Page 29



 

 

Relationships with Partners and Customers 

Working with partners 

3.97 The Leeds Planning and Developers Forum, a group comprising developers, 
agents, planning officers, parish councillors and community representatives 
continues to meet regularly, providing an essential forum for communication and 
for sharing ideas and best practice.  At the meeting in July 2013, a special 
meeting was held with the Plans Panel Chairs and the Executive Board Member 
for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support services, where current issues and 
concerns were discussed.   

Pre-application engagement guide 

3.98 Following a request from Scrutiny Board (Housing and Regeneration), a guide for 
developers has been produced which sets out the Council’s expectations for pre-
application engagement between developers and their advisors, ward members 
and local communities.  Although pre-application engagement is not a mandatory 
requirement, it is considered to be good practice and can lead to more successful 
developments, in a timely way using local expertise and knowledge to help shape 
the proposal.  The guide sets out the process, roles and responsibilities and 
provides clarity and transparency at the pre-application stage of a proposal. 

Customer Service 

3.99 A customer survey was carried out in January 2013 to ascertain the level of 
satisfaction with the planning service.  The survey only received a 7% response 
rate. Of those who responded, 51 % rated the service as excellent or good. 
However, the main areas highlighted for improvement were communication with 
objectors and the lack of information and notification of an application’s outcome, 
not being aware of how to track applications on Public Access and lack of 
acknowledgement to any comments made.  This resulted in respondents 
commenting that they didn’t feel their representation was taken into consideration 
when a recommendation was reached.  To avoid criticisms relating to inadequate 
consideration of the issues, or claims of unclear reasoning behind an officer’s 
recommendation, officer reports need to ensure they robustly address, among 
other things the substance of objections and the views of those who have been 
consulted and their materiality in the decision making process.  This relatively low 
level of satisfaction is a concern and a number of actions are in place to address 
the issues raised and are being progressed as part of the service’s submission for 
the Customer Service Excellence award.   Work has already been undertaken to 
improve clarity in reports, but clearly there is still more to do.  Further work is also 
in progress on Public Access to ensure that customers have all the information 
they need to understand how the process works and what happens to any 
comments made.  This will provide additional transparency and accountability to 
the process. 

3.100 Further work is planned to investigate different methods of ascertaining customer 
satisfaction levels with the aim of increasing the overall customer response rate.   

Page 30



 

 

3.101 The Development Enquiry Centre was re-awarded Customer Services Excellence 
(CSE), with no non-compliances in April 2013.  This is the first time this has been 
achieved and shows the continuous improvement of the service.  It is intended to 
start the roll out of CSE to the whole of planning services and customer services 
during 2013 with the assessment of the whole service to take place in March / 
April 2014. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Full consultation in relation to the licensing policies adopted in accordance with 
the reviews described in paragraph 3.51 above ensure that those policies take 
into account the views of both trade and public. 

4.1.2 The Council’s Performance Management Team monitor performance indicators in 
respect of consultation and engagement. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Equality and cohesion screening assessments are carried out on all reviews of 
licensing policies referred to in paragraph 3.51 above. 

4.2.2 The Council’s Performance Management Team monitor performance indicators in 
respect of equalities. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The new Best Council Plan sets out the Council’s ambition to become the best 
Council in the UK, using a civic enterprise leadership style, in which the council is 
more enterprising, businesses and partners more civic, and the citizens of Leeds 
more actively engaged in the work of the city.   

4.3.2 In conjunction with the Council’s values, particularly that of being open, honest 
and trusted, this ambition is captured in the Council’s decision making framework 
which is designed to ensure open and honest decision making, enabling 
engagement of the public with Key decisions taken by Members or officers. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 Some licence fees are set by legislation, others are open to local discretion.  The 
authority to set fees for licence applications is delegated to the relevant Director, 
however generally approval is sought via licensing committee. 

4.4.2 The council currently has to subsidise the cost of providing the Licensing Act 
licensing function in this area as the statutory fees do not cover the full costs 
associated with the process.  The Government has recognised this as an issue 
affecting licensing authorities across the country and is currently looking to review 
the regulations that will allow councils to set licence fees locally to help cover true 
costs. 

Page 31



 

 

4.4.3 When setting licence fees the authority is unable to include costs for enforcement 
against unlicensed operators, and any costs associated with certain local policies 
and schemes may also have to be borne by the authority. 

4.4.4 Fees for taxi and private hire licensing are set locally to cover the costs of 
providing the service.  The legislation states that funds raised from taxi and 
private hire licensing fees must be held in a ring-fenced account and used for 
providing the taxi and private hire licensing function only.  These arrangements 
are fully complied with in Leeds. 

4.4.5 Given the assurances made by the Head of Governance Services as a result of 
the implementation and monitoring of the Council’s decision making framework it 
is considered that the systems and processes in place represent an appropriate 
use of resources and good value for money. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The Head of Governance Services is satisfied that the arrangements put in place 
through the Council’s decision making framework meet all legal requirements. 

4.5.2 Proper implementation of the decision making framework ensures appropriate 
access to information for both elected Members and the public. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Head of Governance Services and Head of Licensing and Registration give 
assurance that the systems and processes that form part of the Council’s decision 
making framework are functioning well and that there are no risks identified by this 
report. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 From the review, assessment and ongoing monitoring carried out the Head of 
Governance Services has reached the opinion that, overall, decision making 
systems are operating soundly and that there are no fundamental control 
weaknesses 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in 
this report. 

7 Background documents5  

7.1 None 

 

                                            
5
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 32



 

 

Appendix A 

 

 
  2010 2011 2012 2013 

(1
st
 

January to 
31

st
 

August) 

Licensing 
Act 2003 

Premises 
Licences 

Number of 
applications 

1065 1006 1034 726 

Number of committee 
decisions 

134 177 152 30 

Club Premises 
Certificates 

Number of 
applications 

8 8 5 2 

Number of committee 
decisions 

3 4 2 0 

Personal 
Licences 

Number of 
applications 

498 467 517 321 

Number of committee 
decisions 

6 5 5 3 

Temporary 
Event Notices 

Number of 
applications 

1490 1741 1741 935 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 23 6 1 

Gambling 
Act 2005 

Premises 
Licences 

Number of 
applications 

12 14 14 7 

Number of committee 
decisions 

4 3 0 2 

Permits 

Number of 
applications 

94 55 13 20 

Number of committee 
decisions 

1 0 0 0 

Small Society 
Lottery 
Registrations 

Number of 
applications 

66 50 65 32 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Temporary/ 
Occasional 
Use Notices 

Number of 
applications 

4 0 0 0 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Miscellan
eous 

Marriage Act 
Premises 
Registrations 

Number of 
applications 

16 18 13 16 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Sex 
Establishment 
Licences 

Number of 
applications 

3 8 12 4 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 7 2 

Scrap Metal 
Dealers 
Registrations 

Number of 
applications 

11 21 59 24 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Motor Salvage 
Number of 
applications 

6 5 3 1 

Page 33



 

 

Operators 
Registrations 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Street 
Collection 
Permits 

Number of 
applications 

154 161 237 123 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

House to 
House 
Collection 
Permits 

Number of 
applications 

25 39 27 19 

Number of committee 
decisions 

0 0 0 0 

Hypnotist 
Licences 

Number of 
applications 

2 2 2 3 

Number of committee 
decisions 

1 0 0 0 

 

 

Page 34



 

 

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive 

Report to the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 

Date: 20 September 2013 

Subject: Annual Assurance Report on Risk & Performance Management 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. This annual report provides Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with 
assurances on the strength of the Council’s risk and performance management 
arrangements and is an important source of evidence for the Annual Governance 
Statement due to be approved by the Committee at today’s meeting.   

2. The arrangements have been further developed, improved and updated during 
2012/13.  Compliance with the risk management policy and performance management 
framework is good and further work is planned in 2013/14 to continue to develop and 
improve the supporting arrangements.   

3. While we can never be complacent, and some risks lie outside our control, this report 
provides the Committee with a high level of assurance on the strength of the risk and 
performance management arrangements currently in place across the authority. 

Recommendations 

4. Corporate Governance & Audit Committee is asked to receive the annual report on the 
Council’s risk and performance management arrangements and note the assurances 
given.   

 Report author: Coral Main 

Tel:  51572  

Agenda Item 8

Page 35



 

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1. This annual report provides Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with 
assurances on the strength of the Council’s risk and performance management 
arrangements and is an important source of evidence for the Annual Governance 
Statement due to be approved by the Committee on September 20th with the 
Statement of Accounts.  It also enables the Committee to fulfil its role under the 
Council’s Risk Management Policy and the Committee’s own Terms of Reference 
for reviewing the ‘adequacy of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements 
(including matters such as internal control and risk management)’.   

2. Background information 

2.1. The ‘main issues’ section of the report provides assurances on the Council’s Risk 
Management Policy and Performance Management Framework, summarises the 
main risk and performance arrangements and outlines future plans to further 
improve them.   

3. Main issues 

3.1. The strength of our risk and performance management arrangements stems from 
the authority’s Risk Management Policy and Performance Management Framework.  
The tables below give high-level assurance with respect to ensuring these are 
adequate, complied with and up to date.   

Risk Management 

Name of Policy Risk Management Policy 

Is it up to date? Yes: fully revised in 2011, minor amendments in November 2012 

Is it fit for 
purpose? 

Yes: following extensive benchmarking and reviews against British and 
International Standards on Risk Management and other good practice guides, 
the Policy was updated in October 2011, approved by the Corporate Risk 
Management Group and this Committee and endorsed by the Chief Executive 
and the Council Leader.  It was also reviewed by the Corporate 
Communications team to ensure it complied with ‘Plain English’ requirements.  
Minor amendments have been made since to reflect the role and membership 
of the Risk & Performance Board which replaced the Corporate Risk 
Management Group in November 2012. 

How is it 
communicated? 

All key stakeholders were consulted with prior to the major revision of the 
Policy.  The Policy now forms part of the ‘Policies & Procedures’ section of the 
Council’s revised Intranet site and so is accessible to all staff with Internet 
access.  In addition, it is available to members of the public as a background 
paper to the Executive Board annual report (latest report: 17/7/13).  The 
authority’s Risk Management Unit references the Policy, particularly the section 
on Roles and Responsibilities, in its training sessions to staff and elected 
members. 

Is it routinely 
complied with? 

Yes: members of the Risk & Performance Board are responsible for ensuring 
compliance with the Policy within their directorates.  For 2012-13, members of 
the Board have confirmed they are satisfied with the level of compliance of their 
directorate arrangements.   

How is it 
monitored? 

The Policy is reviewed annually by the Risk Management Unit or as appropriate 
and in response to changes in legislation, Council policy and risk management 
standards.  Any such changes will continue to be consulted upon. 

 

Performance Management 

Name Performance Management Framework 

Is it up to date? Yes: the performance management arrangements were substantially 

Page 36



 

 

Performance Management 

overhauled in 2011 to take account of the new strategic plans approved in July 
2011 and the adoption of Outcomes-Based Accountability principles.  The new 
Performance Management Framework was further revised in March 2012 to 
build on the learning in implementing the new arrangements.  However, it 
remains draft pending the outcomes of the current review of performance 
management (see ‘Future Improvements’ section below). 

Is it fit for 
purpose? 

Yes: the framework was benchmarked with Core City and West Yorkshire local 
authorities.  It builds on good practice such as the Audit Commission’s Use of 
Resources inspection criteria that were previously used to judge the council’s 

performance arrangements.   

How is it 
communicated? 

All key stakeholders were consulted with prior to the major revision of the 
framework.  This Committee reviewed the framework in January 2012.  The 
framework is accessible to all staff with Intranet access on the Council’s Insite 
Intranet site.   

Is it routinely 
complied with? 

Yes: members of the Risk & Performance Board are responsible for ensuring 
compliance with the framework within their directorates.  For 2012-13, members 
of the Board have confirmed they are satisfied with the level of compliance of 
their directorate arrangements.   

How is it 
monitored? 

The corporate performance team reviews the framework in response to 
changes in legislation and good practice and as required.  

Risk & Performance Reporting 

3.2. In 2012/13, building on the work begun the previous year, further improvements 
were made to integrating risk and performance reporting leading to the formal 
disbanding of the Corporate Risk Management Group and the Performance Board.  
These were merged in November 2012 to form the Risk & Performance Board.  
The corporate risk and performance teams support the Risk & Performance Board 
and draw up a quarterly snapshot of the risk and performance information by 
directorate as well as HR, Internal Audit reports, external inspections etc.  The Risk 
& Performance Board reviews and challenges this combined information and 
considers the key issues to report to the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) and 
Executive Board.  The data is drawn on to help inform the Chief Executive’s 
appraisals of his directors.  Scrutiny Boards review the performance information 
each quarter. 

Risk Management 

3.3. A range of risk registers are in place across the Council at directorate, service, 
budget, programme and project levels.  Specific assurances are given to this 
Committee and other member groups on financial risk management and on various 
projects upon request.  Key risks are reported upwards and considered in line with 
the relevant governance arrangements: e.g. budget risks to the Financial 
Performance Group and then to CLT and Executive Board; project risks to project 
boards; directorate risks to directorate management teams.  The CLT reporting 
guidance was revised earlier this year and now includes a mandatory requirement 
to detail the key risks to that decision/policy/project.  This requirement remains for 
all other reports to a Committee (excluding Plans Panel or Licensing Committee), 
Executive Board and if a key or other delegated decision is required. 

3.4. The most significant risks from these registers and reports are escalated as 
required, ultimately up to the corporate risk register (CRR), which also incorporates 
a ‘RAG’ review of all the Council’s programmes and major projects.  The CRR is a 

Page 37



 

 

live document with risks moving up and down over the year, thereby evidencing the 
maturity of our review and challenge processes.  It was last reviewed by the Risk & 
Performance Board and Corporate Leadership Team in May1 and contains 22 risks 
of which 6 have been given the highest ‘red’ rating.  This rating is a combination of 
the probability of the risk materialising and its potential impact if it did and so some 
risks score highly as a consequence of their impact score.  A detailed report 
providing assurance on the arrangements in place to help mitigate the 10 most 
significant corporate risk areas2 was provided to the Executive Board on 17th July.   

3.5. Executive portfolio holders regularly review risk information and the Risk 
Management Unit engages with all Executive members to review the corporate risk 
register as part of an annual risk management briefing.  In 2012/13, we widened 
this review to gain an understanding of Executive members’ requirements of the 
risk and performance information they receive.3   

3.6. Along with our horizon scanning exercises (for example, through media monitoring, 
review of reports to members and external assessment reports and benchmarking 
our risk register against those of other organisations, including those of the Core 
City local authorities), these processes provide the Committee with a significant 
source of assurance on the rigour of the Council’s corporate risk register and that it 
accurately reflects both members’ and officers’ concerns.   

Performance Management 

3.7. The corporate performance management arrangements focus on the strategic 
priorities and ensure that a high-level update on each of these is provided to key 
officers and members, including Executive Board and Scrutiny Boards.  These 
provide a comprehensive but succinct update to enable further discussion, 
investigation, reports and action to explore any performance issues and to drive 
improvement.  More detailed performance monitoring is carried out at directorate 
level and brought together corporately via the Risk & Performance Board.  

3.8. The annual State of the City Report helps provide an additional check on progress 
against our strategic priorities and informs an analysis of cross-cutting issues such 
as poverty and health inequalities.  It also provides some evidence to support or 
challenge whether the city and council priorities are still the right ones.  The 2013 
report is currently being drafted.  

3.9. During 2012/13, the corporate performance team led the review and drawing up of 
the Best Council Plan 2013-17: a streamlined, outcomes-based strategic plan 
closely aligned with the medium-term financial plan that was approved by Council 
on 1st July following extensive consultation.  It includes a new set of performance 
indicators, measures and milestones for each priority and outcome with success 
measures agreed for 2013/14 as well as 2017 to enable progress tracking.   

3.10. Supporting this, a new, simplified service planning template and guidance was 
approved by the Risk & Performance Board last autumn and has now been rolled 

                                            
1
 The August 2013 quarterly review and reporting of risk and performance management information was suspended 
pending the outcomes of the review of our performance management arrangements. 
2
 Safeguarding children; Safeguarding adults; School places; Welfare changes; Leeds economy; City resilience 
(emergency planning); City flooding; Financial management; Council resilience (business continuity planning); Health & 
Safety. 
3
 The same review was due to take place with this Committee earlier in the year but was cancelled due to heavy snow.  
We shall reschedule for later this year. 

Page 38



 

 

out.  The plans articulate how a service expects to contribute to delivering the 
outcomes and improvement priorities set out in the strategic planning framework 
and provide a vital link from these plans through to team plans and personal 
development plans.  Service plans are an essential tool for making rational and co-
ordinated decisions about future levels of service provision and how resources, 
people and assets are deployed.  They should therefore link service, workforce and 
financial planning and risk management.  All 45 service plans were received and 
published by 26th June.  This achievement should not be understated as it is the 
first time in several years that all services have a published plan available. 

Future Improvements 

3.11. In July 2013, following the ‘Enabling Corporate Centre’ review, the previously 
separate corporate risk and performance teams were brought together within a 
new ‘Strategy & Improvement’ division, part of the Strategy & Resources 
Directorate.  This ‘Risk & Performance’ team is, at the time of writing, working with 
directorate colleagues to review our performance management arrangements – 
and thereby also risk management reporting – in line with the following broad 
principles:  

Ø  A more outcome-focused approach aimed at telling the story by drawing together 
and analysing a range of data rather than necessarily focusing on individual ‘red’ 
performance indicators.  This could include better use of the State of the City 
analysis in assessing wider progress against the City Priorities. 

Ø  Streamlined, ‘by exception’ and, if possible, more ‘real-time’ reporting with 
directorates taking the lead but with the corporate team continuing to provide 
support and oversight. 

Ø  Ensuring that, whilst bureaucracy is kept to the minimum necessary to support 
monitoring and reporting, appropriate directorate and corporate governance 
arrangements are maintained so that we can continue to provide assurance on both 
risk and performance across the authority.  

3.12. Alongside the review, other improvements for this year include: 

Ø  Full roll-out of the risk management software: the software successfully went live in 
2012/13 and is now being rolled out.  The initial focus is on directorate budget risk 
registers and directorate risk registers. 

Ø  Refresh of all directorate risk registers – and thus the corporate risk register – 
through workshops with directorate management teams to align them with the new 
Best Council Plan and revised performance indicators.  The corporate risk team will 
also continue to provide risk workshops for specific projects and business change 
proposals.   

Ø  Through these workshops, training will be provided through which we shall 
emphasise the importance of using risk management as a tool to help make 
informed decisions.  As an enterprising, innovative organisation operating in an 
increasingly challenging environment, making such decisions will require us to 
become less risk averse than we have perhaps been perceived and actively take 
risks where appropriate.  

Ø  Integrating Public Health into our risk and performance arrangements and working 
with the Environment & Housing Directorate to make adjustments as needed 
through the ALMO review.  

Page 39



 

 

4. Corporate Considerations  

4.1. Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 We have engaged with Risk & Performance Board colleagues on the contents of 
this report.  Consultation is underway with relevant colleagues and members on the 
performance management review. 

4.2. Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This is an assurance report and not a decision so due regard is not directly relevant.   

4.3. Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 Under Principle 4 of the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, the authority 
should take, ‘informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and risk management’.  The risk management framework, in support of the 
Risk Management Policy we have in place in the authority, supports this. 

4.3.2 Using a structured and consistent risk management approach to focus discussion, 
prioritise resources and enable justifiable risk-taking will help the successful delivery 
of the Council and City priorities.  The performance arrangements described in this 
report ensure that progress is monitored in their delivery. 

4.4. Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 These arrangements are resourced through existing teams across the council and 
therefore have no specific resource implications. 

4.5. Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 Without robust risk management arrangements, the Council could be in breach of 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which require us to have ‘a sound system 
of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.’  (Section 4.1)   

4.5.2 There is no specific statutory duty to have performance management arrangements 
but, alongside risk management, it is a core principle of good governance and as 
such assurance is required on them in order for this Committee to approve the 
authority’s Annual Governance Statement.  All performance information is published 
on the Council’s website.  

4.5.3 This is an assurance report and not a decision so is not subject to call in. 

4.6. Risk Management 

4.6.1 Without effective risk and performance management arrangements, there is a 
danger that the most significant risks and issues that could impact upon the Council 
and Leeds are not properly identified and managed.   

5. Conclusions 

5.1. The council’s risk and performance management arrangements have been further 
developed, improved and updated during 2012/13.  Compliance with the risk 
management policy and performance management framework is good although 
further work is planned in 2013/14 to continue to develop and improve the 
supporting arrangements.   

Page 40



 

 

5.2. While we can never be complacent, and some risks lie outside our control, this 
report provides the Committee with a high level of assurance on the strength of the 
risk and performance management arrangements currently in place across the 
authority. 

6. Recommendations 

6.1. Corporate Governance & Audit Committee is asked to receive the annual report on 
the Council’s risk and performance management arrangements and note the 
assurances given. 

7. Background documents 

7.1. None 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013 

Subject: Financial Planning and Management Arrangements 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. Given the significant financial challenge the Council is facing, ensuring that we have 
in place appropriate arrangements to deliver sound financial management and 
planning is perhaps more critical than ever before. 

2. The Responsible Financial Officer has established appropriate overarching controls 
for the financial management of the Council’s affairs. 

3. These controls are subject to a number of independent assessments. In particular 
Internal Audit has reviewed and given substantial assurance on the Council’s main 
financial processes, the integrity of the accounts and the accuracy of the major 
financial systems. 

4. External Audit also gives independent assurance on the accounts and accounting 
practice; the Authority arrangements to ensure value for money and the controls on 
the Authority’s key financial systems. 

5. A full internal review of the Council’s financial arrangements will be undertaken in 
2013/14 in line with CIPFAs best practice on the roles and responsibilities of the 
Responsible Financial Officer. 

6. A number of improvements to systems and procedures have already been identified 
and will be undertaken as part of the review.  

Recommendations 

7. Members of the Corporate Governance and Audit committee are asked: 

• To note the assurances provided that the appropriate systems and 
procedures are in place to ensure that the Council delivers sound financial 
management and planning, and  

 Report author:  Doug Meeson 

Tel:  x74250 

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



 

 

• To consider whether there are any areas where further information would be 
helpful to the Committee in order to provide additional assurance as to the 
adequacy of these controls. 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 Given the significant financial challenge that the Council is facing, ensuring that we 
have in place appropriate arrangements to deliver sound financial management 
and planning is perhaps more critical than ever before. This report outlines the key 
systems and procedures which are in place to deliver such arrangements whilst 
ensuring the maintenance of adequate reserves.  

1.2 The report covers in detail the key components of the Council’s financial 
management arrangements and aims to give members assurance that these 
systems and procedures are fit for purpose, up to date, embedded and being 
complied with. 

2 Background information 

2.1 In accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, each local 
authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs and to appoint a Responsible Financial Officer to have 
responsibility for those arrangements.  In Leeds the Section 151 Officer is the 
Deputy Chief Executive.  

2.2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in their 
Statement on the role of the Responsible Financial Officer in Local Government 
provides further guidance on the role, stating that the Responsible Financial 
Officer must:  

• be a key member of the Leadership Team, helping it to develop, implement 
and resource the authority’s strategic objectives; 

• be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all material 
business decisions; and 

• lead the promotion and delivery of good financial management so that public 
money is safeguarded at all times and used appropriately, economically, 
efficiently and effectively. 

 To deliver these responsibilities the Responsible Financial Officer must lead and 
direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and must be 
professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

2.3 In the context of this report the Responsible Financial Officer is also required 
under statute to: 

• Report to Council on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacies of 
financial reserves (Local Government Act 2007).  The relevant sections of 
the 2013/14 budget report to Council relating to this duty are attached at 
appendix A. 

• Certify that the accounts are a true and fair view of the Councils’ financial 
position (Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011). 

Page 44



 

 

• Ensure that the Council’s financial systems accurately record the financial 
transactions; enable the prevention and detection of inaccuracies and fraud 
and ensure risk is appropriately managed (Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2011).  

The financial procedures and controls put in place by the Responsible Financial 
Officer form a fundamental part of the assurances received by this Committee 
when approving the Annual Governance Statement as required by the Accounts & 
Audit Regulations 2011. 

3.0 Main issues 

3.1 Overarching Controls 

3.1.1 In order for the Council’s statutory Responsible Financial Officer to discharge their 
duties a number of overarching arrangements and controls have been established: 

• The strategic role within the Council of the Responsible Financial Officer; 

• Professionally qualified  and accountable staff; 

• Financial Regulations; 

• The monitoring of the Integrity of financial systems; 

• A framework for the Council’s Treasury Management arrangements. 

3.1.2 The following section summarises how these overarching arrangements and 
controls operate within the Council.  

3.1.3 The Deputy Chief Executive, in the role of the Council’s Responsible Financial 
Officer, undertakes a strategic role on the Corporate Leadership Team and has 
established appropriate arrangements to discharge his responsibilities in line with 
the recommended CIPFA recommended practice as outlined in para 2.3 above. 

3.1.4 Financial management, within the Council, both corporately and within directorates 
is delivered by colleagues who are managerially responsible to the Deputy Chief 
Executive. Many of the senior colleagues within the financial management 
services are professionally qualified with many years of experience, and are 
themselves personally and professionally responsible for their actions and advice. 
This is reinforced through an appraisal scheme which incorporates identification of 
key skills for finance staff, programmes of continuing professional development 
and peer review forums to ensure integrity as to the accounts and budget 
monitoring processes. 

3.1.5 The service has recognised that as staff numbers are reduced, the service needs 
to be redesigned, in order to continue to be effective.  The Financial Services 
Management Team has established a number of actions contained within the 
Service Plan for providing a holistic approach to the delivery of effective financial 
management with fewer resources. These actions include: 

• To review service delivery in consultation with stakeholders and in the 
context of the vision; 

• To develop and implement a new service offer which continues to deliver key 
service and Council priorities within a substantial reduced resource envelope 
with a reduction in cost of the order of 30%  over the next 3/4 years;   

Page 45



 

 

• Development training in order to ensure our colleagues have the right skills to 
deliver the redesigned service; 

• Succession planning to deal with the loss of experienced staff and reduce the 
impact on service delivery. 

As well as the above plans, a number of service changes have already been 
implemented including the creation of an accounting hub; centralisation of the 
capital finance teams and the implementation of a standardised approach to 
budget monitoring of staffing costs.  

In addition, as outlined in a report to this Committee on the 22nd April 2013, the 
Capital Approvals framework has been improved to strengthen accountability for 
capital decisions and streamline the decision making process.  As the capital 
programme is now fully funded, checks previously required to control capital 
expenditure within resources available are no longer required.  New capital 
investment, unless externally grant funded, will require a revenue budget to meet 
the debt costs of borrowing.  Control of the capital programme is therefore done 
through monitoring of the debt budget within revenue. 

3.1.6 The Council has a number of well established overarching Financial Regulations 
contained within the Council’s constitution. It is however recognised that these 
regulations need updating to reflect the changing financial risks faced by modern 
Councils. To this end the Council’s Financial Regulations are being redrafted to 
ensure they are fit for purpose and are due to be issued shortly. Each Regulation 
will be accompanied by an Intranet Toolkits to provide appropriate guidance.   

3.1.7 Ensuring the integrity of the accounts is as important to our budget monitoring 
processes as it is to the accounts, and this is a key role of the Integrity Forum 
which includes senior finance staff and is chaired by the Chief Officer – Financial 
Services. Appendix B provides the terms of reference and identified the coverage 
of the work of the forum. 

3.1.8 The Council also has tried and trusted arrangements for treasury management 
based on CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the Prudential 
Code. This Committee received a separate report on the robustness of these 
arrangements on the 9th November 2012.  

3.2 The Main Financial Processes 

3.2.1 The above arrangements are intrinsic to all the financial procedures and processes 
undertaken by the Council but are perhaps best illustrated in practice through the 
main financial cycle which covers: 

• Budget preparation and setting. 

• In year budget monitoring. 

• Closure of accounts and reporting. 

3.2.2 Budget Preparation and Setting 

3.2.2.1 Local authorities are under a statutory duty to set a budget each year.  Whilst this 
can simply be seen as an annual exercise, there is a recognition that this needs to 
be set within a context of a medium term financial strategy.  The Council has 
adopted a number of approaches to medium term financial planning over the last 

Page 46



 

 

10 years.  The scale of the challenge presented by Spending Review 2010 has 
however meant that the Council has had to respond very quickly to significant 
reductions in its level of government grants. Taking account of reductions in 
government grants to the Council and other spending pressures, by the end of the 
current year, the Council will have had to deliver savings and other reductions in 
the order of £200m, and faces further cuts in its government grants over the next 
two years in excess of £80m. Whilst it is not clear when the current austerity within 
the public finances will come to an end, it is evident that by its end, the Council will 
be a very different organisation, employing a lot less people than it did in 2010/11. 

 
3.2.2.2 The Medium Term Financial Strategy does not attempt to provide a detailed 

budget for the next two years but it does set out the main financial pressures 
facing the Council and sets out a broad framework for the delivery of efficiencies 
and savings to bridge the identified funding gap.  This financial strategy will be 
updated annually via reports to the Executive Board. 

3.2.2.3 The budget as well as a financial expression of the Council’s policies and priorities, 
is also a means of controlling spending to the available resources. The budget 
process is led by the Deputy Chief Executive and involves a wide range of officers 
and members across the Council.  The process starts soon after the budget setting 
of the previous year with an early assessment of available funding and key 
pressures.  Undertaking such an assessment involves a whole set of assumptions 
including government grant, Council Tax base, inflation, trends and new or 
developing spending pressures.  This part of the process will be led by Corporate 
Finance staff, but will involve financial and non-financial staff based in directorates.  
The process will, at such an early stage, invariably identify a budget shortfall.  This 
high level exercise will be subject to a number of iterations with assumptions being 
subject to regular review and reassessment.  

3.2.2.4 Directorates start to prepare and input detailed estimates into the budget module 
of the Council’s Financial Management System (FMS) in late summer. These are 
done at cost centre level and involve budget holders reviewing their spending 
requirements in conjunction with directorate based finance staff and in accordance 
with the corporately determined guidelines.  

3.2.2.5 The development of options to balance to available resources is a key aspect in 
any budget process and needs to balance both capital and revenue pressures. 
This clearly can be a difficult area of work and whilst needing to be pragmatic and 
sufficient, it is crucial that the process reflects the Council’s policies and priorities.  
This is ensured through close engagement of senior officers and Executive Board 
portfolio Members at appropriate points in the process. 

3.2.2.6 Following consultation, the Councils constitution determines that initial budget 
proposals are submitted to Scrutiny 8 weeks prior to the Council’s budget meeting.  
In practice this is after Executive Board approval, and requires the proposals to be 
submitted to the December meeting of the Board.  Whilst the initial budget 
proposals are not in the same level of detail as submitted to full Council in 
February, this part of the process has  been subject to development over the last 
few years, and certainly those submitted for 2013/14 to December Executive 
Board being the most comprehensive and developed to date.  This was 
recognised by the Leaders of all political grouping on the Council. 

Page 47



 

 

3.2.2.7 Budget preparation and setting is a demanding process and operates to strict 
timescales.  This places an emphasis upon not just planning but also 
engagement with Councillors and Senior Management. 

3.2.2.8 The budget is in many ways an exercise in managing risk.  With limited 
resources, it is inevitable that elements of the budget will depend upon actions 
which have yet to happen, or upon assumptions that may in reality vary from 
those assumed at budget setting.  As such an important element of the budget 
process is the development and maintenance of a budget risk register which 
attempts to identify and assess the risks built into the budget estimates.  It is 
important to appreciate that the time frame of the budget risk register is just one 
budget year. The budget risk register not only assists in assessing the 
robustness of the estimates but also acts as a means of assessing the adequacy 
of reserves in that it provides an assessment of what may go wrong in year.   

3.2.2.9 Reaching a view of the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of 
resources not only requires consideration of the processes and systems used in 
preparing the estimates, but also a consideration of the strength of the 
arrangement in place for internal financial control including  budget monitoring, 
and these are further discussed in the section 3.4 below.  

3.2.2.10 Along with member scrutiny, the budget process is subject to Internal Audit 
review. In addition external audit, as part of their assessment of financial 
resilience, provided assurances as to the robustness of the budget itself. 

3.3 In Year Budget Monitoring 

3.3.1 Budget monitoring is a continuous process which operates at a variety of levels 
throughout the Council.  Although directors are ultimately responsible for the 
delivery of their directorate budget, operationally these responsibilities are 
devolved down to around 600 budget holders within the Council.  Every budget 
has a named budget holder who is responsible for managing and monitoring 
income and expenditure against the approved budget. 

3.3.2 Financial Monitoring in the Council is facilitated by the Council’s Financial        
Management System.  The system holds information as to approved budgets, 
actual spend and income and commitments.  On a monthly basis budget holders 
review their spend to date, against the approved estimates and against profiled 
estimates.  In addition, budget holders are also required to predict their end of year 
position which is done with the assistance of directorate finance staff, and clearly 
does involve a degree of judgement.  In practice some budgets are more difficult to 
control and project than others. A new development being currently rolled out is a 
new system for projecting staffing costs, which will enable staffing projections to be 
done more efficiently.  There are also instances where spending is controlled on 
systems other than the Council’s FMS, for example community care payments.  In 
these instances, procedures are in place to ensure that information held in these 
systems is regularly reconciled to FMS.     

3.3.3 Financial monitoring is undertaken and operates on a hierarchical basis, whereby 
the monthly projections of budget holders are aggregated upwards to be reviewed 
by Chief Officers, and Directors. The projections for each directorate are submitted 

Page 48



 

 

to the Director of Resources and are reviewed and challenged by the Finance 
Performance Group (FPG). This Group is made up of senior finance staff and 
chaired by the Chief Officer - Financial Services. The projections are then reported 
monthly to the Corporate Leadership Team and the Executive Board. As well as 
being accurate, monitoring also needs to be timely, and as such monthly reporting 
is operated according to a strict timetable. In addition, aAt each monthly FPG 
meeting, monitoring statements in relation to the capital programme and debt are 
also reviewed.  Monitoring reports on the capital programme and Treasury strategy 
are considered during the year by Executive Board. 

3.3.4 In line with the Council’s values of Spending Money Wisely, it is critical that where 
projected overspends are identified that action is taken to bring spending back into 
line with the approved estimates or to identify other sources of funding such as 
areas of under spend. In year, any decision to amend budgets is undertaken within 
the virement rules agreed annually by full Council as part of the budget setting 
process. All such decisions are recorded as part of the delegated decision making 
process.  

3.3.5 It is also  important to appreciate that external audit also review our budget and 
budget monitoring arrangements in order to assess whether they are satisfied that, 
in all significant respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

3.4 Closure of Accounts 

3.4.1 The first stages of the closedown process is a natural extension of the budget 
monitoring arrangements with budget holders compiling the final figures for their 
areas of responsibility to determine an outturn position to be reported to Executive 
Board. This report compares the budget to the final outturn for each Directorate 
and provides an explanation as to the reason for any variance, including 
explanations of major variations on individual capital schemes. This comparison to 
the budget provides a clear indication as to the robustness of the original budget 
setting and the quality of the budget monitoring process. 

3.4.2 Alongside the budget monitoring process, significant accounting decisions are 
referred to the technical accounting team to ensure compliance with applicable 
accounting standards. KPMG are also consulted on such decisions to ensure they 
are agreed by all parties before a major financial decision is made.  

3.4.3 All changes to accounting practice are assessed and, where applicable, 
implemented by specialist officers in Corporate Financial Management. All finance 
officers and relevant directorate officers are informed of the implications of any 
changes. The application of appropriate accounting practice is assessed by the 
Council’s external auditors and reported back to members of this committee. 

3.4.4 The Chief Officer Financial Services oversees the closedown process and the 
Deputy Chief Executive reviews both the accounts themselves and the processes 
used to compile them, before certifying signing them as a true and fair view.  The 
Council’s external auditors provide members with independent assurance that, in 
their opinion, the accounts do reflect a true and fair view of the Council’s financial 
position and that they comply with proper accounting practice.     

Page 49



 

 

3.4.5 New accounting requirements and outturn projections are taken into account when 
the budgets are set for the following year. 

3.5 Assessing our Financial Management arrangements 

3.5.1 The Council to date has managed to achieve £145m savings over the past 2 years 
and by the end of 2014/15 will have achieved savings of over £200m. 

3.5.2 In recognition of the risks involved, Internal Audit undertakes a significant number 
of audits including: 

• the financial management controls in respect of the budget, budget monitoring 
and accounts process; 

• the integrity of the accounts; and 

• all major financial systems. 

3.5.3  External Audit also provides a number of important assurances, including: 

• independent assurance that, in their opinion, the accounts reflect a true and 
fair view of the Council’s financial position and that they comply with proper 
accounting practice;  

• That the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources;  

• That the controls on the Authority’s key financial systems are sufficient to 
produce materially reliable figures for inclusion in the financial statements. 

3.5.4 A number of tools have also been used internally to test the strength of our 
financial management arrangements. These tend to identify areas of good practice 
in order to drive improvement rather than providing an overall score.  

3.5.5 One such tool is CIPFA’s review model for assessing compliance with good 
practice in respect of the role of the Responsible Financial Officer in Local 
Government. This model covers all aspects of the role of the Responsible 
Financial Officer including: 

• The quality of systems and processes for financial administration and control; 

• The adequacy of Medium term financial planning process; 

• Timely, accurate and appropriate provision of financial information and advise; 

• Effective stewardship of public monies; 

• Effective working relationship with internal and external audit; 

• Compliance with CIPFA codes on the Prudential Framework for Capital 
finance and Treasury Management; 

• Members understanding of their financial roles and responsibilities and the 
access to financial skills and training in order to discharge these 
responsibilities.  

A full and comprehensive assessment of the Council’s financial arrangements 
using this model was undertaken by the Responsible Financial Officer in 2011. 

Page 50



 

 

The assessment found that the Council had substantial levels of assurance on its 
financial arrangements. The review did however identify one weakness that 
needed addressing, namely that Financial Regulations needed updating.   

3.5.6 Grant Thornton in their November 2011 publication “Surviving the storm: how 
resilient are local authorities” reported on their national programme of financial 
health reviews, and identified best practice under the following four headings: 

• Key indicators of financial performance 

• Strategic financial planning 
• Financial governance 
• Financial controls 

Most of the issues raised in the report have been assessed via the CIPFA model 
as outlined in para 3.5.5 above as well as within the annual service planning 
undertaken by the Finance Services. However the report does recognise the need 
for Councils to measure key indicators of financial performance and to compare 
these measures with those of other Authorities.  

As part of the Bond market arrangements for the Little London and Beeston PFI 
scheme, Standards & Poors undertook an independent review of the Council’s 
financial health indicators and compared it to other comparable Local Authorities. 
The review looked at all aspects of the Council’s financial standing in order to 
provide investor assurances that the Council was a reliable, low risk investment 
prospect. The review concluded this was the case.  

3.5.7 It is proposed that a full review is undertaken of the Council’s financial 
management arrangements using CIPFA’s model for assessing compliance with 
good practice in respect of the role of the Responsible Financial Officer in Local 
Government. This review will be undertaken once the Council’s financial services 
have been redesigned in line with the proposals set out in its service plan, but 
recognising that this is a dynamic process.. 

3.6 Future Challenges 

3.6.1 Whilst budget monitoring arrangements remain effective there are areas which 
need to be improved. Staffing costs remain the biggest area of budget spend for 
the Council and need to be effectively monitored. In particular the monitoring of 
staffing within Children’s Services has been identified as an area for  improvment 
and work is on-going to introduce a more comprehensive and effective system for 
monitoring these costs.      

3.6.2 The last few years has seen a shift in the way the Government has looked at 
funding local government initiatives. In particular significant amounts of money are 
now been given to city regions rather than to individual local authorities. In addition 
decision making is now often being made in conjunction with local businesses and 
other partners via company and other arrangements. The legal, accounting and 
taxation arrangements for these entities and partnership are a new challenge 
facing the Council and Financial Services are working closely with our partners to 
ensure proper financial governance arrangements are put in place for each 
separate arrangement.  

Page 51



 

 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1  Extensive consultation was undertaken as part of the budget setting process, as 
outlined in the Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2013/14 report to Full Council on 
the 27th February 2013. This report has no direct issues requiring consultation or 
engagement. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 A specific equality impact assessment of the budget at a strategic level was 
undertaken and was report to Full Council on the 27th February 2013 as part of 
the Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2013/14. This report has no direct equality 
and diversity / cohesion issues. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 As expressed within the Council Business Plan 2011 – 2015, spending money 
wisely is one of the Council’s values, with the priority being for directorates to 
keep within their budgets.  Ensuring that the Council has appropriate systems and 
procedures are in place to sound financial management and planning is clearly a 
key aspect and as such this report does provide some assurances, albeit not 
comprehensive, assurance that money is being spent wisely. 

4.3.2 The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee require 
the Committee to consider the adequacy of the Council’s policies and practices to 
ensure compliance with statutory guidance and the adequacy of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance arrangements. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 This report deals with the Council’s financial management arrangements and is 
aimed at providing assurance to members as to their fitness for purpose.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The statutory responsibilities of the Council’s responsible financial officer are 
defined under the Local Government Act 2007 and Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2011. The report does not require a key or major decision and is therefore not 
subject to call-in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 A full risk register of all budget risks in accordance with current practice is 
maintained and subject to quarterly review. Any significant and new risks are 
contained in the budget monitoring reports submitted to each meeting of the 
Executive Board, together with any slippage on savings.  

4.6.2 The Council’s external auditors provide a risk assessment on the Council’s 
financial resilience and the accounts process as part of their interim audit. As part 
of the interim report, officers are able to outline the processes put in place to 
mitigate these risks.   

Page 52



 

 

4.6.3 In addition to the above, there are a number of risks which are monitored through 
the Corporate and the directorate risk registers, these being: 

Corporate Risk Register  

• Council’s financial position goes into significant deficit in the current year 
resulting in reserves (actual or projected) being less than the minimum 
specified by the Council’s risk-based reserves policy; 

• Failure to address medium-term financial pressures in a sustainable way. 

Resources Directorate Risk Register 

• Failure to comply with statutory deadlines (e.g. Statement of Accounts / 
Budget / RO and RA forms); 

• Risk of provision of poor financial advice that results in poor financial 
decisions across the authority.  This could lead to the financial ledger being 
inaccurate or out of date. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 Whilst this report does not attempt to provide a comprehensive assessment of all 
the systems and controls required to discharge the statutory responsibilities of the 
Responsible Financial Officer, it does provide a summary of the coverage 
provided by the key controls.  

5.2 The Responsible Financial Officer has established a framework of financial 
management controls and processes which, in his opinion, discharge his statutory 
responsibilities. It can be concluded that the framework of controls outlined in this 
report are fit for purpose, up to date, embedded and regularly complied with. 
Members can also take assurance from  a number of rigorous reviews and 
assessments undertaken, including: 

• External Audit have provided the following assurances: 

o Independent assurance that, in their opinion, the accounts reflect a true 
and fair view of the Council’s financial position and that they comply with 
proper accounting practice.  

o That the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. In particular, the 
Council has been able to deliver its savings plans and has a robust budget 
and budget monitoring processes in place to mitigate the significant risks 
presented by the current financial challenges.   

o That the controls on the Authority’s key financial systems are sufficient to 
produce materially reliable figures for inclusion in the financial statements. 

• Internal audit assessed: 

o The financial management controls in respect of the budget, budget 
monitoring and accounts process and given substantial assurance as to 
the control environment and compliance for all these key financial 
processes. 

o The process of ensuring the integrity of the accounts., Providing 
substantial assurance that financial controls are in place to ensure the 

Page 53



 

 

integrity of  the Council’s financial information held on its financial ledger 
(FMS). 

o All major financial systems and given either good or substantial 
assurance on the financial controls in place. 

• Member scrutiny via Scrutiny Boards, Executive Board and Full Council 
ensures that the budget meets the Council’s priorities. In addition the 
Corporate Governance & Audit Committee approve the Council’s accounts. 

• Officer review of the budget and budget monitoring processes through 
Finance Performance Group, directorates management teams and the 
Corporate Leadership Team.   

5.3 Whilst the above arrangements should provide members with substantial 
assurance that the Council does have in place appropriate systems and 
procedures to deliver sound financial management and planning, it is important 
that this is kept under review, and the report  identified a number of ways (para 
3.5.5 & 3.5.6) in which we will review these arrangements going forward. 

5.4 As part of this review process specific attention will be given to the issues raised 
in para 3.6.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members of the Corporate Governance and Audit committee are asked: 

• To note the assurances provided that the appropriate systems and 
procedures are in place to ensure that the Council delivers sound financial 
management and planning, and  

• To consider whether there are any areas where further information would be 
helpful to the Committee in order to provide additional assurance as to the 
adequacy of these controls. 

7 Background documents1  

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 54



Appendix A 
 

Extract from the Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2013/14 report to Full 
Council on the 27th February  
 
ROBUSTNESS OF THE BUDGET AND THE ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 
 
1.1 The Local Government Act (Part II) 2003 placed a requirement upon the 

Council's statutory finance officer (The Director of Resources) to report to 
members on the robustness of the budget estimates and the adequacy of the 
proposed financial reserves.  

 
1.2 In considering the robustness of any estimates, the following criteria need to 

be considered:- 
 

• the reasonableness of the underlying budget assumptions such as: 
- the reasonableness of provisions for inflationary pressures; 
- the extent to which known trends and pressures have been 

provided for; 
- the achievability of changes built into the budget; 
- the realism of income targets; 
- the alignment of resources with the Council service and 

organisational priorities. 

• a review of the major risks associated with the budget. 

• the availability of any contingency or un-earmarked reserves to meet 
unforeseen cost pressures. 

• the strength of the financial management and reporting arrangements. 
 
1.3 In coming to a view as to the robustness of the 2013/14 budget, the Director 

of Resources has taken account of the following issues:- 
 

• Detailed estimates are prepared by directorates in accordance with 
principles laid down by the Director of Resources based upon the 
current agreed level of service. Service changes are separately 
identified and plans are in place for them to be managed. 

 

• Estimate submissions have been subject to rigorous review throughout 
the budget process both in terms of reasonableness and adequacy. 
This process takes account of previous and current spending patterns 
in terms of base spending plans and the reasonableness and 
achievability of additional spending to meet increasing or new service 
pressures. This is a thorough process involving both financial and non-
financial senior managers throughout the Council. 

 

• Significant financial pressures experienced in 2012/13 have, where 
appropriate, been recognised in preparing the 2013/14 budget, or are 
subject to further actions to enable them to be delivered.  

 

• Contingency provisions have been included in the General Fund and 
within the DSG funded services. These provisions are for items not 

Page 55



foreseen and for items where there is a risk of variation during the year. 
In the case of the schools contingency, this would include adjustments 
required in the application of formula funding, significant increases in 
pupil numbers, and additional statements of Special Education Needs 
or exceptional in year cost increases. 

 

• As part of the budget process, directorates have undertaken a risk 
assessment of their key budgets, documented this assessment in the 
form of a formal Risk Register, and provided a summary of major risks 
within the directorate budget documents, many of which are significant. 
All directorate budgets contain efficiencies, service reviews and savings 
which will require actions to deliver, and any delay in taking decisions 
may have significant financial implications. The overall level of risk 
within the 2013/14 budgets of directorates is considered to remain 
relatively high.  Whilst this level of risk can be considered manageable, 
it must be on the understanding that key decisions are taken and that 
where identified savings are not delivered alternative savings options 
will be needed.  This is all the more important given that the Council will 
face further financial challenges over the years beyond 2013/14. 

 

• In addition to specific directorate risks, there are two new risks which 
need to be understood and closely monitored. 

 
o The introduction from April 2013 of a scheme of Council Tax 

discounts does raise additional risks as to collection. Overall, the 
assumed collection rate for Council Tax has been reduced from 
99.2% to 99% to reflect this additional risk, but there is still the 
potential for further losses. However, it should be noted that should 
there be a higher level of loss than assumed, that this would 
materialise with the collection fund, and as such would not impact 
upon the current year’s budget. 

 
o Under the new business rates retention scheme, the Council’s local 

share of business rates is exposed to risks from both collection and 
reductions in rateable values. The scheme does provide for a 
safety net, whereby any losses in excess of 7.5% against an 
authority’s business rates baseline would be met centrally. 
However, this would still mean the Council bearing losses, against 
our baseline, in excess of £10m. This risk is further heightened, as 
under the scheme, the Council shares its proportion of any losses 
in respect to rating appeals which may be backdated to prior to the 
1st April 2013.  Although in setting the 2013/14 budget, an 
assumption has been included as to potential scale of losses due to 
backdated appeals, this is still considered to be a significant risk. 
However, as in the case of Council Tax, any losses greater than 
those assumed in setting the budget will materialise through a 
collection fund and will not impact in the current year. 

 
1.4 The Council's financial controls are set out in the Council's Financial 

Procedure Rules. These provide a significant degree of assurance as to the 

Page 56



strength of financial management and control arrangements throughout the 
Council. The Council has a well-established framework for financial reporting 
at directorate and corporate levels. Each month the Director of Resources 
receives a report from each directorate setting out spending to date and 
projected to the year-end. Action plans are utilised to manage and minimise 
any significant variations to approved budgets. There are no proposed 
changes to the level of financial reporting to either the Executive Board or to 
Scrutiny.  

 
1.5 The Council’s Reserves policy, as set out in Section 7, requires directorates 

to prepare budget action plans to deal with spending variations on budgets 
controlled by directorates during the year.  

 
  1.6 In the context of the above, the Director of Resources considers the 

proposed budget for 2013/14 as robust and that the level of reserves are 
adequate given a clear understanding of the following:- 

 
o the level of reserves is in line with the risk based reserves strategy.  
 
o budget monitoring and scrutiny arrangements are in place which 

include  arrangements for the identification of remedial action, and 
reporting arrangements to members will be enhanced. 

 
o the budget contains a number of challenging targets and other 

actions, these are clearly identified, and will be subject to specific 
monitoring by the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team, and as 
such, are at this time  considered reasonable and achievable. 

 
o enhanced budget reporting to members will continue.   
 
o risks are identified, recorded in the budget risk register and will be 

subject to control and management.  
 
o as part of the Council’s reserves policy directorates are required to 

have in place a budget action plan which sets out how they will deal 
with variations during the year up to 2%.  

 
o risks associated with Council tax and business rates, although new 

and significant, will not impact on the current year’s budget. 
 
o there is a clear understanding of the duties of the Council’s statutory 

Financial Officer and that the service implications of them being 
exercised  are fully understood by members and senior management 
alike. 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\3\8\AI00044832\$40zxen3p.doc 
 

Appendix B 
 

Integrity Forum - Terms of Reference 
 

1. Introduction       

The Integrity Forum has a key role within Leeds City Council’s Governance Framework 
and its function is to help ensure that there are procedures and operations in place to 
provide the necessary quality, integrity and reliability of financial information and 
accounts. The overall purpose is to help ensure the financial stewardship of the Authority 
by monitoring the following:- 

Ø  the regular review and reconciliation of financial systems to the financial ledger  

Ø  The regular review and reconciliation of balance sheet accounts.  

Ø  the requirement to have effective systems and procedures in place to facilitate the 
posting of financial data to the ledger. 

Ø  that there are up to date bank mandates for all bank accounts to which LCC 
officers are signatories and that bank statements are regularly received and 
reconciled 

 The Integrity Forum meets on a monthly basis in order to ensure that a regular review is 
undertaken and that any deficiencies relating to the integrity of the ledger are promptly 
acted upon.  

  

2. Reporting to Finance Performance Group 

Reporting to FPG is on an exception basis whereby only issues that compromise the 
integrity of the ledger will be reported. This reporting is undertaken as and when deemed 
necessary by the Chief Officer (Financial Management). 

3. Investigation of areas of concern 

The Forum instigates any investigations deemed necessary where there are areas of 
concern. This may include calling individuals in to the monthly meeting to discuss specific 
issues as required. 

4. Items considered by the Forum  

The following items are considered by the Integrity Forum in accordance with a pre-
determined Integrity timetable. 

4.1 Systems and Feeders 

4.1.1 FMS feeders – any issues arising relating to the day to day control of feeder 
systems posting into The financial ledger (FMS) 

4.1.2 Cash Book –reconciliations of Cash transactions to the financial ledger ( 
Monthly balances in excess of £200m) 

4.1.3 Balance Sheet Monitoring Statements. Integrity Forum ensures that all 
accounts held on the Council’s balance sheet are fully reconciled and any 
amounts due or owed are paid/recovered. This includes the monitoring  and 
checking of  payments  to HMRC which exceeds £61m per month in respect of 
payroll taxation and the reclamation of approximately £9m in VAT. 

 

 

Page 59



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\3\8\AI00044832\$40zxen3p.doc 
 

 

4.2 Integrity of the Financial Ledger 

4.2.1 Major Systems Reconciliations.  Reconciliations provide assurance that all data 
processed by systems that feed into the financial ledger has been transferred 
correctly. Of the major systems £130m per month is processed through the payroll 
and creditor(payments) systems. 

4.2.2 Systems Mapping. A comprehensive map of all systems which feed into the 
financial ledger is held and reviewed by the Forum.  

4.2.3 FMS Access Rights. Regular risk based reviews of access controls in the 
financial ledger.   

5 Internal & External Audit Reports 

• All Audit Reports with implications for the Financial Management function are 
reviewed and commented upon. Action Plans are obtained from relevant officers 
to ensure that Audit recommendations are implemented – progress against Action 
Plan is monitored. 

6 New Systems Development 

• The role and involvement of Financial Management in the development of any 
new systems which impact on the financial ledger is determined by the Forum. 
Progress and issues arising are reported to the Forum on a monthly basis. 

7 Treasurerships and Partnerships including Charities 

• The responsibilities outlined above also extend to areas where the Director of 
Resources acts as Treasurer or provides an accounting service to an external 
body. 

8 Governance 

Internal Audit  monitor and  validate all the  work carried out by Integrity Forum  annually  
giving  substantial assurances  since the  Forum came into existence. In addition KPMG  
are assured that  appropriate controls are in place  for the  control and  policing of FMS. 

 
 

 

Page 60



 

 

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013 

Subject: Internal Audit Report 1st July to 31st August 2013 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing 
the adequacy of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements.  Reports 
issued by Internal Audit are a key source of assurance providing the Committee 
with some evidence that the internal control environment is operating as intended. 

2. This report provides a summary of internal audit activity for the period 1st July to 31st 
August 2013 and highlights the incidence of any significant control failings or 
weaknesses. 

Recommendations 

3. The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to receive the Internal 
Audit 1st July to 31st August 2013 report and note the work undertaken by Internal 
Audit during the period covered by the report. 

 

 Report author:  Neil Hunter 

Tel:  74214 

Agenda Item 10

Page 61



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This purpose of this report is to provide a summary of internal audit activity for the 
period 1st July to 31st August 2013 and highlight the incidence of any significant 
control failings or weaknesses. 

2 Background information 

2.1 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (‘the Committee’) has 
responsibility for reviewing the adequacy of the Council’s Corporate Governance 
arrangements. Reports issued by Internal Audit are a key source of assurance 
providing the Committee with some evidence that the internal control environment 
is operating as intended.   

3 Main issues 

3.1 The report details the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Section. The report 
also contains a summary of completed reviews along with their individual audit 
opinions. 

3.2 There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the July to August 2013 Internal 
Audit Report that would necessitate direct intervention by the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

3.3 Internal Audit will continue to undertake a follow up audit on reports with limited or 
no assurance or where the impact has been determined as either ‘Major’ or 
‘Moderate’ to ensure the revised controls are operating well in practice. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report did not highlight any consultation and engagement considerations. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This report does not highlight any issues regarding equality, diversity, cohesion 
and integration. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee require 
the Committee to review the adequacy of the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. This report forms part of the suite of assurances that provides this 
evidence to the Committee. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 In relation to resources and value for money, the Internal Audit work plan includes 
a number of value for money reviews and a number of initiatives in line with the 
council’s value of spending money wisely. These will be included in the regular 
update reports to the Committee. 

Page 62



 

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 None. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Internal Audit plan has been and will continue to be subject to constant 
review throughout the financial year to ensure that audit resources are prioritised 
and directed towards the areas of highest risk.  This process incorporates a 
review of information from a number of sources, one of these being the corporate 
risk register. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the July to August 2013 Internal 
Audit Report that would necessitate direct intervention by the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to receive the Internal 
Audit July to August 2013 report and note the work undertaken by Internal Audit 
during the period covered by the report. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None. 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

   

 

 

    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2013/14 
 

Internal Audit Report  

1st July to 31st August 2013 

Page 65



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 
 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 1 -   

 

 

CONTENTS 

 
Section  

 
 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
The reporting Process 

 

Background 

 

 Progress against the 2013/14 Operational Plan 

 

 How Internal Control is Reviewed 

 

 

 

2. SUMMARY OF AUDIT ACTIVITY AND KEY ISSUES 
 

           

 

 

 

3. AUDIT PERFORMANCE 
 

           

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 2 -   

 

 

 
Section 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 

1.1 The Reporting Process 
 

1.1.1 This report provides stakeholders, including the Corporate Governance & Audit 

Committee, with a summary of internal audit activity for the period 1
st

 July to 

31
st

 August 2013. 

 

1.2 Background 
 

1.2.1 The changing public sector environment continues to necessitate an ongoing re-

evaluation of the type & level of coverage required to give stakeholders the 

appropriate level of assurance on the control environment of the Council.  

 

1.3 Progress against the 2013/14 Operational Plan – High Level 
 

1.3.1 The following table shows the progress against the operational plan for the 

second period of the financial year, broken down by assurance block.   

 

Assurance Block 

 

 

Total Days per 

Audit Plan 

2013/14 

 

Days spent at 

August 2013* 

% completion at 

August 2013 

Financial Resource Risks    

Spending Money Wisely 695 252 36% 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption 600 365 61% 

Financial and Other Key Systems 810 173 21% 

Head of Audit Assurances 65 78 120% 

Compliance 504 131 26% 

Procurement, Performance and Improvement 375 197 53% 

Risk Based Audits 345 92 27% 

ICT 350 36 10% 

Total Financial Resource Risks 3,744 1,324 35% 

    

Strategic Risks    

Compliance 97 24 25% 

Policies and Procedures 38 2 5% 

Risk Based Audits 40 0 0% 

ICT 55 0 0% 

Page 67



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 3 -   

 

 

Assurance Block 

 

 

Total Days per 

Audit Plan 

2013/14 

 

Days spent at 

August 2013* 

% completion at 

August 2013 

Total Strategic Risks 230 26 11% 

Continuing Development    

Professional Liaison 28 3 11% 

Training and CPD 305 41 13% 

Total Continuing Development 333 44 13% 

    

Contingency    

General Contingency 280 91 33% 

Total Contingency 280 91 33% 

Total Audit Days 4,587 1,485 32% 

*figures taken as at 12
th

 August 2013 

 

In addition, the audit plan also included days for the following: 

 

Audit Area 
Total Days per 

Audit Plan 

2013/14 

Days spent at 

August 2013 

% completion 

August 2013 

External Contracts 634 370 58% 

Secondments 506 344 68% 

Total Days 1,140 714 63% 

 

 

1.4 How Internal Control is reviewed 
 

1.4.1 There are three elements to each internal audit review.  Firstly, the control 

environment is reviewed by identifying the objectives of the system and then 

assessing the controls in place mitigating the risk of those objectives not being 

achieved.  Completion of this work enables internal audit to give an assurance on 

the control environment.  

 

1.4.2 However, controls are not always complied with which in itself will increase risk, 

so the second part of an audit is to ascertain the extent to which the controls are 

being complied with in practice. This element of the review enables internal 

audit to give an opinion on the extent to which the control environment, 

designed to mitigate risk, is being complied with.  

 

1.4.3 Finally, where there are significant control environment weaknesses or where 

the controls are not being complied with and only limited assurance can be 

given, internal audit undertakes further substantive testing to ascertain the 

impact of these control weaknesses. 

 

Page 68



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 4 -   

 

 

1.4.4 To ensure consistency in audit reporting, the following definitions of audit 

assurance are used for all systems and governance audits completed: 

 

Control Environment Assurance 

Level Definitions 

1 SUBSTANTIAL  

ASSURANCE 

There are minimal control weaknesses that present 

very low risk to the control environment. 

2 
GOOD ASSURANCE 

There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk 

to the control environment. 

3 ACCEPTABLE 

ASSURANCE 

There are some control weaknesses that present a 

medium risk to the control environment. 

4 LIMITED 

ASSURANCE 

There are significant control weaknesses that present a 

high risk to the control environment 

5 
NO ASSURANCE 

There are fundamental control weaknesses that present 

an unacceptable level of risk to the control environment. 

 

Compliance Assurance 

Level Definitions 

1 
SUBSTANTIAL  

ASSURANCE 

The control environment has substantially operated  

as intended although some minor errors have been  

detected. 

2 
GOOD ASSURANCE 

The control environment has largely operated as intended 

although some errors have been detected. 

3 ACCEPTABLE 

ASSURANCE 

The control environment has mainly operated as intended 

although errors have been detected. 

4 LIMITED 

ASSURANCE 

The control environment has not operated as intended. 

Significant errors have been detected. 

5 
NO ASSURANCE 

The control environment has fundamentally broken down 

and is open to significant error or abuse. 

 

Organisational impact will be reported as either major, moderate or minor. All 

reports with major organisational impacts will be reported to CLT along with the 

appropriate directorate’s agreed action plan. 

 

Organisational Impact 

Level Definitions 

1 MAJOR The weaknesses identified during the review have left the  

council open to significant risk. If the risk materialises it would  

have a major impact upon the organisation as a whole.  

2 MODERATE The weaknesses identified during the review have left the 

council open to medium risk. If the risk materialises it would 

have a moderate impact upon the organisation as a whole.  

3 MINOR                                                                                                                        The weaknesses identified during the review have left the 

council open to low risk. This could have a minor impact on the 

organisation as a whole.  

 

Page 69



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 5 -   

 

 

1.5 Progress against the 2013/14 Operational Plan – Individual Reviews 
 

1.5.1 The individual reports, and the opinions given within those reports, are detailed 

in the following table.  Not all audit reviews will have an opinion in each of the 

boxes as this is dependant on the type of review undertaken. The following table 

includes reports issued between 1
st

 July and 2
nd

 September 2013.  

 

 

Report Title 

Audit Opinion 

Directorate  Date Issued Control 

Environment 

Assurance 

Compliance 

Assurance 

Organisational 

Impact 

Financial and Other Key Systems 

Business Application Audits 

(Summary Report) 
Substantial Substantial Minor 

Strategy and 

Resources 
25/07/2013 

Bank Reconciliation and Cash Book Substantial  N/A Minor 
Strategy and 

Resources 
02/08/2013 

Corporate Financial Management – 

Central Controls 
Substantial Substantial Minor 

Strategy and 

Resources 
09/08/2013 

NNDR – Year End Reconciliation Substantial Minor 
Strategy and 

Resources 
09/08/2013 

Council Tax – Year End 

Reconciliation 
Substantial Minor 

Strategy and 

Resources 
09/08/2013 

Payroll Year End Reconciliations Substantial Minor 
Strategy and 

Resources 
23/08/2013 

Creditors Year End Reconciliation Substantial  Minor 
Strategy and 

Resources 
02/09/2013 

Community Care Finance Good Good Minor 
Adult Social 

Care 
02/09/2013 

Spending Money Wisely  

Spending Money Wisely Challenge  N/A Medium N/A Cross Cutting 08/07/2013 

Spending Money Wisely Ideas 

Service – Credit Card Surcharges 
See 2.1.2 below 

Strategy and 

Resources 
08/08/2013 

Procurement, Performance and Improvement 

Passenger Transport Framework 

Contract Monitoring Review 
Limited Good Moderate 

Strategy and 

Resources 
01/07/2013 

Urban Traffic Management 

Contract Review 
Good Good Minor 

City 

Development 
03/07/2013 

Middleton Park Restoration Capital 

Audit 
Good Acceptable Minor 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

03/07/2013 

Risk Based Reviews 

Telecare Acceptable N/A Minor 
Adult Social 

Care 
25/07/2013 

Corporate Property Management 

(Repairs and Maintenance) – 

Systems and Processes Follow Up 

Review 

Good N/A Minor 
City 

Development 
26/07/2013 

Page 70



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 6 -   

 

 

Report Title 

Audit Opinion 

Directorate  Date Issued Control 

Environment 

Assurance 

Compliance 

Assurance 

Organisational 

Impact 

Fairer Charging Assessments Good Good Minor 
Adult Social 

Care 
01/08/2013 

Leaving Care Payments Limited Limited Moderate 
Children’s 

Services 
09/08/2013 

Housing Partnerships Assurance Framework Reviews 

ALMO Business Centre  Leeds – 

Payroll 
Good Good Minor 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

12/07/2013 

Tenancy Enforcement (Tenancy 

Fraud Follow up visit) – West North 

West Homes  

N/A Good N/A 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

12/07/2013 

ALMO Business Centre Leeds – 

Financial Management Central 

Controls 

Acceptable Acceptable Minor 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

05/08/2013 

ALMO Business Centre Leeds – 

Treasury Management and Bank 

Reconciliations 

Acceptable Acceptable Minor 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

05/08/2013 

Belle Isle Tenant Management 

Organisation – Information 

Governance (Freedom of 

Information & Data Protection Act 

requests)  

Limited Limited Moderate 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

05/08/2013 

Creditors (combined report – 

ALMO Business Centre Leeds, Aire 

Valley Homes Leeds, East North 

East Homes Leeds, West North 

West Homes Leeds) 

Acceptable Acceptable Minor 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

21/08/2013 

 

Compliance Area Report Title 

Level of 

Compliance 

Assurance 

Directorate Date Issued 

Compliance Reviews 

Unannounced Visits 

Home Lea Home for Older 

Persons 
Medium 

Adult Social 

Care 
03/07/2013 

Temple Newsam Golf Course High 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

28/08/2013 

Policies and Procedures 

Managing Attendance Medium 
Adult Social 

Care 
13/08/2013 

Overtime Payments High 
Adult Social 

Care 
14/08/2013 

Overtime Payments High 

Environment 

and 

Neighbourhoods 

14/08/2013 

Overtime Payments High 
City 

Development 
15/08/2013 

Overtime Payments – 

findings relating to Business 

Support Centre 

High 
Strategy and 

Resources 
22/08/2013 

Overtime Payments Medium 
Strategy and 

Resources 
22/08/2013 

Page 71



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 7 -   

 

 

 

Report Title Results/Opinion Directorate  Date Issued 

Head of Audit Assurances 

Thorpe Primary School Voluntary 

Fund 2012/13 
Certification of account balances. 

Children’s 

Services 
16/07/2013 

Shakespeare Primary School 

Voluntary Fund 2012/13 
Certification of account balances. 

Children’s 

Services 
16/07/2013 

Troubled Families Programme 

Grant Claim 2013/14 

Audit testing provided good assurance that the 

results and outcomes detailed on the grant claim 

will satisfy the DCLG requirements of 

reasonableness. 

Children’s 

Services 
25/07/2013 

Cookridge Primary School 

Voluntary Fund 2012/13 
Certification of account balances. 

Children’s 

Services 
26/07/2013 

Green Deal Go Early Pilot Grant 

Claim for City Regions 

These statements confirm in all significant 

respects, the conditions set out by the Secretary 

of State for Energy and Climate Change (SSECC) 

in his offer letter of the 1
st

 November 2012 have 

been complied with. 

Citizens and 

Communities 
09/08/2013 

 

Report  Date Issued 

Counter Fraud and Corruption 

Football Youth Development Centre 01/07/2013 

School’s Extended Activities Income 26/07/2013 

Whistleblowing allegations – flexitime abuse 08/08/2013 

Whistleblowing allegations – decoration of council property 08/08/2013 

Data Matching Exercise for adults in receipt of personal budgets and/or direct payments 13/08/2013 

Payments to independent sector providers of home care pro-active exercise 21/08/2013 

 

Further details of key issues identified within each assurance block are included below 

in the Summary of Audit Activity and Key Issues at Section 2.  

Page 72



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 8 -   

 

 

Section 2 

 

 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT ACTIVITY AND KEY ISSUES 

 

 

A summary of reports issued within each assurance block is included in the table 

in Section 1.  The following section highlights any key issues and outcomes 

within each assurance block.  

 

2.1 Spending Money Wisely 

Ideas Service 

2.1.1 Progress continues on Spending Money Wisely initiatives by the Section 

including reviewing ideas on how to save money and/or improve services 

submitted by staff. 
 

2.1.2 A review of one suggestion made to the Spending Money Wisely Ideas service 

‘that the authority should charge a fee for handling credit card payments to 

recover the processing fees incurred in handling the payments by the bank’ has 

been undertaken. 

 

2.1.3 Both the council and ALMOs websites state that credit card payments are 

accepted. For Business Rates, Council Tax and Housing Rents, the authority tries 

to limit the channels by which credit cards are accepted so they are seen as the 

least preferred option. The total amount charged for credit card transactions for 

2012/13 was £70,874 (1.36% of the value of transactions paid by this method.) 

 

2.1.4 Comparison with other core cities confirmed that only one of the other seven 

core cities charges for credit card transactions (this core city charges 1.8% on all 

credit card payments except for those relating to Penalty Charge Notices.) 

However, in the Leeds City Region, it is a different picture: 2 authorities accept 

debit cards only, 4 authorities charge for credit card payments (range of charges 

from 1.4% to 2.6%) and 3 authorities make no charge for paying by credit card. 

 

2.1.5 Based on the results of the review, recommendations were made that LCC 

should, where possible, implement a surcharge of at least 2% for credit card 

transactions. Each service should be tasked with the implementation of this 

proposal taking into account the legal, financial and social ramifications of 

accepting credit card payments in the first instance. A written policy will be 

required which clearly set out the guidelines for accepting credit card payments. 

However, Services should be given the opportunity to opt out based on their 

own perception of business risk within the service. 

 

Page 73



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 9 -   

 

 

Improving efficiency 

 

2.1.6 The Chief Officer - Financial Services requested Internal Audit's opinion as to 

whether bureaucracy could be reduced within the creditors system by paying 

some invoices without an order being raised.  

 

2.1.7 Having carried out an analysis of payments and considered any associated risks 

in changing the current processes, Internal Audit made a number of 

recommendations including that, in the short term, a threshold of £50 would be 

an appropriate level at which to allow invoices to be paid without an order.  

Currently invoices received by Business Support Centre without a corresponding 

order are subject to an invoice query process with a higher administrative 

burden in terms of staff time.  There would therefore be an expected saving in 

terms of staff time from the implementation of the recommendations including 

that involved in the BSC query process itself as well as that of retrospectively 

raising and authorising orders, as well as a potential reduction in late payment 

charges.  

 

2.1.8 Furthermore, if the implementation of the above process does not lead to a 

significant increase in invoices without a corresponding order, consideration 

should be given as to whether the threshold of £50 should be increased, for 

example to £100, in order to provide greater efficiencies. 

 

2.1.9 The report also recommended that any savings in staff time (as a result of 

reducing the number of invoices in the query process) could be spent on 

providing training and raising awareness with Directorate staff on the order 

raising process in order to reduce the number of invoices that BSC need to query 

for order related reasons. In order to improve efficiency further, pro-active 

monitoring should be undertaken to identify areas spending less than £50 so 

that purchasing cards are offered to these service areas.  

 

2.2 Procurement, Performance and Improvement 

 
Passenger Transport Framework Contract Monitoring Review 

 
2.2.1 Internal Audit is reviewing a number of live contracts. The scope includes 

coverage of processes to ensure there are suitable governance arrangements 

and appropriate administration of contracts; and ensuring there is accurate and 

relevant cost monitoring. The Passenger Transport Framework Contract (for the 

provision of private hire vehicles for the transportation of older people, adults 

with learning disabilities, children with special educational needs and children in 

the care of the authority) has been reviewed.  

 

Page 74



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 10 -   

 

 

2.2.2 Overall good assurance was provided for compliance with the control 

environment although some errors have been detected including non-

application of contract terms, different evaluation methods for tender exercises 

and there are opportunities for greater value for money through evaluation of 

tenders on price once the minimum quality threshold has been met.   

 

2.2.3 However, limited assurance was provided on the control environment due to the 

current safeguarding arrangements that do not comply with LCC's safeguarding 

policy or Taxi and Private Hire Best Practice Guidelines. However, the service is 

aware of this risk and is actively reporting and monitoring it. This issue has been 

identified previously in relation to another Service and Internal Audit will 

continue to actively monitor the implementation of the recommendations made.  

Other areas of the Passenger Transport contract monitoring function are 

operating well, and good assurance can be provided on these. 
 

2.3 Risk Based Reviews 

 
Leaving Care Payments 

 
2.3.1 The review of leaving care payments concluded that there are significant control 

weaknesses that present a high risk to the control environment and have left the 

system open to abuse. Whilst no instances of misappropriation were identified 

during the review, the system as it is currently operating is not controlling this 

risk to an acceptable level. 

 

2.3.2 Limited Assurance has been provided for the control environment as although 

there is a process that aims to ensure that young people eligible for Leaving Care 

financial support are identified and assisted, the following weaknesses were 

identified: 

 

• There are gaps in the policy and guidance for staff, for example the form of 

evidence required to support expenditure and a summary of the payment 

process to provide guidance to staff on the entire payments available and 

eligibility criteria/conditions of payment (some payment types have different 

payment rates and these are not clearly explained); 

 

• The lack of a single method to record and control the cash in the process has 

left the system open to abuse. Dependant on the type of payment, it can be 

recorded on the foster care database or by spreadsheets at the Area Office. This 

systems does not currently provide assurance that all payments made are 

accurately recorded and increases the risk that payments could be duplicated, 

for example a one-off computer grant  could be paid through either method; and 

 

Page 75



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 11 -   

 

 

• There is no requirement to produce regular budget or management 

information. The audit found that managers do not consider budget implications 

when authorising leaving care payments increasing the risk of overspending 

against budgets. 

 

2.3.3 Limited Assurance was also provided for compliance as the control environment 

has not operated as intended and significant errors were detected: 

 

• Neither the financial policy nor the values of individual allowances, payments 

and grants have been approved through the delegated decision procedure; 

 

• Evidence was not always available to confirm that purchases and cash 

withdrawals had been spent as intended. A number of cash payments were 

made which, at the time of audit, were not supported by receipts to confirm that 

the cash had been spent appropriately. 

 

• VAT is not reclaimed on all relevant purchases made. For a number of 

transactions, VAT was applicable but had not been reclaimed as staff were 

unaware of the procedures for claiming back vat for cash purchases. It is 

estimated that this could amount to £23k over the last 4 years. 

     

2.4 Counter Fraud and Corruption  

2.4.1 Referrals 

Internal Audit received 11 new referrals between 1
st

 July and 8
th

 August 2013.  

6 of these were received under the Council’s Whistleblowing and Raising 

Concerns Policies and 5 were received from individual service areas.  

 

10 cases have been investigated and closed in the same period. 

 

There are 30 on-going investigations: 

 

• 10 cases are currently being investigated;  

 

• 20 have been referred to a service or HR for investigation and the Audit 

team is awaiting their responses. 

 

2.4.2 Reports Issued  

Investigation reports issued to Directorates and Services during the period are 

included in the table at 1.5 above. 

 

 Pro-active fraud work – Data Matching 

Page 76



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 12 -   

 

 

 

2.4.3 A data matching exercise was carried out for adults in receipt of personal 

budgets and/or direct payments by a number of local authorities within North, 

South and West Yorkshire including Leeds City Council in conjunction with the 

Audit Commission. The aim of this exercise was to identify any potential 

instances of payments being made to deceased persons; duplicate claims made 

by people in receipt of personal budgets (within the same local authority and 

across neighbouring local authorities); fraudulent or stolen identities used in 

obtaining direct payments; and, undeclared capital and income when fairer 

charging assessments have been completed resulting in people are not 

contributing correctly towards the cost of care. 

 

2.4.4 The review confirmed that subject to the outcome of a financial audit for a 

customer who has moved out of the Leeds area, there has been no identified 

fraud. In addition, an instance in relation to the continued payments to a 

deceased person is an isolated incident with existing controls not having 

identified this. 

 

2.4.5 The main issues identified relate to data quality in 30 instances within the social 

care database and need to be set in the context that there are nearly 900 

customers in receipt of a personal budget.  

 

2.4.6 This work supports previous audit findings that there are good controls in place 

for direct payments and personal budgets. 

 

Pro-active fraud work – Home care payments 

 

2.4.7 Pro-active fraud work was also carried out on payments to independent sector 

providers of home care.  The primary purpose of the audit was to substantiate 

whether payments made to providers could be supported by prime records.  A 

sample of 5 home care providers was selected and a total of 30 service users (6 

per provider) were then selected for testing.  Whilst some errors were identified 

in the testing that resulted in incorrect payments being made, there was no 

evidence that this was due to deliberate fraud. Appropriate controls are in place, 

which if followed, should detect any significant fraud within this area. 

 

2.5 External Clients 

 
2.5.1 The externals contract assurance block includes time for the Housing 

Partnerships Assurance Framework and the ALMOs and BITMO Audit Plans.  In 

June 2013, Executive Board approved the decision to integrate all council 

housing management within direct council control.  Leeds City Council will be 

responsible for the entire housing stock, taking over responsibility for all ALMO 

functions including overall management, engagement with tenants and 

Page 77



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 13 -   

 

 

responsibility for any repair work.  The July Executive Board received a report on 

the proposed governance arrangements and a timetable for implementation. 

 

2.5.2 Work is continuing on the ALMO audit plans and this is due to be completed by 

early November.  Work on the Assurance Framework is being developed and 

agreed with Housing Partnerships to ensure that the audits undertaken will add 

value to the future delivery model. 

 

BITMO Information Governance (Freedom of Information and Data Protection 

Act requests) 

 

2.5.3 An audit of the information governance arrangements within Belle Isle Tenant 

Management Organisation (BITMO) has been undertaken as part of the Housing 

Partnerships Assurance Framework. 

 

2.5.4 Limited Assurance was provided on the control environment as there are 

inadequate arrangements to promptly respond to and manage any requests for 

information, and no procedures for managing information security breaches.  

Limited Assurance was also provided for compliance with controls as relevant 

training has not been completed by all staff and no evidence has been retained 

to support requests for information or what has been provided.  The weaknesses 

have left the council open to medium risk that, if it materialised, would have a 

moderate impact upon the Council. 

 

2.6 Corporate support 

 
2.6.1 In order to support corporate priorities, the Section currently has a number of 

staff on secondment to various projects and programmes across the authority.  

 

• One of the Section’s trainees is currently on a 15-month secondment (ending 

in August 2014) to the Waste Management Project within Environment and 

Neighbourhoods;   

• A member of staff has been providing support on a full time basis to Leeds 

and Partners since January 2013; 

• A member of staff has been providing full time support on a temporary basis 

to the Leeds Grand Theatre. 

• A member of the business analysis team is currently seconded to another 

Directorate. 

 

2.7 Staffing changes 
 

2.7.1 A number of staff have left the Section during the period, 2 to take up positions 

within the Council Tax service and Control Group and one member of staff took 

early retirement. 

Page 78



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 14 -   

 

 

 

2.7.2 Internal Audit is actively managing resources to direct these towards the areas of 

highest risk to ensure that there is  not a negative impact on the ability of the 

Section to provide the coverage necessary to support the Head of Internal Audit 

opinion on the authority’s control environment.  

 
 

   

 
 

Page 79



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 15 -   

 

 

Section 3 

 

AUDIT PERFORMANCE  

QUARTER 2 - 2013/2014 

 

 

3.1 ENSURING QUALITY 

 

Internal Audit is committed to delivering a quality product to the highest professional 

standards that adds value to our customers.  We actively monitor our performance in a 

number of areas and encourage feedback from customers.  

 

All our work is undertaken in accordance with our quality management system; we have 

now been ISO accredited for over fourteen years. 

 

A customer satisfaction questionnaire (CSQ) is issued with every audit report. The 

questionnaires ask for the auditees opinion on a range of issues and asks for an 

assessment ranging from 5 (for excellent) to 1 (for poor).  The results are based on the 

percentage of those assessments that are 3 (satisfactory) or above.  The results of the 

questionnaires are reported to the Audit Leadership Team and used to determine areas 

for improvement and inform the continuing personal development training programme 

for Internal Audit staff. The results are also benchmarked with other core cities who 

have adopted the same questionnaire. 

 

Results from Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires  

 

Question 

2013/14  

Actual to date 

at August 2013* - % 

Score 3 or above 

Notice  100% 

Scope  95% 

Understanding  95% 

Efficiency  100% 

Consultation  100% 

Professional/Objective 100% 

Accuracy of Draft 86% 

Page 80



Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Report 1
st

 July to 31
st

 August 2013 
    

 
 - 16 -   

 

 

Question 

2013/14  

Actual to date 

at August 2013* - % 

Score 3 or above 

Opportunity to comment 100% 

Final Report - Clarity & Conciseness 95% 

Final Report – Prompt 100% 

Recommendations  91% 

Added Value 95% 

*As at 15
th

 August 2013 

  
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Chief Officer, Customer Access 

Report to the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 

Date: 20 September 2013 

Subject: Report on the Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter 
2012/13 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 

Summary of main issues  

This report provides comment and feedback for the committee on the Local 
Government Ombudsman’s (LGO) annual review letter for Leeds, dated 16 July 2013.  

1 The letter confirms the number of cases that the LGO investigated during 2012/13 
was 150 enquiries and complaints.  The LGO did not report publicly on any cases 
where fault was found with the council, but did find evidence of fault in 30 cases.  The 
average number of days taken by the council to respond to an investigation is 31 
calendar days, which is the first time in recent years that the council has performed 
below the 28 calendar day standard set by the LGO.   

2 The LGO has written a brief letter to the council which accompanies the summary.  
The letter lists some future changes to the scope of the LGO to no longer investigate 
housing, and also highlights that the LGO will publish decisions on its website. 

3 Using an overview of the complaints to the council during 2012/13, this report sets 
out the council’s arrangements for responding to complaints made by the public, the 
key objectives of which are to make it easy for people to complain, to try to resolve 
complaints at an early stage and to learn lessons from the issues raised through 
complaints.  In particular, the report shows the comparatively small number of 
complaints which are not resolved during the early stages of our complaints process, 
and then proceed to the LGO.  The report also shows the comparatively small number 
and proportion of LGO investigations which find fault on the part of the council, and the 
low number and value of financial settlements.  This provides assurance that the 
council’s processes for handling complaints are, on the whole, working well. 

 Report author:  Andrew White 

Tel:  2660014 

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



 

 

 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to consider the issues raised in the LGO’s Annual Review Letter 
and the supporting contextual information provided in the appendices. 

Members are asked to confirm that the supporting information provides external 
assurance as to the effectiveness of the council’s approach to complaints. 

 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 To discuss the LGO’s Annual Review Letter to the council, a copy of which can be 
found in Appendix 1. 

1.2 To summarise the council’s complaints and LGO cases for the period 1 April 2012 to 
31 March 2013, provided in Appendix 2. 

1.3 To assess the overall effectiveness of the council’s approach to complaints. 

 

 

2 Background information 

2.1 The LGO writes an individual Annual Review Letter to every authority each year and 
has done so since 2003/04.  The current letter continues the trend of recent years in 
that it is very brief and does not enter into any detailed assessment of the council’s 
performance or the effectiveness of our approach. 

2.2  The council has a complaints policy and procedure which has been in place for a 
number of years, co-ordinated by directorate customer relations officers.  The 
arrangements have three aims: i) to make it easy for people to complain to the 
council; ii) for the council to resolve complaints at the earliest stage possible; and iii) 
for the council to learn lessons from complaints to prevent them from recurring.  In 
order to make it easy for people to complain to the council, the council uses posters, 
leaflets and web content. 

2.3 The council operates a two stage complaints process.  In order to try and resolve the 
complaint as early as possible, at the first stage, complaints are dealt with by an 
officer or manager from the service complained about, who investigates the issues 
raised, looks to resolve them and responds to the customer within the relevant 
timescale.  

2.4 Should the customer remain dissatisfied after this stage, they can take their 
complaint to the second stage of the complaints process.  At the second stage, a 
more senior officer will investigate and respond to the customer’s concerns.  The 
officer will look at how the original complaint was dealt with and also respond to any 
further issues that the customer may have raised. Adult Social Care and Children’s 
Social Care have separate statutory procedures, and East North East and West 
North West Homes ALMOs have a third stage. 

2.5 A customer who progresses to the final stage of our complaints policy is advised in 
our response of their right to take their complaint to the LGO’s office should they 

Page 84



 

 

remain dissatisfied with the outcome.  The LGO advises customers to go through all 
stages of an authority’s complaints procedure before investigating a complaint. 

 

 

3 Main issues 

3.1 This report covers the following issues relating to the LGO Annual Review Letter and 
summary: 

• Overview of complaints to the council; 

• Patterns and trends of LGO enquiries and complaints; 

• Assessment of the effectiveness of the council’s overall approach to complaints; 

• Implications of changes in roles and jurisdiction. 

 

Overview of complaints to the council 

3.2 LGO complaints are a very small proportion of complaints which are made to the 
council each year, summarised in Appendix 2.  In 2012/13 the council received 
5,409 stage one complaints with 440 (8% of all complaints) progressed to the second 
stage of our complaints process.  Of those, 146 people (our figures, which differ very 
slightly from those of the LGO 2.7% of all complaints) complained to the LGO, of 
which 30 (0.6%) found fault.  All final stage complaints responses indicate to the 
complainant that they have the right to take their complaint to the LGO. 

3.3 In July 2013 an annual report on 2012/13 compliments, complaints and LGO cases 
was presented to the council’s Customer Strategy Board, details of which are 
summarised in Appendix 2.  As part of the annual report process, all directors are 
required to provide feedback on any trends in complaints identified over the year and 
what actions were taken to address them, with particular attention given to cases 
where the council has been instructed to make a payment.  This process is important 
in delivering one of our objectives in relation to learning from complaints. 

 

Patterns and trends of LGO enquiries and complaints 

3.4 In previous years, the LGO has produced a detailed breakdown of the council’s 
performance, including how many complaints were remedied during the LGO’s 
investigation and the number of cases where the LGO identified only minor injustice.  
The LGO changed their way of handling complaints during 2012/13 and made the 
decision not to report this information for 2012/13 as it would not provide a 
comparable picture throughout the year.  This change is reflected in the level of detail 
provided in this year’s report compared to previous years’ reports.  

3.5 During 2012/13, the LGO issued decisions on 146 complaints (compared to 164 
decisions in 2011/12).  The number of decisions includes complaints where the LGO 
has used their discretion not to investigate or because the issue is outside of their 
jurisdiction.  Of these 146 complaints, the LGO found fault in 30 of these cases, 10 
cases were outside of the LGO’s jurisdiction, and 1 complaint was withdrawn.  The 
LGO found no fault in the remaining 105 cases (72% of all decisions received), which 
is a significant improvement compared to 56% of cases finding no fault last year. The 

Page 85



 

 

number of premature complaints received fell to 58 from 103 received during 
2011/12.  There is no apparent reason for the decrease in premature complaints this 
year. 

3.6 The LGO made 27 formal enquiries, compared to 35 the previous year.  The vast 
majority of investigations were conducted through requests for factual information (in 
the region of 80+ informal enquiries) without these cases progressing to a more 
formal investigation. 

3.7 The average response time across the authority to the LGO’s first formal enquiries 
has however increased this year and fell outside of the LGO’s service standard of 28 
calendar days.  The average this year is 31 calendar days compared to last year’s 
average of 26.5 calendar days.   

3.8  The nature of complaints by service area is broadly similar to previous years, with 
around a third of all LGO decisions being about Housing.  The next highest service 
area is Education and Children’s Services, with 25% complaints (compared to 21% 
last year).  In relation to complaint themes, it is worth noting that 14 complaints were 
received relating to blue badges, compared to 10 in 2011/12.  This figure is low given 
the changes to the legislation from April 2012 affecting how individuals are assessed.  
It is also positive to note that the LGO did not find any evidence of fault in any of 
these 14 cases.   

3.9 The total financial settlements agreed by the LGO for the previous 4 years are set out 
below:- 

09/10 = 44 cases £16,575 

10/11 = 47 cases £25,481 

11/12 = 35 cases £16,064 

  12/13 = 17 cases £13,664 

Both the total financial settlements made and the number of cases where the LGO 
considered that financial redress was appropriate have fallen this year, although this 
does point to a number of higher individual settlements. 

 

Implications of changes in LGO role and jurisdiction 

3.9 On 1 April 2013, the role and jurisdiction for investigating housing complaints passed 
from the LGO to the Housing Ombudsman, as set out in the Localism Act 2011. 

3.10 The major change for the council is that complainants are required to take their case 
to a designated person, to see if the dispute can be resolved, before contacting the 
Housing Ombudsman.  Any UK MP and any Leeds City Council Councillor can 
currently act as a designated person, and the council is investigating options for 
tenants to act as designated persons.  

 

 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

Page 86



 

 

4.1.1 As this report is providing the committee with information on past performance with 
regards to LGO cases, no consultation or engagement has been sought. 
 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The LGO has not highlighted any issues regarding Equality, Diversity, Cohesion or 
integration in the Annual Letter for 2011/12. 

 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The LGO has not raised any issues that would impact on council priorities or city 
priorities. 
 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 Complaints are free feedback from our customers on what we could or should do 
better.  Any officer in the council who has service specialist knowledge can and will 
be called upon to investigate and respond to customer complaints as part of their 
daily duties.  In doing so, if they identify and implement service improvements, it will 
ensure that we provide a better service in the future.  Each LGO investigation uses a 
case conference approach, the aims of which are to ensure that the investigation is i) 
thorough and timely, and ii) actions are put in place to prevent similar problems from 
occurring.  

4.4.2 When we investigate a complaint, if there is fault, the earlier it is identified and 
addressed, the more cost effective the process is.  LGO cases have resource 
implications as the council should have resolved the issue earlier, but also have 
financial implications as the LGO has the authority to impose financial settlements.  
All cases of local settlement are reported to the Customer Strategy Board to ensure 
that lessons are learnt across the council. 

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 As this report is providing an update on past performance relating to LGO cases 
dealt with during 2012/13, it does not have any legal implications.  None of the 
information enclosed is deemed to be sensitive or requesting decision and therefore 
raises no issues for access to information or call in. 

 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 As this report is providing an update on past performance relating to LGO cases 
dealt with during 2012/13, there are no significant risks identified by this report. 
 

5 Conclusions 
 

5.1 In previous years the Annual Review Letter has provided the council with valuable 
feedback as to the LGO’s view on our performance during the previous year.  The 
letter this year does not comment on the effectiveness of our arrangements, so this 

Page 87



 

 

report has focused in more detailed about the broader pattern and trend of 
complaints to the council.  

5.2 This report has described the general arrangements in place for responding to 
complaints made by the public.  It has also described how in practice the council has 
a balancing act, to make it easy for people to complain to the council, to resolve 
customer complaints at an early stage and to learn lessons from the issues raised 
through complaints.  

5.3 The report has drawn on the overview of 2012-13 to show that the council is 
continuing to inform people of their right to complain to us.  The report has also 
shown that the majority of complaints continue to be resolved at the first stage.  It has 
also shown that good practice is in place, particularly for LGO and equality 
complaints, to ensure that lessons are learnt from complaints.  The information 
detailed in this report enables us to give assurance that the current system is fit for 
purpose in this respect, and this provides assurance that complaints are operating as 
intended. 

 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to consider the issues raised in the LGO Annual Review Letter 
and the further contextual information provided. 

6.2 Members are asked to confirm that the information provides external assurance as to 
the effectiveness of the council’s approach to complaints. 

 

7 Background documents 

none 

Page 88



 
 

 

16 July 2013 
 
 
By email 
 
 
Mr Tom Riordan 
Chief Executive 
Leeds City Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Riordan 
 
Annual Review Letter 

 
I am writing with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 
Government Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31 March 2013. 
This year we have only presented the total number of complaints received and will not be 
providing the more detailed information that we have offered in previous years.  
 
The reason for this is that we changed our business processes during the course of 2012/13 
and therefore would not be able to provide you with a consistent set of data for the entire 
year. 
 
In 2012/13 we received 150 complaints about your local authority. This compares to the 
following average number (recognising considerable population variations between 
authorities of a similar type): 
 
District/Borough Councils-  10 complaints  
Unitary Authorities-   36 complaints  
Metropolitan Councils-  49 complaints 
County Councils-   54 complaints 
London Boroughs-   79 complaints 
 
Future development of annual review letters 
 
We remain committed to sharing information about your council’s performance and will be 
providing more detailed information in next year’s letters. We want to ensure that the data 
we provide is relevant and helps local authorities to continuously improve the way they 
handle complaints from the public and have today launched a consultation on the future 
format of our annual letters.  
 
I encourage you to respond and highlight how you think our data can best support local 
accountability and service improvements. The consultation can be found by going to 
www.surveymonkey.com/s/annualletters  
 
LGO governance arrangements 
 
As part of the work to prepare LGO for the challenges of the future we have refreshed our 
governance arrangements and have a new executive team structure made up of Heather 
Lees, the Commission Operating Officer, and our two Executive Directors Nigel Ellis and 
Michael King. The Executive team are responsible for the day to day management of LGO. 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 89



Since November 2012 Anne Seex, my fellow Local Government Ombudsman, has been on 
sick leave. We have quickly adapted to working with a single Ombudsman and we have 
formally taken the view that this is the appropriate structure with which to operate in the 
future. Our sponsor department is conducting a review to enable us to develop our future 
governance arrangements. Our delegations have been amended so that investigators are 
able to make decisions on my behalf on all local authority and adult social care complaints in 
England. 
 
Publishing decisions 
 
Last year we wrote to explain that we would be publishing the final decision on all complaints 
on our website. We consider this to be an important step in increasing our transparency and 
accountability and we are the first public sector ombudsman to do this. Publication will apply 
to all complaints received after the 1 April 2013 with the first decisions appearing on our 
website over the coming weeks. I hope that your authority will also find this development to 
be useful and use the decisions on complaints about all local authorities as a tool to identify 
potential improvement to your own service. 
 
Assessment Code 
 
Earlier in the year we introduced an assessment code that helps us to determine the 
circumstances where we will investigate a complaint. We apply this code during our initial 
assessment of all new complaints. Details of the code can be found at: 
 
www.lgo.org.uk/making-a-complaint/how-we-will-deal-with-your-complaint/assessment-code  
 
Annual Report and Accounts 
 

Today we have also published Raising the Standards, our Annual Report and Accounts for 
2012/13. It details what we have done over the last 12 months to improve our own 
performance, to drive up standards in the complaints system and to improve the 
performance of public services. The report can be found on our website at www.lgo.org.uk  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Dr Jane Martin 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

Page 90



 

1 

 

 

         Appendix 2 
1. Executive Summary 

 
Complaints overview: despite an overall reduction this year, Q4 saw an 

increase over the previous quarter 
During the last quarter, we received 1379 stage 1 complaints, compared to 1219 the 
previous quarter, meaning for the full year we have received 5473 complaints, a 10% 

reduction from the 6073 complaints reported for last year.   
 

Effectiveness of complaint handling: fall in stage 2 complaints 
The number of complaints being escalated to stage 2 (Q4 371, from Q3 415) has 
decreased in line with the fall at stage 1.  Balanced against an increase in complaints 

about waste management, this indicators are a positive sign that overall we are 
improving the effectiveness of our handling of complaints.  It is also worth noting that 

we have also had very few complaints about the council’s handling of welfare reform 
changes, which started during Q4. 
 

Responding to complaints within timescale: some significant concerns  
The high level performance indicator for % stage 1 complaints responded to within 

timescale has declined over last quarter (a fall to 80% Q4 from 84% in Q3), and the 
year-end position of 79% is a small increase from last year’s result of 77%, and is 
significantly short of the target of 95% agreed by Customer Strategy Board.  

 
Over the full year, three ALMOs and Customer Access & Performance exceeded the 

target, one ALMO and two directorates fell slightly short, but two are highlighted as ‘red’ 
in failing to achieve target:  

• Children’s Social care (63%) 

• Environment & Neighbourhoods (49%) 
 

There has been no sign of sustained improvement through the year in these two areas.  
Further action is needed to ensure performance is consistent with the agreed 

performance standards of responding to complaints within 15 working days (and 20 
working days for Children’s Social Care complaints). 
 

The average response time across the authority to the Ombudsman’s first formal 
enquiries has increased this year.  The average this year is 31 calendar days against the 

Ombudsman’s service standard of of 28 calendar days, compared to last year’s average 
of 26.5 calendar days. 
 

Performance table overleaf - Note on R-A-G status and data quality 
The parameters used for the performance (R-A-G) status are detailed below, based on 

the current corporate standard of responding to 95% of stage 1 & 2 complaints within 
timescale. 

95% and above  - Green 

85 to 94%           - Amber 

84% and below   - Red 

 

For each directorate/ALMO, the top line represents this quarter’s result, and the bottom 

line is last quarter’s result. 

Complaints Analysis 
Quarter 4: January – March 2013 
and annual summary 2012/13 

Page 91



 

2 

†  Corporate standard is 15 working days, Adult Social Care and Children’s Social Care are 20 working days. 

Table 1 
Complaint 
analysis  
Q4 vs Q3 – 
2012/13 

Volume of complaints received  
this qtr / prev qtr 

Effectiveness of complaint handling Responsiveness Performance indicators 

Directorate / 
ALMO 

Service 
requests 

Stage 1 Stage 2 
Ombud 
-sman 

Stage 2 
complaints 
(% stage 1) 

LGO - 
financial 

settlement 
YTD 

LGO – 
fault 

found YTD 

Stage 1 
response within 

standard† 

Stage 2 
response 
within 15 
wkg days 

Ombud 
-sman ave 
days YTD 

Aire Valley 
ALMO 

2 171 5 4  
£175 3 

98% 100% 
28 

1 148 19 2  96% 95% 

East North East 
ALMO 

70 137 25 3  
£350 2 

99% 96% 
30 

46 161 23 2  94% 78% 

West North West 
ALMO 

24 241 19 6  
£500 5 

95% 100% 
33 

16 225 27 3  88% 89% 

Belle Isle TMO 
0 25 2 1  

- 0 
96% 100% 

29 
0 16 2 0  100% 100% 

Adult Social 
Care 

0 86 17 6  
- 1 

95%  
n/a 

0 79 13 11  97%  

Children's 
Services 

3 53 5 4  
£5049 10 

75%  
27 

1 67 3 4  73%  

City 
Development 

67 57 11 7  
£4250 1 

88% 82% 
31 

38 54 10 7  93% 90% 

Customer 
Access & 
Performance 

1 60 3 0  
- 0 

100% 100% 
n/a 

1 61 1 0  97% 100% 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

35 452 12 6  
£1100 5 

51% 50% 
33 

9 309 9 3  61% 56% 

Resources (& 
former 
Corporate 
Governance) 

15 82 6 2  

£2240 3 

89% 100% 

28.5 
25 87 4 3  92% 100% 

Total 
217 1364 105 39 6% 

£13664 30 
80% 84% 

31 
137 1207 111 35 8% 84% 83% 

P
age 92



 

3 

2. Commentary from Directorates / ALMOs failing to meet target in Q4 
 

2.1 Children’s  
See Children’s Services’ year-end commentary on page 9.   

 
2.2 Environment & Neighbourhoods  

 
Housing Partnerships and Housing Support 
Quarter 4 shows a significant decrease in the percentage of complaints responded to 

within the timescales from 89% to 33%. This may be as a result of a recent restructure 
which has meant a period of change and different staff acting as investigating officers 

who may be new to the complaints process. We are expecting an improvement in the 
response times as the complaints process has been reviewed, in particular focusing in 
sending timely reminders to all involved in investigating complaints and the admin of 

Siebel. 
 

Parks and Countryside 
Quarter 4 shows a significant decline in  the percentage of complaints responded to 37% 
of complaints in comparison to quarter 3 at 67%. This could be as a result of the change 

in structure which has yet to be reflected on Siebel. Previously grass cutting complaints 
sat with either EAS or the ALMOs and now are within Parks and Countryside. Further to a 

meeting with Customer Services, EAS and the E&N DCRO, Parks and Countryside 
reported they have responded to the incoming complaints but not had the opportunity or 
resources to ensure this is reflected in Siebel.  Parks and Countryside have identified 6 

staff to be Siebel trained and are aware of the need to ensure Siebel is updated. 

 
Waste Management 
Looking at Quarter 4 vs Q3  (12/13) results, one reason for the increase seen is due to 

the severe and prolonged  winter weather seen during Jan, Feb and March that resulted 
in two full service shut downs and the initiation of city wide service recovery.  This 
combined with a major rerouting of residual waste collections for over 100,000 

properties in the inner city areas, to increase overall service efficiency, but with an 
expected short term settling in period whilst these changes were implemented and 

embedded.   

 
The Waste Management staffing structure changes were due to take place within 
2012/13 however these were not agreed until Q4 2012/13.  The implementation is 
ongoing and will be finalised in July during Q1 2013/14.  This will have a significant 

impact on improved response rates as there will be an increased number of staff dealing 
with complaints on a day to day basis.  A data cleansing exercise is currently taking 

place in conjunction with the Contact Centre, Supervisors and Team Managers with 
Waste Management and all cases which have been dealt with, but not closed down, will 
be finalised and updated on Siebel.  This will provide a more accurate position moving 

into Q1 2013/14 and this should be evident when the performance figures are produced. 
 

The service are also working very closely with Supervisors and Team Managers, which 
will involve embedding a new process of handling complaints and this will be rolled out in 
Q1 2013/14 when the new staff are in post.  This will remove the need for Supervisors 

and Team Managers to access and update Siebel and this is where we have identified 
that some of the data is not truly reflective of where the service are on actually dealing 

with complaints. 

 

Page 93



 

4 

Complaints relating to equality issues. 
 

In 2010 changes were made to the CRM Leeds system. One of the changes was the 
inclusion of an ‘Equality Related’ tick box inside all complaints.  This allows the 

investigating officer to flag up if a complaint has any equality or discrimination related 
aspects.   

 
Services who have received complaints detailing equality issues have provided a brief 
commentary about the types of issues received over the reporting period and the 

outcome of the complaints.   
 

In 2011-12, the council flagged up 19 complaints as being equality related, which would 
appear to be a significant under-reporting of complaints with an equality or 
discrimination aspect.  During 2012-13 a pilot arrangement has been in place in City 

Development whereby a member of the Equalities team assists with the investigation of 
such complaints.  The pilot has been successful in identifying and addressing problems at 

an early stage, with only one case progressing to stage 2, and is being rolled out across 
the council during 2013-14.  

 

Table 2 Complaints containing equality related issues 

 

Directorate 

Equality 

cases 
identified 

on CRM 
Leeds 

2012-13 

Comments from DCROs on typical issues 

AVHL 2 
No comments 

ENEHL 1 

One complaint with a race discrimination aspect, from a 
tenant claims repairs have not been carried out because 

she is a gypsy, and that ENEHL are being racist against 
her due to this. Not upheld as discrimination. 

WNWHL 3 
Three complaints with an equality/discrimination 
aspect.  Three from disabled tenants about delays in 

repairs.  None were upheld as discrimination. 

Adult Social Care 0 
N/A 

 

Children’s 

Services 
0 

Eight complaints with an equality/discrimination aspect, 
but not logged as such on the CRM system.  Three 
complaints about disability discrimination (one upheld), 

three about race discrimination (one partially upheld), 
one about gender discrimination (not upheld), and one 

where the equality category was not explicit. 

City 

Development 
15 

The majority of complaints with an equality aspect were 

about disability/access.  One complaint was upheld and 
two partially upheld. 

Customer Access 
& Performance 

6 

Six complaints with an equality/discrimination aspect.  
Two about racial discrimination (none upheld), one 

about gender discrimination (not upheld), one about 
disability discrimination (not upheld), and two where 

the equality category was not clear (one partially 

Page 94



 

5 

upheld). 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

8 

Several complaints with an equality/discrimination 
aspect.  All about access problems, such as missed bin 
wheel out services. 

 

Resources 0 
N/A 

Total 35 
 

Page 95



 

6 

Annual summary (see table on page 8) 
 

4.1 Volume of complaints 
Looking at 2012-13 as a whole, the number of complaints at both stages 1 & 2 of the 

complaints procedure fell considerably.  Both stage 1 and Stage 2 complaints fell by 10% 
(Stage 1 from 6,073 to 5473, and Stage 2 from 415 to 371).  The level of complaints 
has fallen to its lowest level over the previous six years.  Stage 2 complaints also fell by 

a similar rate over the previous year, and the number of Local Government Ombudsman 
(LGO) decisions received fell by 11% to 146 from 164 last year. 

 
Members should note that the number of decisions received from the LGO can be 

different from the number of cases received (reported on page 2) owing to the number 
of investigations which start in one council year and end in a different council year.  The 
number of decisions recorded below also includes complaints where the LGO has used 

their discretion not to investigate or because the issue is outside of their jurisdiction. 
 

Table 3 Overview of performance 

 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Complaints - 

Stage 1 
6,466 7,632 7,496 7,870 6,073 5473 

Complaints - 

Stage 2 
314 523 529 534 415 371 

Ombudsman 

decisions 

received 

183 170 172 165 164 146 

Respond 

within 

standard 

63% 72% 79% 86% 77% 79% 

 
4.2 Effectiveness of complaint handling 

Useful measures of the effectiveness of our complaint handling are:  
• percentage of complaints that are escalated to stage 2 
• amount of financial settlement agreed by the LGO 

• % of cases where fault found by the LGO 
 

These indicators point to how effectively we handle complaints at the earliest 
opportunity, particularly where we do not need to have the LGO intervene.  The 
proportion of complaints escalated to stage 2 has remained at around 7-8% , the overall 

volume has reduced, and the LGO has found fault in around 20% of cases investigated. 
 

In previous years, the LGO has produced further detailed statistics on the council’s 
performance, including how many complaints were remedied during the LGO’s 
investigation and the number of cases where only minor injustice identified.  The LGO 

changed their way of handling complaints during 2012/13 and made the decision not to 
report this information for 2012/13 as it would not provide a comparable picture 

throughout the year.    
 

The total financial settlements agreed by the LGO for the previous 4 years are set out 
below:- 

Page 96



 

7 

09/10 = 44 cases £16,575 

10/11 = 47 cases £25,481 

11/12 = 35 cases £16,064 

  12/13 = 17 cases £13,664 

 
Both the total financial settlements made and the number of cases where the LGO 
considered that financial redress was appropriate have fallen this year, although this 

does point to a number of higher individual settlements. 
 

4.3 Responsiveness to customers 
Overall, the % of responses within standard has increased slightly from 77% to 79% 
against a target of 95%.  Although an improvement, this is somewhat disappointing, and 

possibly reflects both a tightening of resources and a lack of resilience in administering 
and investigating complaints within timescales at a time of significant organisational 

change.   
 
Adult Social Care, Aire Valley Homes, East North East Homes and Customer Access & 

Performance have performed very well and exceeded the target at stage 1.  Other areas 
are close (within 10%) to meeting the corporate target: Belle Isle TMO, City 

Development, Resources and West North West Homes.  However, significant 
performance improvements are needed in the following areas: 

• Children’s Services (63%) 

• Environment & Neighbourhoods (53%) 
 

4.4 Ombudsman 
The annual Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) letter to each local authority on its 
ombudsman complaints for 2012-13 is expected late July.  In previous years, the LGO 

has provided an in depth assessment of the council’s handling of complaints.  With the 
restructuring/downsizing of the LGO and the transfer of responsibility for housing 

complaints to the Housing Ombudsman, it is unlikely that the council will receive very 
detailed feedback on our performance and effectiveness, as the LGO focuses its efforts 
on more serious cases. 

 
During 2012-13, the LGO made 27 formal enquiries compared to 35 the previous year.  

The vast majority of investigations were conducted through requests for factual 
information (in the region of 80+ informal enquiries) without progressing those cases to 

a more formal investigation. 
 
The council has not received any public reports in the last 12 months, compared to four 

last year, however the LGO has indicated that the findings in one current case may be 
considered by the Ombudsman because of there is a high financial settlement involved.  

 
It is difficult to make any confident predictions about the impact on performance of the 
transfer from the LGO to the Housing Ombudsman of housing complaints. 

 
 

Page 97



 

8 

†  Corporate standard is 15 working days, Adult Social Care and Children’s Social Care are 20 working days. 
 

Table 4 
Complaint 
analysis  
2012/13 vs 
2011/12 

Volume of complaints received  
this year / prev year 

Effectiveness of complaint handling Responsiveness Performance indicators 

Directorate / 
ALMO 

Service 
requests 

Stage 1 Stage 2 
Ombud 
-sman 

Stage 2 
complaints 
(% stage 1) 

LGO - 
financial 

settlement 
YTD 

LGO – 
fault 

found YTD 

Stage 1 
response within 

standard† 

Stage 2 
response 
within 15 
wkg days 

Ombud 
-sman ave 
days YTD 

Aire Valley 
ALMO 

9 605 59 11  
£175 3 

98% 96% 
 

2 582 61 13 11% 96% 90% 

East North East 
ALMO 

161 566 66 7  
£350 2 

98% 89% 
 

105 510 56 10 11% 99% 82% 

West North West 
ALMO 

69 956 95 13  
£500 5 

92% 91 
 

152 1077 102 20 10% 98% 97% 

Belle Isle TMO 
1 53 4 1  

- 0 
92% 100% 

- 
0 48 6 0 13% 94% 83% 

Adult Social 
Care 

0 356 69 24  
- 1 

96%  
- 

0 415 4 9 1% 79%  

Children's 
Services 

17 302 13 32  
£5049 10 

63%  
 

0 359 13 44 4% 55  

City 
Development 

290 255 58 23  
£4250 1 

90% 86% 
 

258 315 62 24 20% 88% 94% 

Customer 
Access & 

Performance 

3 277 11 0  
- 0 

97% 100% 
- 13 338 7 0 2% 96% 57% 

Environment & 
Neighbourhoods 

150 1659 34 20  
£1100 5 

49% 56% 
 

248 2081 72 26 4% 53% 51% 

Resources (& 
former 

Corporate 
Governance) 

86 380 31 15  

£2240 3 

91% 94% 

 24 348 32 19  
81% 75% 

Total 
786 5409 440 146 8% 

£13664 30 
79% 85% 

 
802 6073 415 165 7% 77%  

P
age 98



 

9 

3. Commentary from Directorates / ALMOs failing to meet target in 
2012-13 

 
5.1 Children’s Services  
It is recognised that children’s services continues to face challenges in responding to 
complaints within the statutory standard.  Within Q1 and Q2 2011/12, issues were 

exacerbated due to a large scale restructure being taken across children’s social work 
service which meant that staff levels were not always optimal.  Additionally, movement 

within and restructuring of services meant that there was some difficulty of maintaining 
consistency in some cases.  With the completion of this restructure, there are much 
clearer lines of responsibility. 

 
The above should be considered in context of the following, however.  Throughout 

2012/13 there has been a consistent quarter on quarter increase on the number of 
complaints resolved within standard.  This has been influenced by systematically 
providing early intervention support and guidance to complaints’ investigators.  A new 

series of training for newly appointed investigators and refresher training for others is to 
be rolled out across 2013. 

 
5.2 Environment & Neighbourhoods  

 

EAS and Localities 
A high proportion of the complaints that are logged to Environmental Action Services 

relate to “parking”.  It is apparent that many of these contacts are actually appeals 
against fixed penalty notices (parking tickets) or are general correspondence. We are 
reviewing and refining the process to make sure that contacts that are not complaints 

are closed as soon as possible on Siebel and are handled through the appropriate 
process.  We are acknowledging compliments centrally to save time and ensure the 

acknowledgements are sent out. Since Summer 2012 the admin supervisors in the 
localities/specialist teams have been the local point of contact for complaints.  
Complaints arrive centrally with Business Support from the contact centre and are 

allocated out as appropriate.  We check the system 2-3 times a day so there should not 
be a delay in cases being passed to the teams for a response. Over the last few months 

the Business Support staff have gone back to checking complaints when they arrive to 
try to separate out those issues which are in fact service requests, rather than 
complaints about our service.  If we identify a case is a service request, not a complaint 

it is acknowledged immediately and closed down with all further processing and 
monitoring being done on Uniform. We expect the response rates will improve over the 

summer with the finalisation of the recruitment and staffing levels.  
 

Waste Management 
Overall the number of complaints for 12/13 has reduced from the previous year (11/12) 
reflecting improvement activities within the service focussed on the reliability of recycling 

collections. A factor this year has been the increased number of complaints seen during 
the summer where the capacity of the garden waste collection service is overwhelmed, 

evidenced by the volumes of garden waste placed out for kerbside collection. 
 
Regarding responsiveness of complaint handling, there is a relationship between the 

number of complaints received and the number responded to within standard timescales. 
This further evidences the lack of capacity within the service to handle complaints during 

peak times and the inability to adequately move resources from other services according 
to need. 

 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013  

Subject: Audited Statement of Accounts and the Value for Money Assessment            
2012/13 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. KPMG have issued their audit report to this Committee (see attached). The report 
provides:  

o an unqualified opinion on the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts;  

o confirms that audit has identified no significant adjustments; 

o a view that the Annual Governance Statement complies with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with 
other information they are aware of from their audit of the financial 
statements.  

o a value for money (VFM) conclusion that the Council has made proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. 

2. To date the Council has identified one post balance sheet event. This event 
relates to a provisional agreement to settle a contractual dispute within the 
Housing Revenue Account. The resulting provision is to be funded from an 
earmarked reserve.  

3. The accounts have been certified by the Responsible Finance Officer as a true 
and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31st March 2012.  

 Report author:  Chris Blythe 

Tel:  x74287 

Agenda Item 12

Page 101



 

 

Recommendations 

4. Members are asked to receive the report of the Council’s external auditors on the 
2012/13 accounts and to note that there are no audit amendments required to the 
Accounts. 

5. Members are asked to approve the final audited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts 
and the Chair to acknowledge the approval on behalf of the Committee by signing 
the appropriate section within the Statement of Responsibilities on page 1 of the 
accounts. 

6. On the basis of assurances received, the Chair is asked to sign the management 
representation letter on behalf of the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

7. Note KPMG’s VFM conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This Committee agreed to release the unaudited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts 
for public inspection on the 10th July 2013. Under this Committee’s terms of 
reference, members are now required to approve the Council’s final audited 
Statement of Accounts and consider any material amendments recommended by 
the auditors. 

2 Background information 

2.1 Under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, the Council’s 
statutory finance officer, the Director of Resources, has certified that the 
Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council. On completion of the Audit, the regulations also require that the 
accounts are approved by resolution of a Committee and published, together with 
the auditor’s opinion and report. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Key External Audit Findings 
 
3.1.1 Audit Opinion 

KPMG have determined that the 2012/13 accounts give a true and fair view of the 
Council’s financial position and they are therefore proposing to issue an 
unqualified audit opinion. 

  
3.1.2  Audit Differences 

On conclusion of the audit, KPMG identified no significant audit difference which 
required amendment to the accounts.    
 
 
 
 

Page 102



 

 

3.1.3 Audit Risks 
 

KPMG’s Financial Statements Audit Plan, as reported to this Committee on the 
19th March 2013, identified one main area of risk in compiling the financial 
statements for 2012/13, Namely the Council’s ability to meet the required savings 
target for the year. KPMG’s audit report recognises that this risk has been 
addressed. 
 

3.1.4 Audit recommendations  
 

The audit report identifies three recommendations (see Appendix 1 of KPMG’s 
report). All three relate to minor ICT control issues which have no significant 
impact on the accounts. All three are being addressed by management. There 
are no outstanding recommendations from previous years which require further 
Council action. 

 
3.1.5 Use of Resources 
 

KPMG are required to report to those charged with governance, any governance 
issues identified when discharging their statutory audit responsibilities. They have 
therefore included in their report an update on the Council’s arrangements to 
secure value for money in its use of resources.  

KPMG have concluded that the Council has made proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 
3.1.6 Review of the Annual Governance Statement 
 

KPMG have confirmed that, in their opinion, the statement complies with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with other 
information they are aware of from their audit of the financial statements. 
     

3.2 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
3.2.1 Under proper accounting practice the Council is required to consider any post 

balance sheet events which, if known at the time of the accounts being produced, 
would have significantly altered the Council’s financial statements. If such events 
have occurred then the Council is required to amend the accounts if the 
cumulative value of the events would have a material impact on the Council’s 
financial statements. Such events must be considered up until this Committee 
approves the final accounts and the auditors provide their audit certificate.  

3.2.2 As at the 20th September there has been one such events, whereby the Council 
has reached a provisional agreement to pay £2m for works completed in respect 
of the Housing Revenue Account. As the payment is still subject to final 
agreement the Council has created a £2m provision which has been fully funded 
from earmarked reserves. 

 

Page 103



 

 

3.2.3 As outlined in para 3.2.1 above, any post balance sheet events must be 
considered up until the accounts are approved. As such a verbal update will be 
provided at Committee to confirm the final position.  

3.3 Public Inspection Queries 

3.3.1 Under the statutory timescales for public inspection of the accounts, the Council 
has had a number of enquiries requesting information in respect of PFI schemes; 
City Centre Management; the Trinity development and Kirkgate Market. Under 
statute, stakeholders have the right to question the auditors and request either an 
amendment to the accounts or the issuing of a public inspection report. As of the 
20th September no questions have been raised to the auditors on these or any 
other issues. 

3.4 Management Representation letter 

 

3.4.1 The auditors are required by the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice to 
undertake the audit work on the accounts in compliance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). ISAs contain a mixture of mandatory procedures 
and explanatory guidance.  Within the mandatory procedures are requirements to 
obtain written representations from management on certain matters material to 
the audit opinion. The management representation letter is designed to give audit 
such assurances. In respect of the 2012/13 accounts the letter is contained in the 
attached KPMG report as appendix 3. After consultation with appropriate officers, 
the Director of Resources has signed to confirm that officers are not aware of any 
compliance issues on the representation matters raised in the letter.  

3.4.2 The Committee is asked to consider whether members are aware of any issues 
they want to bring to the auditors attention in respect of the matters addressed in 
the management representation letter. If there are no such issues the Committee 
is asked to agree that the Chair can sign the letter on behalf of the Committee.  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance no public, Ward 
Member or Councillor consultation or engagement has been sought. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance there are no direct 
implications for equality, diversity, cohesion and integration. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 As this is a factual report based on past financial performance there are no direct 
implications for Council policies or City priorities. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 KPMG’s report includes an audit opinion on whether the Council has proper 
arrangements for securing value for money. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 require the audited Statement 
of Accounts to be published before the 30th September. Under this Committees 

Page 104



 

 

terms of reference, members are required to approve the Council’s final audited 
Statement of Accounts and consider any material amendments recommended by 
the auditors. 

4.5.2 As this is a factual report based on past financial information none of the 
information enclosed is deemed to be sensitive or requesting decisions going 
forward and therefore raises no issues for access to information or call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 External Audit identified three minor risks in their recommendations and officers 
have established new procedures and controls to mitigate these risks.    

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The external audit report provides the following assurances to members: 

o An unqualified opinion on the 2012/13 Statement of accounts. 

o A value for money conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

o Confirmation that in the auditor’s opinion the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement complies with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. 

5.2 External Audit have made three recommendation in respect of minor ICT controls. 
The Council has put in place arrangements to comply with these recommendations.  

5.3 As at the 20th September 2012 there has been one significant post balance sheet 
events identified. The 2012/13 accounts have been adjusted accordingly. 

5.4 To date there are no public inspection queries which have require amendments to 
the accounts. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to receive the report of the Council’s external auditors on the 
2012/13 accounts and to note that there are no audit amendments required to the 
Accounts. 

6.2 Members are asked to approve the final audited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts 
and the Chair to acknowledge the approval on behalf of the Committee by signing 
the appropriate section within the Statement of Responsibilities on page 1 of the 
accounts.   

6.3 On the basis of assurances received, the Chair is asked to sign the management 
representation letter on behalf of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.  

6.4 Note KPMG’s VFM conclusion that the Council has made proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 None. 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e
 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it

h
 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

(I
S

A
 2

6
0
) 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

L
e
e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

Page 107



1
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

W
e
 t

a
k
e
 n

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
a
p

a
c
it

ie
s

, 
o

r 
to

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i

s
s
u

e
d

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

e
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 b
e
g

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
. 

W
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li
c
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l

a
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li
c
 m

o
n

e
y
 i

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
d

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
a
ll

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

.

If
 y

o
u

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h
, 

th
e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 

tr
y
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
y
o

u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

T
re

v
o

r 
R

e
e
s
 o

n
 0

1
6
1

2
4
6
 4

0
0
0
, 

o
r 

b
y
 e

m
a
il
 t

o
 

tr
e
v
o

r.
re

e
s
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k

, 
w

h
o

 i
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
’s

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

A
ft

e
r 

th
is

, 
if

 y
o

u
 a

re
 s

ti
ll
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
w

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a
n

d
le

d
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

. 
P

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 A
u

d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 

 3
rd

F
lo

o
r,

 F
ry

 B
u

il
d

in
g

, 
2
 M

a
rs

h
a
m

S
tr

e
e
t,

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
S

W
1
P

 4
D

F
 o

r 
b

y
 e

m
a
il
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

@
a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

s
i.

g
o

v
.u

k
. 

T
h

e
ir

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

is
 

0
3
0
3
4
4
4
8
3
3
0
.

T
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c

ts
 a

t 
K

P
M

G
 

in
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h

P
a

rt
n

e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
 (

U
K

)

M
o

b
: 
  

0
7

9
0

1
 5

8
0

5
2

5

m
ic

h
a
e
l.
a
.m

c
d
o
n
a
g
h
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

H
e

a
th

e
r 

G
a

rr
e

tt

S
e

n
io

r
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
 (

U
K

)

M
o

b
: 
  

0
7

7
7

1
 9

1
2

8
1

6

h
e
a
th

e
r.

g
a
rr

e
tt

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

C
h

ri
s

 H
a

ll
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
 (

U
K

)

M
o

b
: 
  

0
7

9
2

1
 4

5
0

5
0

2

c
h
ri
s
.h

a
ll2

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

P
a
g

e

R
e
p

o
rt

 s
e
c
ti

o
n

s

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

2

H
e
a
d
lin

e
s

3

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

5

V
F

M
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
8

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s

1
.

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

2
.

D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n

o
f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

3
.

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 l
e
tt
e
r

1
1

1
3

1
5

Page 108



2
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
p

lit
 i
n

to
 f
o

u
r 

p
h

a
s
e

s
:

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
o

n
 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
w

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f
ir

s
t 
tw

o
 s

ta
g

e
s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
In

te
ri

m

A
u

d
it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

is
s
u

e
d

 in
 J

u
ly

. 
N

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
t 
th

a
t 
s
ta

g
e

.

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
tw

o
 s

ta
g

e
s
: 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
.

O
u

r 
fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 v

is
it
 o

n
 s

it
e

 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
0

 J
u

ly
 a

n
d

1
6

A
u

g
u

s
t.

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

, 
w

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
:

W
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
. 
S

o
m

e
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

:

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

O
u

r 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 o
u

r 
ri

s
k
-b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 

V
F

M
 w

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 f

o
llo

w
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
:

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l V
F

M
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l a
u

d
it
 

ri
s
k
s
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
;

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
o

th
e

r 

in
s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
.

S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

T
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
:

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 2

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

d
lin

e
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
.

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 3

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 4

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 V
F

M
 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

O
u

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n

d
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

fi
n

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

is
 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

.

A
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

W
e
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t
o

 t
h

a
n

k
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 h

e
lp

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

.

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
:

th
e

 k
e

y
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 o
f 

L
e

e
d

s
 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 (
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

‘s
) 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
; 

a
n

d

o
u

r 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 s

e
c

u
re

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
e

y
 (

V
F

M
) 

in
 i
ts

 u
s

e
 o

f 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

in
g

Substantive 

Procedures

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 a
u

d
it
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
.

C
o

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

. 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 a
u

d
it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t.
 

Completion

D
e

c
la

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
.

O
b

ta
in

in
g

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 o
f 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t.

F
o

rm
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

Page 109



3
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 o

n
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 

o
p

in
io

n

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
 B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 

d
a

te
 w

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 is
s
u

in
g

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

w
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

rd
s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
. 

A
u

d
it

 a
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

W
e
 a

re
 p

le
a

s
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 n

o
 a

u
d

it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t,
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

ta
l 
o

r 
n

e
t 
w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 a

m
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 w

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l 
a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 

m
a

tt
e

rs

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
. 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
is

s
u

e
s

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
. 

O
n

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ra
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 

R
e

g
io

n
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
’ 
B

o
a

rd
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 g

ra
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 in

 c
re

d
it
o

rs
. 
 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c

e
s

s

W
e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
n

o
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 a
 m

o
re

 s
tr

e
a

m
lin

e
d

 s
e

t 
o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
s
ti
ll 

m
e

e
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

T
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 g

o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
e

a
lt
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 w

it
h

 a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

ll
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 in

 o
u

r 
IS

A
 2

6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
la

s
t 
y
e

a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

o
n

v
e

rt
in

g
 t
o

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

ta
tu

s
, 
w

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l t
e

s
ti
n

g
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 d

is
p

o
s
a

ls
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
 F

ro
m

 t
h

is
 

w
o

rk
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 e

rr
o

rs
 o

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

ta
tu

s
.

IT
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

W
e

fo
u

n
d

th
e

o
v
e

ra
ll

h
ig

h
le

v
e

l
IT

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

a
n

d
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
in

p
la

c
e

to
b

e
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

. 
 

F
o

r
th

e
s
y
s
te

m
s

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

,
w

e
fo

u
n

d
th

e
g

e
n

e
ra

l
IT

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e

r
a

c
c
e
s
s

to
p

ro
g

ra
m

s
a
n
d

d
a
ta

,
p

ro
g

ra
m

c
h
a

n
g
e

s

a
n

d
c
o

m
p

u
te

r
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

to
b

e
g

e
n

e
ra

lly
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
w

e
fo

u
n

d
th

re
e

c
o

n
tr

o
l

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
w

h
ic

h
h

a
v
e

b
e

e
n

in
c
lu

d
e

d
in

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

1
a

n
d

h
a

v
e

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

b
e
e

n

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
T

h
e

s
e

fi
n

d
in

g
s

d
id

n
o

t
h

a
v
e

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
im

p
a

c
t
o

n
o

u
r

a
u

d
it

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

.

S
p

e
c
if
ic

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
h

a
v
e

b
e

e
n

m
a

d
e

o
f

th
e

ri
s
k

fo
r

e
a
c
h

is
s
u

e
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
,

w
it
h

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s

to
a

d
d

re
s
s

o
u

r

a
re

a
s

o
f

c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
  

Page 110



4
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 o

n
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

A
t

th
e

d
a

te
o

f
th

is
re

p
o

rt
o
u

r
a

u
d

it
o
f

th
e

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

is
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
c
o

m
p

le
te

s
u
b

je
c
t

to
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e

fo
llo

w
in

g
a

re
a

s
:

P
o

s
t 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 
e

v
e

n
ts

 r
e

v
ie

w
;

F
in

a
lr

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 
a

n
d

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t.

B
e

fo
re

w
e

c
a
n

is
s
u

e
o
u

r
o
p

in
io

n
w

e
re

q
u

ir
e

a
s
ig

n
e

d
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
le

tt
e

r.
O

u
r

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
w

o
rd

in
g

fo
r

th
is

is
in

c
lu

d
e

d
in

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
3

.

W
e

c
o
n

fi
rm

th
a

t
w

e
h

a
v
e

c
o
m

p
lie

d
w

it
h

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
o

n
o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

a
n
d

in
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

c
e

in
re

la
ti
o

n
to

th
is

y
e

a
r’

s
a

u
d
it

o
f
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

ls
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

A
fu

ll
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
is

in
c
lu

d
e

d
in

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

.

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
S

u
b

je
c
t
to

 o
u

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
  
m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 in

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

W
e
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 is
s
u

in
g

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
.

V
F

M
 r

is
k

 a
re

a
s

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 V
F

M
ri

s
k
s
 w

e
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 o
u

r 
E

x
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

:

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
d

 a
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
£

5
5

m
ill

io
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  
W

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 in

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
  

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
ts

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

£
6

.7
m

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 b
y
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 in

 s
ta

ff
 o

f 
1

9
2

 f
u

ll 
ti
m

e
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 le
a

v
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl

y
 L

e
a

v
e

rs
 S

c
h

e
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

8
0

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
. 
 

Page 111



5
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
e

s
, 
w

e
 

a
n

ti
c

ip
a

te
 i
s

s
u

in
g

 a
n

 

u
n

q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
c

c
o

rd
s

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 o
u

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
, 
w

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 is
s
u

in
g

 a
n

 

u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

 b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

A
u

d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

W
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 n
e

t 

c
o

s
t 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

, 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 o
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
.

W
e
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
o

m
e

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 

K
in

g
d

o
m

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 (
‘t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
’)
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 

th
a

t: it
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 G

o
o

d
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 in
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t:
 

A
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 C

IP
F

A
/S

O
L

A
C

E
; 

a
n

d

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
m

is
le

a
d

in
g

 o
r 

in
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

C
ri

ti
c

a
l 
a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 w
o

rk
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
e

 r
is

k
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 r
is

k
 a

ls
o

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 o
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
ro

u
n

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 g
o

in
g

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r.

D
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ra
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 R

e
g

io
n

 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

’ B
o

a
rd

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 g

ra
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 is
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 in

 c
re

d
it
o

rs
 in

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
 

Page 112



6
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
a

 g
o

o
d

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

.

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 d

e
a

lt
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 

a
u

d
it

 q
u

e
ri

e
s

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

 w
a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

ti
m

e
s

c
a

le
s

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
IS

A
 

2
6

0
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 

to
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

IS
A

 2
6

0
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 u

s
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t
o

 y
o

u
 o

u
r 

v
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

u
d

it
. 

W
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
ri

te
ri

a
: 

P
ri

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 in

 o
u

r 

IS
A

 2
6

0
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

e
ld

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 d

is
p

o
s
a

ls
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

ta
tu

s
 w

e
re

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

a
s
s
e

ts
.

E
le

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 it
s
 s

tr
o

n
g

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 f
o

re
w

o
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 is

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 in
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
in

g
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
fo

llo
w

W
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

n
e

s
s

 

o
f 

d
ra

ft
 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 

W
e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 s
e

t 
o

f 
d

ra
ft

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

n
 2

 J
u

ly
. 

T
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 
w

h
ils

t 
s
ti
ll 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

W
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
u

n
ti
l 
2

8
 A

u
g

u
s
t.

 W
e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 
th

a
t 
in

 

fu
tu

re
 t
h

e
 A

G
S

 i
s
 r

e
a

d
y
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
n

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

n
y
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
.

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

p
a

p
e

rs
 

O
u

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

ro
to

c
o

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

1
8

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 

T
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 m
e

t 
th

e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 o
u

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

ro
to

c
o

l.

E
le

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

p
a

p
e

rs
  

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

W
o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 u
s
 w

h
e

n
 

w
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
h

e
m

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
a

u
d

it
. 
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 

to
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 

a
u

d
it

 q
u

e
ri

e
s

 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 in

 a
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 

ti
m

e
. 

G
ro

u
p

 a
u

d
it

T
o

 g
a

in
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 g
ro

u
p

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 
w

e
 p

la
c
e

 r
e

lia
n

c
e

 o
n

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 B

D
O

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

A
ir

e
V

a
lle

y
 H

o
m

e
s
 L

e
e

d
s
 L

td
, 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

td
 a

n
d

 E
a

s
t 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 L

e
e

d
s
 L

td
.

W
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

w
a

it
 c

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 B

D
O

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 m

a
te

ri
a

l m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
ir

 

a
u

d
it
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
.

Page 113



7
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
re

e
 –

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

W
e

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

c
o

m
p

li
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

o
n

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y
 a

n
d

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

B
e

fo
re

 w
e

 c
a

n
 i
s

s
u

e
 o

u
r 

o
p

in
io

n
 w

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 s
ig

n
e

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

le
tt

e
r.

 

O
n

c
e

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 f
in

a
li

s
e

d
 o

u
r 

o
p

in
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
s

 

w
e

 w
il

l 
p

re
p

a
re

 o
u

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
lo

s
e

 o
u

r 

a
u

d
it

.

D
e

c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

e
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 y

o
u

 w
it
h

 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 o

u
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

. 

In
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
, 
w

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 it
s
 d

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

m
a

y
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 s

ta
ff

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 

w
it
h

 I
S

A
 2

6
0

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s

Y
o

u
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 y

o
u

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 l
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 u
n

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 

te
m

p
la

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

e
p

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 &
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
a

 

d
ra

ft
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

. 
W

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

 s
ig

n
e

d
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 

y
o

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

W
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

s
k
in

g
 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

.

O
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs

IS
A

 2
6

0
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 u

s
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t
o

 y
o

u
 b

y
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 ‘
a

u
d

it
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 

o
f 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t 
th

a
t 
a

ri
s
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
’ w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 e

n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
;

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
, 
o

r 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t;

o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
, 
if
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l j

u
d

g
m

e
n

t,
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
; 
a

n
d

m
a

tt
e

rs
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

r 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 (
e

.g
. 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

d
e

fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 in

 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l;
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

, 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
, 
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
e

v
e

n
ts

, 
n

o
n

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
, 
p

u
b

lic
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

, 
q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
/o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 e

tc
.)

. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
.

Page 114



8
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 t
h

e
ir

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

tw
o

 c
ri

te
ri

a
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r:

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

: 
lo

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
; 
a

n
d

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 h
o

w
 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
: 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
.

W
e
 f
o

llo
w

 a
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

it
 e

ff
o

rt
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

T
h

e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
re

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 

d
ia

g
ra

m
 b

e
lo

w
. 

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

W
e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l w
o

rk
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
 B

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 d
a

te
 w

e
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

h
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 in

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

 

c
o

n
s

id
e

rs
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
e

c
u

re
s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 h
o

w
 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 

e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s

e
 o

f 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
.

V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o

f 

re
s
id

u
a

l a
u

d
it
 

ri
s
k

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 V
F

M
 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 (
if
 

a
n

y
)

C
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 o
n

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 

V
F

M

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 

o
th

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 lo
c
a

l 
ri

s
k
 b

a
s
e

d
 

w
o

rk

VFM conclusion

V
F

M
 c

ri
te

ri
o

n
M

e
t

S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

Page 115



9
©

 2
0

1
3

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 p

a
g

e
, 
a

n
d

 

in
 o

u
r 

A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 k
e

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 

o
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
;

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l a
u

d
it
 r

is
k
s
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
, 
ta

k
in

g
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 o

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
; 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
o

th
e

r 

in
s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

B
e

lo
w

 w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
th

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

o
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

W
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

e
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 

V
F

M
 r

is
k

.

In
 a

ll
 c

a
s

e
s

 w
e

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 

th
a

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
o

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

s
c

ru
ti

n
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

th
e

s
e

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 a
n

 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
o

f 
£

6
.7

 m
il

li
o

n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 h

a
s

 s
e

t 
a

 b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

.

K
e

y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
R

is
k

 d
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
 t

o
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

F
in

d
in

g
s

T
h

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

to
ta

lli
n

g
 £

5
5

.4
 m

ill
io

n
. 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
t 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

s
ta

g
e

 o
f 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 s

ti
ll 

s
o

m
e

 r
is

k
 

th
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

ll.
 A

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

w
e

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
ir

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 a

n
d

 w
e

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

A
s
 a

t 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

a
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

b
y
 £

5
7

6
,0

0
0

 o
n

 i
ts

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 a

 n
e

t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

1
.3

 m
ill

io
n

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
, 
o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 £

1
.8

 m
ill

io
n

 o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 in

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

s
ts

. 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 t
h

e
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 1

9
th

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

, 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
£

5
1

 m
ill

io
n

 i
n

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

th
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

 b
a

c
k
d

ro
p

 o
f 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 a
n

d
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 in

 A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
s
e

c
u

re
s
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 i
ts

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s
. 
 F

ro
m

 o
u

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t,

 w
e

 w
e

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
a

s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 it

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t’
s
 o

w
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
tr

e
n

g
th

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

c
a

p
it
a

l a
n

d
 d

e
b

t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 im

p
a

c
ts

 t
h

e
 M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

P
la

n
 (

M
T

F
P

) 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 
k
e

y
 r

a
ti
o

s
.

T
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 in

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
, 
w

e
re

 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l a
u

d
it
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 o
u

r 

a
u

d
it
 p

la
n

.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

o
f 
£

6
.7

m
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l b

u
d

g
e

t.
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 u
s
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 g
a

p
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 £
0

.2
m

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 £
6

.9
m

. 
T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 a

llo
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t
o

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 e
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 b

y
 £

3
.7

m
.

A
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 is

 

b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
£

5
1

m
).

  

(C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 o

n
 p

a
g

e
 1

0
)

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 

Page 116



1
0

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

W
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

e
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 

V
F

M
 r

is
k

.

In
 a

ll
 c

a
s

e
s

 w
e

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 

th
a

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
o

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

s
c

ru
ti

n
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

th
e

s
e

 r
is

k
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 a
n

 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
o

f 
£

6
.7

 m
il

li
o

n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 h

a
s

 s
e

t 
a

 b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

.

K
e

y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
R

is
k

 d
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
 t

o
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

F
in

d
in

g
s

O
n

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 r
is

k
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
t 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
if
 t
h

e
y
 

c
ry

s
ta

lli
s
e

 in
to

 a
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
lia

b
ili

ty
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

 a
n

d
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 g

iv
e

 u
s
 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 t
h

is
 r

is
k
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

th
is

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 u

p
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

 o
ff

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 
n

o
w

 s
e

t 

a
 f
o

rm
a

l 
M

T
F

P
 t

o
 p

la
n

 a
h

e
a

d
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 

Page 117



1
1

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 e
a

c
h

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
 r

is
k

 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 

a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 r
is

k
s

 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 

fu
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 y
o

u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l.
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 
th

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 m

ig
h

t 
m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
m

e
e

t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 r
is

k
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

w
o

:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

b
u

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
. 

Y
o

u
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll 

m
e

e
t 
a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 
in

 f
u

ll 
o

r 
in

 p
a

rt
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 
ri

s
k
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 b

u
t 
th

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 in

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
re

e
:
is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
, 

if
 

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
b

u
t 
a

re
 n

o
t 
v
it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 f

e
e

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
y
o

u
 i
f 
y
o

u
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

th
e

m
.

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 /
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
/ 

d
u

e
 d

a
te

1
P

h
y
s

ic
a

l
a

c
c

e
s

s
to

s
e

rv
e

r
ro

o
m

s

It
w

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 i
n

 o
u

r 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

a
u

d
it
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
e

r 
ro

o
m

s
.

W
e
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

1
2

4
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 1

9
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

d
a

ta
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

In
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

e
r 

ro
o

m
s
 c

a
n

 c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 
 

W
h
ils

t
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r,

 a
s
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 w
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 l
is

t 
o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l w
h

o
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
e

r 
ro

o
m

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

w
h

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
.

IC
T

 a
re

 c
o

n
d

u
c
ti
n

g
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
e

r 
ro

o
m

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
s
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
u

le
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

a
ta

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
ti
n

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
. 
It

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 

lo
g

 (
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 v

ia
 t
h

e
 c

a
rd

 k
e

y
 

s
y
s
te

m
) 

o
f 

w
h

o
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 r

o
o

m
s
 

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
w

h
a

t 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 I
C

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

2
A

s
s

e
t

re
g

is
te

r
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

c
h

a
n

g
e

a
u

th
o

ri
s

a
ti

o
n

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 a

re
 t
e

s
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

, 
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 

n
o

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
. 
 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
u

n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 a

n
d

/o
r 

e
rr

o
n

e
o

u
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
.

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 a

s
a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

w
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
 f

o
rm

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
 

a
p

p
ro

v
in

g
  
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
 t
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 w
h

e
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
, 
a

n
d

 b
y
 

w
h

o
m

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t,
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

Page 118



1
2

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 e
a

c
h

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
 r

is
k

 

ra
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 i
n

 

a
d

d
re

s
s

in
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 r
is

k
s

 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
.

W
e

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
a

ll
y
 f

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 /
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
/ 

d
u

e
 d

a
te

3
F

M
S

S
ta

rt
e

rs
P

ro
c

e
s

s

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

a
u

d
it
, 
 w

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

fo
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 s
ta

rt
e

rs
. 
 W

e
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 

n
o

t 
re

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 s
ta

rt
e

rs
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 g

ra
n

te
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 F
M

S
. 

 

O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
y
e

a
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f
o

u
r 

n
e

w
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
e

re
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 

o
f 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

.

T
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
u

n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
o

u
ld

 im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l d
a

ta
. 

W
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

. 
 N

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

th
is

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
. 
 

W
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

M
S

 s
ta

rt
e

rs
.

T
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
rs

 is
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 

c
e

n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 f
u

ll 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

w
it
h

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
. 
It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
b

e
 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
o

u
r 

c
a

s
e

s

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 g

iv
e

n
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 

ri
g

h
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 li

tt
le

 r
is

k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 o
f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l d
a

ta
.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r:

 P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t,
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

D
u

e
 d

a
te

: 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

Page 119



1
3

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y

R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 m

u
s
t 
c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e

C
o

d
e

 o
f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
th

e
 C

o
d

e
) 

w
h

ic
h

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h

a
t:

 

“A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 t
h

e
ir

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 a

c
t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
, 
o

r 
a

n
y
 f
ir

m
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
n

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
is

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

, 
s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 t
h

a
t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
re

la
te

 d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
’ f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
if
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a

ir
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
’ 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
r 

m
ig

h
t 
g

iv
e

 r
is

e
 t
o

 a
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
ir

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
a

ir
e

d
.”

In
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri

n
g

 is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l,
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 a
n

d
 l
e

g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
, 
th

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 in
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

S
ta

n
d

in
g

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 (

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

G
u

id
a

n
c
e

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 1

 I
n

te
g

ri
ty

, 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

(E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
).

 

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
ir

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 

fo
rc

e
, 
a

n
d

 a
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
im

e
 t
o

 t
im

e
. 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
IS

A
 

(U
K

 &
I)

 2
6

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 w
it
h

 T
h

o
s
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

’ t
h

a
t 
a

re
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
lis

te
d

 c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
. 
T

h
is

 

m
e

a
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
m

u
s
t 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

 in
 w

ri
ti
n

g
:

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
a

ll 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

lie
n

t,
 i
ts

 

d
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 f
ir

m
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

lie
n

t,
 it

s
 

d
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 m
a

y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

.

T
h

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

.

T
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

fi
rm

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

lie
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 
a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
 i
n

to
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
ta

x
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

n
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
F

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 c
a

te
g

o
ry

, 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
a

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 a

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 

a
re

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
. 
W

e
 d

o
 t

h
is

 i
n

 o
u

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r.

A
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 in
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l j

u
d

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
is

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 is

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

d
, 
o

r 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 d

e
c
la

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e
d

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

la
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 f
o

llo
w

 f
ro

m
 

h
is

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 u

s
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 in
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
a

n
n

u
a

lly
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fa

c
ts

 a
n

d
 m

a
tt

e
rs

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 o
u

r 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 m

a
y
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 o
u

r 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 

o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
e

a
m

.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
it

y

K
P

M
G

's
 r

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 is

 b
u

ilt
, 
in

 g
re

a
t 
p

a
rt

, 
u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 o
p

in
io

n
s
. 
T

h
a

t 
in

te
g

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 

th
a

t 
K

P
M

G
 p

e
rf

o
rm

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 in
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
. 
A

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 

e
v
a

lu
a

te
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 i
m

p
a

ir
 t
h

a
t 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

.

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
s

 u
s

 t
o

 e
x

e
rc

is
e

 o
u

r 

p
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

a
c

t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 o

f 
b

o
th

 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

Page 120



1
4

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
it

y
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

A
c
ti
n

g
 a

s
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f
ir

m
, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 f
ir

m
's

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

. 

K
P

M
G

's
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

re
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 in

 t
h

e
 E

th
ic

s
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 M
a

n
u

a
l 
(‘

th
e

 M
a

n
u

a
l’)

. 
T

h
e

 

M
a

n
u

a
l 
s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 m

u
s
t 
a

d
h

e
re

 t
o

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 

o
f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
a

n
d

 i
n

 d
e

a
lin

g
s
 w

it
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
. 

K
P

M
G

 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 

th
e

s
e

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
. 
 T

h
e

 M
a

n
u

a
l 
is

 d
iv

id
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
w

o
 p

a
rt

s
. 
P

a
rt

 1
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 

K
P

M
G

's
 e

th
ic

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 

m
u

s
t 
o

b
s
e

rv
e

 b
o

th
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
a

lin
g

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
h

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
. 
P

a
rt

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n

u
a

l 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 w
h

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
u

c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 m
u

s
t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 in
 t
h

e
 M

a
n

u
a

l 

a
n

d
 f
o

llo
w

 t
h

e
m

 a
t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s
. 
T

o
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

a
n

d
 

a
d

h
e

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 M

a
n

u
a

l,
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
E

th
ic

s
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 t
h

e
s
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 c

a
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
 

a
c
ti
o

n
.

A
u

d
it

o
r 

d
e

c
la

ra
ti

o
n

 

In
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
, 
w

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 

w
e

re
 n

o
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 i
ts

 

d
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

m
a

y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 s

ta
ff

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 E
th

ic
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
’s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

W
e

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

c
o

m
p

li
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

o
n

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y
 a

n
d

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

Page 121



1
5

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
: 

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r

D
e

a
r 

S
ir

s

T
h

is
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 le

tt
e

r 
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(“
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
”)

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 
e

x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 

a
s
 t
o

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

s
e

:

i.
g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 G
ro

u
p

 a
s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 o
f 
it
s
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
n

 e
n

d
e

d
; 
a

n
d

ii.
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 

th
e

 U
n

it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
.

T
h

e
s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

G
ro

u
p

 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

G
ro

u
p

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

G
ro

u
p

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 S
h

e
e

t,
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

G
ro

u
p

 C
a

s
h

 F
lo

w
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 

th
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 n
o

te
s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n

fi
rm

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 it

 m
a

k
e

s
 in

 t
h

is
 l
e

tt
e

r 

a
re

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 t
h

is
 

le
tt

e
r.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n

fi
rm

s
 t
h

a
t,

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
o

f 
it
s
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

lie
f,

 

h
a

v
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 s

u
c
h

 i
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

s
 i
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 

o
f 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 in
fo

rm
in

g
 i
ts

e
lf
:

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

1
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 f
u

lf
ill

e
d

 it
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 
a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

8
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

1
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t:

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
’s

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

n
 e

n
d

e
d

; 
a

n
d

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
.

T
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 o
n

 a
 g

o
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 

b
a

s
is

.

2
.

M
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 a
t 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
, 
a

re
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

. 

3
.

A
ll 

e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 o

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
. 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

4
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 y
o

u
 w

it
h

:

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
is

 a
w

a
re

, 
th

a
t 
is

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
to

 

th
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
, 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
;

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
; 
a

n
d

u
n

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

 

fr
o

m
 w

h
o

m
 y

o
u

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 it

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 o
b

ta
in

 a
u

d
it
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

. 

5
.

A
ll 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

a
re

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
 

6
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s
 it

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
s
u

c
h

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l a

s
 i
t 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 f
re

e
 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
d

u
e

 

to
 f
ra

u
d

 o
r 

e
rr

o
r.

 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s
 it

s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l c
o

n
tr

o
l t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 d
e

te
c
t 
fr

a
u

d
 a

n
d

 e
rr

o
r.

 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

 a
s
 

a
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
.

W
e

 a
s

k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 

w
it

h
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 s

u
c

h
 a

s
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 a
re

 l
e

g
a

l 

a
n

d
 u

n
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
s

e
 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 i
s

 

p
re

s
c

ri
b

e
d

 b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

W
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 s

ig
n

e
d

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 

y
o

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

is
s

u
e

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

Page 122



1
6

©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
: 

D
ra

ft
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r

7
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

:

a
)

F
ra

u
d

 o
r 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f
ra

u
d

 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

ff
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
:

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t;

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ro

le
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

l;
 o

r

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 f
ra

u
d

 c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 
a

n
d

b
)

a
lle

g
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
, 
o

r 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f
ra

u
d

, 
a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 
fo

rm
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
ts

, 
re

g
u

la
to

rs
 o

r 
o

th
e

rs
.

8
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

ll 
k
n

o
w

n
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 o
r 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 

w
h

o
s
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

9
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 

fo
r 

a
n

d
/o

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 

th
e

 C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

in
 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 a

ll 
k
n

o
w

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 li

ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 c

la
im

s
 w

h
o

s
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

1
0

.T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 G
ro

u
p

’s
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
is

 a
w

a
re

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
re

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

a
n

d
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 in

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
.

In
c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 t
o

 t
h

is
 l
e

tt
e

r 
a

re
 t
h

e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 a
 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

s
 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 a

s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 in
 I

A
S

 2
4

, 
e

x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 f
it
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 in
 

th
e

 C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

in
 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
.

1
1

.O
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
in

g
 

m
a

d
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
tu

a
ri

a
l a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
n

s
io

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

lia
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 i
ts

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
.

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

s
 t
h

a
t:

a
)

a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

ti
re

m
e

n
t 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

th
a

t: a
re

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
, 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l o

r 
im

p
lic

it
 in

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r'
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
;

a
ri

s
e

 in
 t
h

e
 U

K
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 R

e
p

u
b

lic
 o

f 
Ir

e
la

n
d

 o
r 

o
v
e

rs
e

a
s
;

a
re

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 o
r 

u
n

fu
n

d
e

d
; 
a

n
d

a
re

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

r 
u

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
, 

  
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r;
 a

n
d

a
)

a
ll 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rt

a
ilm

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.

T
h

is
 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

a
s
 t

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
2

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
.

Y
o

u
rs

 f
a

it
h

fu
lly

,

C
h

a
ir

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

O
ff

ic
e

r

W
e

 a
s

k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 

w
it

h
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 s

u
c

h
 a

s
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 a
re

 l
e

g
a

l 

a
n

d
 u

n
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
s

e
 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 i
s

 

p
re

s
c

ri
b

e
d

 b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

W
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 s

ig
n

e
d

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 

y
o

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

is
s

u
e

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

Page 123



©
 2

0
1

3
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 

E
u

ro
p

e
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 

fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 

re
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
ra

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

T
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

a
m

e
, 
lo

g
o

 a
n

d
 ‘
c
u

tt
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
’ 
a

re
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 

tr
a

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

r 
tr

a
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

 (
K

P
M

G
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l)
.

Page 124



 

 

Report of City Solicitor 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013 

Subject: Annual Governance Statement 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Council has a duty to undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control.  Following that review a committee, in our case the Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee, must approve an annual governance statement. 

 
2. The review of effectiveness of the Council’s Governance arrangements, has been informed by 

matters considered by; 

• Executive Board  

• Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (particularly assurance reports from officers 
reporting to the committee) 

• Reports and opinions from; 

• Internal Audit 

• External Audit 

• Inspectorates  

• Local Government Ombudsman 

• Appropriate enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience. 
 

3. The attached Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with proper 
practices specified by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.  

Recommendations 

4. Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached Annual 
Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, Chair of Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, Chief Executive and Director of Resources sign the 
document on behalf of the Council. 

 

 Report author:  A.Hodson 

Tel:  0113 224 3208 

Agenda Item 13

Page 125



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to 
the committee for approval.   

2 Background information 

2.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a public statement on the adequacy of the 
Council’s governance arrangements, and, as directed by the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011, must accompany the statement of accounts.  

2.2 The Regulations, specifically Regulation 4(3), requires authorities to conduct a review 
at least once a year of the effectiveness of its systems of internal control in 
accordance with ‘proper practices’1.  These proper practices have not been reviewed 
since 2007 and aspects, for example references to ‘direction of travel statements, are 
outdated.  However they remain broadly fit for purpose as a basis for preparing the 
AGS which appears at Appendix 1. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Members may recall that last year, in light of the current financial climate, and the 
drive to reduce unnecessary bureaucracy, the Head of Governance Services further 
refined and streamlined the drafting process for the AGS.   

3.2 This year, as last, the review of effectiveness has been undertaken on an ongoing 
basis including internal and external audit of our internal control processes, and 
matters that have been the subject of reports to Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee, the Executive Board and other member forums.  In addition Directors 
have reviewed the attached statement and have confirmed that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, all matters of significance have been disclosed.  

3.3 Members will note that Section 5 of the AGS, the section dealing with significant 
governance issues, continues to directly link to areas for improvement identified in 
the Best Council Business Plan 2013 - 17.   This reflects the extent to which 
governance issues have been embedded into corporate planning and performance 
management processes and provides a streamlined and sustainable structure to 
monitor identified areas for improvement.  

3.4 KPMG have confirmed, in their report to those charged with governance (also on the 
agenda for committee today), that, having reviewed the Annual Governance 
Statement, they are of the opinion that the statement complies with Delivering Good 
Governance: A Framework, published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; and is not 
misleading or inconsistent with other information that they are aware of. 

3.5 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached 
Annual Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, Chair of 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, Chief Executive and Director of 
Resources sign the document on behalf of the Council. 

 

                                            
1
 CIPFA/SOLACE - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2007 

Page 126



 

 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The Corporate Leadership Team has been consulted on content of the Annual 
Governance Statement, particularly to ensure that there are no omissions or 
misrepresentations.  

4.1.2 The Annual Governance Statement links to the objectives of the Council Business 
Plan relating to consultation– specifically that all major decisions affecting the lives 
of communities can evidence that appropriate consultation has taken place. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The Annual Governance Statement links to the objectives of the Council Business 
Plan relating to Equality – specifically that all major decisions needing to evidence 
that appropriate consideration has been given to equality issues. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The Annual Governance Statement reports that whilst progress has been made in 
agreeing policies and implementing procedures to govern the management of data 
and information, a number of incidents of data loss have occurred during the year.   

4.3.2 Following approval of the statement a review of the Council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance will be undertaken. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 The Annual Governance Statement makes links to the objectives of the Council 
Business Plan relating to the budget and financial planning and management  – 
specifically that all directorates work within their approved budget and that 
arrangements ensure the Council maintains revenue reserves.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a public statement on the adequacy of the 
Council’s governance arrangements, and as directed by the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011, must accompany the statement of accounts. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, specifically Regulation 4(3), 
requires authorities to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of 
its systems of internal control in accordance with proper practices.  The system of 
internal control, including arrangements for the management of risk, assists the 
Council in effectively exercising its functions. 

4.6.2 In addition the committee and the Executive Board have received regular reports 
which demonstrate that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing risks. 

 

Page 127



 

 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The Annual Governance Statement concludes that key systems are generally 
operating soundly and, where weaknesses have been identified arrangements, 
arrangements are in place to resolve them. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the attached 
Annual Governance Statement; and recommend that the Leader of Council, the 
Chair of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, the Chief Executive and the 
Director of Resources sign the document on behalf of the Council. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None 

Page 128



 

 

 

Annual Governance 

Statement  

2013 

Page 129



1.  SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

1.1 Corporate governance is a phrase used to describe how organisations direct 

and control what they do.  For local authorities this also includes how a 

council relates to the communities that it serves.    

1.2 At Leeds City Council we are responsible for ensuring that financial 

management is adequate and effective and that we have a sound system of 

internal control to enable us to carry out our functions effectively and 

efficiently whilst ensuring that there are arrangements for the management of 

risk.  

1.3 We must conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of our 

system of internal control and report our findings in an annual governance 

statement.  The statement must be prepared in accordance with proper 

practices and be reported to a committee of Councillors.  This document 

comprises our annual governance statement for 2013.    

1.4 The statement should be read alongside our planning, performance 

management and accountability arrangements described in; 

• The Vision for Leeds 2011-2030 

• Our City Priority Plans 2011-2015 

• Best Council Plan 2013-2017.  

  

Context 

 

1.5 Our ambition is to be at the forefront of those local authorities that are able to 
demonstrate that they have the necessary corporate governance to excel in 
the public sector. We aspire to be the best local authority in UK, in the best 
City.   

 
1.6 The changing needs of our citizens and communities, significant reductions in 

resources and central government reforms, present a challenge to all 
councils.  In addressing these challenges we must ensure that governance 
arrangements support the effective delivery of services and management of 
risk.  

 
1.7 By applying the principles in our Code of Corporate Governance (summarised 

below) and applying our local codes of conduct for Members and employees, 
we commit to devising and delivering services to the citizens of Leeds in a 
way that demonstrates accountability, transparency, effectiveness, integrity, 
and inclusivity. 

  

Page 130



 
1.7 Our Code of Corporate Governance outlines our governance principles;  
 

• Focussing on the Council’s purpose and community needs; 

• Having clear responsibilities and arrangements for accountability; 

• Good conduct and behaviour; 

• Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and risk management; 

• Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be 
effective; 

• Engaging with local people and other stakeholders. 
 
2.  THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

2.1 Our governance arrangements are designed to manage risk to a reasonable 
level. The arrangements cannot eliminate all risks but can provide reasonable 
assurance of our effectiveness.  

2.2 The governance framework has been in place for the year to the date of 
approval of this annual governance statement.  

3.  THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

3.1 Our governance framework in Leeds comprises the systems and processes, 
and culture and values that allow us to achieve our strategic objectives and 
establish the extent to which services are delivered in an appropriate and cost 
effective way.  

 3.2 These are summarised below; 

• Our vision; that is our shared priorities and intended outcomes for citizens 
and service users documented in the Vision for Leeds, Best Council 
Business Plan and other documents contained in our Budget and Policy 
Framework;  

• The committees, boards and panels we have established to ensure 
democratic engagement and accountability is central to our key and other 
important decisions; 

• Our arrangements for the oversight and scrutiny of decisions and policy 
development by councillors;  

• Delegation and sub delegation arrangements which document the roles 
and responsibilities of executive and non-executive councillors and our 
statutory (and other senior) officer functions;  

• Our risk, performance and accountability arrangements that measure the 
quality of services; ensuring they are delivered in accordance with our 
objectives and that they represent the best use of resources;  

• Our People Plan, Member Development Strategy, Values and codes of 
conduct which underpin how Members and employees work;  

• Our arrangements for consultation and engagement with the community, 
particularly focussed to help ensure inclusivity; 

• Our arrangements to safeguard our most vulnerable citizens including fully 
embracing the role of independent chairs of safeguarding boards for 
children and adults; 

• A high performing and independent Internal Audit service that is well 
regarded by our External Auditors;  

Page 131



• Independent oversight and challenge provided by our External Auditors, 
Government Inspectorates and the Local Government Ombudsman; 

• Our procedure rules and internal management processes for; 
o Financial management 
o Procurement 
o Information governance and data security 
o Health and safety 
o Decision making  
o Whistleblowing and complaints handling 
o Anti-fraud & corruption  

4.  REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 
 
4.1 We have a statutory responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review 

of the effectiveness of our governance arrangements to ensure there is a 
sound system of governance and that those arrangements help enable us to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which our functions are carried 
out.  As part of this review we consider a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness factors – with the aim being to ensure that we secure 
continuous improvement in the way we carry out our duties to the citizens of 
Leeds.   

4.2 Our review of considers decisions taken and matters considered by Full 
Council and committees appointed by Full Council, the Executive Board, 
Corporate Leadership Team (and Directors’ knowledge of the operation of 
governance arrangements within their directorates), the work of the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, internal auditors, service managers, work 
undertaken by external auditors and inspectorates and the opinion of the 
Local Government Ombudsman.  

A self-assessment of our effectiveness 
 
4.3 Our planning, performance and risk management framework has enabled the 

Executive Board and Scrutiny to Focus effectively on the Council’s 
Purpose and Community Needs.  Executive Board has reviewed the 
corporate risk register of the significant business risks facing the council and 
this Board and the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee have 
received positive assurances about the operation of the arrangements for 
identifying and managing risk. 

4.4 These processes are fundamental to ensuring democratic accountability and 
are what makes Local Government a unique and meaningful tier of UK 
governance. 

4.5 Our Executive Board and Scrutiny Boards have received regular reports on 
performance and we continue to make this information publicly available on 
our website.  Despite an unprecedented reduction in resources and 
exceptionally challenging circumstances, overall, good progress is being 
made in delivering our City Priority and Council Business Plan objectives - 
with the majority of strategic priorities assessed as on-track or with only minor 
delivery issues.  There are on-going delivery challenges in some areas, 
where, despite positive progress, there remains underlying complex issues to 
resolve, such as those relating to recent welfare changes. 

  

Page 132



 
4.6 Full Council has approved the new Best Council Plan in light of the significant 

changes to the context within which we operate and to reflect the medium-
term financial strategy.  We are now reviewing our performance management 
framework to ensure more streamlined reporting aligned with the new Plan.    

 
4.7 Over the last two years an annual State of the City Report has been produced 

and endorsed by Council which provides a comprehensive analysis of 
progress against our Best City Priorities.   The Leeds Observatory 
complements this by providing more detailed data and intelligence about 
particular topics, themes and issues.    

4.8 Internally we have also critically assessed and challenged our assumptions 
and accepted ways of working.   Our review of corporate services, ‘the 
Enabling Corporate Centre’, has resulted in a realignment of services to 
ensure clearer roles and lines of accountability and provides a sound basis 
from which corporate and support functions can add value to services and 
city-wide outcomes.    A clear ‘hub and spoke model has evolved, with a mix 
of corporate and locally based support functions. 

4.9 The review has also identified the need for clearer leadership on factors 
affecting citizens and communities – particularly around welfare, benefits and 
poverty.  

4.10 We have also looked outwardly, particularly at the arrangements for our Local 
Strategic Partnership, the Leeds Initiative.  These are now driven by our 
Executive Members and Corporate Leadership Team; rather than by a 
discreet team at arm’s length from the Council.  These arrangements have 
given impetus to our partnership activities and to the propositions from the 
Commission on the Future of Local Government.  

4.11 Effective financial planning and management – The 2012/13 budget 
included some difficult and challenging decisions and whilst not all planned 
savings have been achieved other savings have been identified and additional 
income secured, resulting in the final outturn being an underspend of £6.7m.  
The Section 151 Officer has ensured that effective budget monitoring and 
reporting arrangements, involving the Executive Board and Scrutiny have 
been put in place.  Budget holders have also been made more clearly 
accountable for keeping expenditure within budget.   

 
4.12 Given the scale of the financial challenges, the Corporate Governance and 

Audit Committee reviewed the arrangements in September 2013, noting that 
there were appropriate systems and procedures in place to ensure sound 
financial planning and management and that the authority’s financial 
management arrangements conforms with the governance requirements of 
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010). In addition the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee undertook assessments of both the Treasury Management 
(November 2012 and Capital Programme approval arrangements (April 2013)  

  

Page 133



 
4.13 Effective arrangements for accountability - Our governance arrangements 

continue to evolve.  The delegation scheme for Council and Executive 
responsibilities has been regularly reviewed and updated to reflect various 
legislative and organisational changes.  Sub delegation arrangements are in 
place and provide a clear description of decision-making responsibilities below 
director level.   

4.14 The transfer of functions relating to Public Health has resulted in a revised 
scheme of delegation to the Director of Public Health and a new sub 
delegation scheme from the director.  A new function within these 
arrangements relates to clinical governance.  Our Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee is to consider a report from the Director of Public in 
November 2013 concerning the Council’s clinical governance arrangements. 

 
4.15 We use 'Health Act Flexibilities' to commission care using a budget pooled 

between ourselves and the NHS.  This has served us well for the past 12 
years.  However we have recognised that, in the rapidly changing 
organisational landscape for NHS organisations and the significantly harsher 
financial climate, the agreements that had served well in the past were 
unlikely to do so in the future.   

 
4.16 We have reviewed and revised our arrangements and introduced agreements 

that have the benefit of a contemporary overview of current (rather than 
historic) national policy and guidance, providing a clear rationale and 
governance for our partnerships.   Our new Health and Wellbeing Board is an 
embodiment of this approach; providing an open and transparent forum 
through which joint work on improving health and wellbeing is progressed. 

 
4.17 We have similarly reviewed our housing management arrangements to ensure 

the most effective management arrangements are in place to deliver a high 
quality, efficient service that offers value for money to tenants particularly 
given the current economic and social pressures facing public services.  The 
review concluded that the previous Arms-Length Management Organisational 
(ALMO) model was no longer fit for purpose and that all services undertaken 
be integrated within direct council management with the significant 
improvements made in tenant engagement being retained and built upon.    

 
4.18 The City Deal, agreed with Government in 2012, secured devolution of 

powers from Whitehall and investment to support economic growth.  As part of 
that agreement, West Yorkshire authorities undertook to ensure that the most 
effective governance arrangements be in place for the new powers and 
investment funds.  The form of those governance arrangements, a Combined 
Authority, has evolved since - with a target for implementation being Spring 
2014.  

  

Page 134



 
4.19 We reported in our 2012 Statement that a business continuity review had 

taken place of all services.  During 2013, this work has translated into the 
phased development of business continuity plans for critical services.  In 
building a resilient organisation, business continuity is now being promoted 
with interdependent partner organisations and our supply chains through 
commissioning organisations such as Clinical Commissioning Groups and 
procurement.  With the support of our Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee good progress has been made in engaging with critical services 
and completing business continuity plans.   

 
4.20 The Information Commissioner has served a monetary penalty notice on the 

council in respect of documents containing sensitive personal information 
being sent to the wrong recipient from within the Children’s Services 
Directorate, and also issued the Chief Executive with an Undertaking as a 
result of a breach of security to an externally hosted website. Both incidents 
were reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office by the authority 
voluntarily. 

 
4.21 As a result of both incidents we have reviewed practice and procedures and 

implemented improvements to militate against a similar incident occurring 
again. Measures to improve the mailing procedures immediately adopted in 
Children’s Services are being implemented across the council. As part of the 
Undertaking we have reviewed of existing contract and commissioning 
arrangements and extended information governance requirements as part of 
the council’s new Procurement Framework. This has provided the Information 
Commissioner’s Office with the required assurance that the Undertaking 
requirements have been appropriately implemented and, they are satisfied 
that this will support compliance to the Data Protection Act 1998. 

 
4.22 We are continuing to strengthen our information governance arrangements 

and capabilities. We have implemented effective information governance 
policies and standards that provide our Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee with the necessary assurance about the security of our information 
assets and data handling procedures. Our Senior Information Risk Owner, 
who is ultimately accountable for the assurance of information security at the 
council, is now fully trained in the role, and our Corporate Information 
Governance Team continues to monitor risks to information assets and 
manage the overall council approach to information governance.  

 
4.23 Effective Conduct Arrangements - Our Conduct arrangements for Members 

have been substantially reviewed and amended due to changes in statutory 
requirements.  The changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct are compliant 
with the new duties placed on the authority by the Localism Act 2011; and 
changes to our complaint handling arrangements now place greater emphasis 
on a speedy informal resolution of concerns, rather than on lengthy, more 
protracted arrangements dictated by the previous statutory regime.  

4.24 Registers of Interest for Elected Members and Employees have been 
maintained and arrangements are in place for the declaration of appropriate 
interests when decisions are taken. We have also appointed an Independent 
Person in accordance with our statutory responsibilities.  

  

Page 135



4.25 The Standards and Conduct Committee has operated in accordance the 
terms of reference approved by full Council and reported on its activities by 
way of an annual report in May 2013.  No Leeds City Councillor, nor any 
Parish or Town Councillor (in the Leeds area), has been found to have failed 
to comply with the Code of Conduct adopted. 

4.26 Following input from our Standards and Conduct Committee and Trade Union 
colleagues our Code of Conduct for employees was revised in March 2013.  
The Code now aligns with the Members’ Code of Conduct providing more 
coherence between the two frameworks.  

4.27 Effective decision making arrangements -  Our decision-making 
arrangements are one of our significant governance controls, linking to all the 
governance principles that are set out in our Code of Corporate Governance.  

4.28 In September 2012 the Secretary State for Communities and Local 
Government laid new Regulations with respect to the treatment of executive 
decisions and requirements relating to Executive Board meetings.  The 
authority has operated in full compliance with the legislative requirements and 
assurances have been received by the Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee in respect of;- planning and licensing functions; executive decision 
making and access to information.   The committee, along with the Scrutiny 
Board (Resources and Council Services), has also progressed a review of 
Contracts Procedure Rules – impending changes – due for implementation in 
the autumn, will bring about improvements in contract management and 
clearer pathways for accountability, particularly around Member oversight of 
key procurement decisions. 

4.29 In addition the Scrutiny Officer has reported to full council in relation to the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements.  

 
4.30 Effectively developing skills and capacity -  The Chief Human Resources 

Officer – working closely with the Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council 
Services), has established a People Plan for the Organisation.  This has been 
an important step in ensuring that our workforce has the skills, capability and 
capacity to meet the challenges facing the City.   The arrangements for 
monitoring progress against targets in the People Plan were reported to 
Corporate Governance and Audit committee in June 2012.  Action plans are in 
place to address the themes emerging from the engagement surveys. 

 
4.31 Of particular significance has been progress on Appraisals - with 92% of staff 

receiving an appraisal in 2012.   Whilst the full year appraisal figures have 
been encouraging, the percentage of staff receiving a mid-year review 
dropped.  However, following a concerted effort, the completion of full year 
appraisals in 2013 has risen to 98%. 

 
4.32 As community leaders, it is vital that our Councillors are supported to be as 

effective as possibly.  A variety of learning programmes have been in place 
which have been continually monitored and evaluated by Councillors to 
ensure that where needed new initiatives have been implemented quickly and 
effectively. 

 
  

Page 136



4.33 Effective Engagement - Our Best Council Business Plan identified 
improvement as being required in both consultation and equality 
considerations in the decisions that we take.  Our end of year report (reported 
to Executive Board) for the percentage of important decisions that provide 
clear evidence of consultation is 85% and due regard for equality is 87%.  
Issues remain with the quality and consistency of the evidence provided to 
decision makers at the time of making the decision.   

4.34 In addition the Annual Equality Report has also been produced and reviewed 
as part of the Q4 process and whilst we can show activity is happening across 
all our equality improvement priorities there is a lack of supporting data and 
analysis making it difficult to demonstrate impact and improvement in many 
areas.  This is an area that continues to be challenged in the courts.   

4.35 There has been increased effort in using digital channels to reach audiences 
with an improved website and a greater use of social media by a growing 
number of colleagues. Work is on-going to ensure that there are sufficient 
policy and technological safeguards to protect both employees and the 
council’s reputation as social media use continues to grow 

4.36 We also recognise the importance of engagement with staff and have seen a 
sustained improvements in the extent to which we provide what staff need to 
feel engaged.  Our most precious resource remains the people we employ; 
set against the most severe and challenging economic circumstances our 
People Plan sets out our priorities for increasing the flexibility of our workforce 
to ensuring colleagues are enabled to meeting the council’s objectives.  It is 
vital that we understand the ‘temperature’ of our workforce and are sensitive 
to the views expressed.  Our recent surveys of colleagues has shown an 
increase in staff completing the survey from 25% to 30% and good progress in 
meeting our people plan target for engagement with 74.85% of colleagues 
feeling engaged (set against our 75% engagement target). 

Internal Audit Opinion 

 4.37 The annual report, from the Head of Internal Audit, objectively examined, 
evaluated and reported on the control environment within the council and 
provided an opinion about the adequacy of the systems and processes in 
place.  Of significance for this statement the Head of Internal Audit concluded 
that the internal control environment, including the key financial systems, is 
well established and continues to generally operate well in practice.   

An Independent opinion of effectiveness 
 
4.38 In June 2013 KPMG wrote to the Deputy Chief Executive to confirm that all 

planning and interim audit work had been completed and that that work had 

not identified any significant issues that were necessary to report to the 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.   

  

Page 137



4.39 The Committee were advised of KPMG’s opinion in July 2013.   

“full reliance can be placed on Internal Audit’s work1 on the key financial 

systems and that Internal Audit are compliant with the Code of Practice for 

Internal Audit in Local Government.” 

4.40 In our external auditor’s annual report to those charged with governance, 
KPMG reported that this Annual Governance Statement complies with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and that it is not misleading or inconsistent with 
other information they are aware of from their audit of the financial statements. 

4.41 KPMG has also concluded that our we have  “proper arrangements in place 
for securing financial resilience” and, we anticipate will provide an unqualified 
opinion on our accounts. 

5.  SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 From the planning and control environment work carried out by KPMG in their 
interim audit no significant issues were identified.  This independent opinion 
from our External Auditors, provides considerable assurance in respect of the 
Council’s arrangements.  The External Auditor’s recent Interim Audit assessed 
our organisational control environment as effective overall, with no significant 
issues or areas for improvement. 

5.2 The wider context for local government remains challenging with the toughest 

financial settlement for decades; the continuing economic downturn; major 

policy reforms in welfare, education and health; a growing city and increasing 

demands for services.  This is a challenge that requires a clear focus on what 

we do as well a change in the culture of how we work. The Commission on 

the Future of Local Government set out a new leadership style of civic 

enterprise. This is where the council becomes more enterprising, businesses 

and partners become more civic, and citizens become more actively engaged 

in the work of the city. The council will become smaller in size but bigger in 

influence, with the democratic mandate of members extended.  

5.3 Despite this challenging environment we have outcome-focused plans which 

set out our ambitions that Leeds will become the best city in the UK by 2030.  

The Best Council Plan sets out our outcomes that will drive our priorities over 

the next four years:  

• Improve the quality of life for our residents, particularly for those who are 
vulnerable or in poverty; 

• Make it easier for people to do business with us; and 

• Achieve the savings and efficiencies required to continue to deliver 
frontline services.  

  

                                                           

1
 The Council's Head of Internal Audit function reports to the Corporate Governance & Audit 
Committee, every other meeting on significant matters arising in respect of the control environment. 

Page 138



5.4 These will be delivered through six best council objectives for the period 2013-

17 which give more detail on how we will achieve our outcomes.   

• Ensuring high quality public services 

• Dealing effectively with the city’s waste 

• Building a child friendly city 

• Delivery of Better Lives programme 

• Promoting sustainable and inclusive economic growth 

• Becoming an efficient and enterprising council 
 
5.5 Our values will continue to underpin how we work; Working as a Team for 

Leeds; being Open, Honest and Trusted; Working with communities; Treating 
people fairly & Spending money wisely. 

 
5.6 Action plans have been drawn up to address recommendations arising from 

external and internal audit reports, findings from inspectorates and issues 
identified and reported by the Local Government Ombudsman.  

 
  

Page 139



6. ASSURANCE SUMMARY 
 
6.1 Good governance is about running things properly.  It is the means by which 

the Council shows it is taking decisions for the good of the people of the area, 

in a fair, equitable and open way.  It also requires standards of behaviour that 

support good decision making - collective and individual integrity, openness 

and honesty.  It is the foundation for the delivery of good quality services that 

meet all local people's needs.  It is fundamental to showing public money is 

well spent.  Without good governance councils will struggle to improve 

services. 

6.2 From the review, assessment and on-going monitoring work undertaken and 

supported by the ongoing work undertaken by Internal Audit, we have reached 

the opinion that, overall, key systems are operating soundly and that there are 

no fundamental control weaknesses.   

6.3 We can confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, and there having 

been appropriate enquiries made, that this statement provides an accurate 

and fair view. 

Signed Signed 

Date Date 

Councillor Keith Wakefield 
Leader of the Council 

Tom Riordan 
Chief Executive 

Signed Signed 

Date Date 

Councillor Ghulum Hussain 
Chair, Corporate Governance 
and Audit Committee 

Catherine Witham 
City Solicitor & Monitoring Officer  

 

Page 140



 

 

Report of City Solicitor 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 20th September 2013 

Subject: Work Programme 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 

1     Purpose of this report 

1.1 The Purpose of this report is to notify Members of the Committee of the draft work 
programme. The draft  work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

2 Background information 

2.1 The work programme provides information about the future items for the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee agenda, when items will be presented and which 
officer will be responsible for the item.  

3 Main issues 

3.1 Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 
programme 

3.2 The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report consults seeks Members views on the content of the work programme of 
the Committee, so that it might meet the responsibilities set out in the committee’s 
terms of reference. 

 

 Report author:  P Garnett 

Tel:  (0113) 395 1632 

Agenda Item 14

Page 141



 

 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 There are no equality and diversity or cohesion and integration issues arising from 
this report. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The work programme provides a balanced number of reports and assurances upon 
which the committee can assess the adequacy of the council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 It is in the best interests of the Council to have sound control arrangements in place 
to ensure effective use of resources, these should be regularly reviewed and 
monitored as such the work programme directly contributes to this.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report is not an executive function and is not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 By the Committee being assured that effective controls are in place throughout the 
Council the work programme promotes the management of risk at the Council. 

4.6.2 The work programme adopts a risk based approach to the significant governance 
arrangements of the Council. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The work programme of the Committee should be reviewed regularly and be updated 
appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to consider and approve the work programme set out at 
appendix 1. 

 

Page 142



Appendix 1 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE                         

WORK PROGRAMME   
 
 

8th November 2013 

Calderdale Shared 
Service Agreement  

To receive a report updating the Committee on the latest position with 
regards to the establishment of a Social Care System in partnership 
with Calderdale MBC 

Steve Hume 
Chief Officer (Resources and 
Strategy) 
 

Business Continuity 
Planning 

provide an update on the progress made in completing the 
outstanding Business Continuity Plans 
 
 

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 
 

Clinical Governance 
Assurance  

To receive a report of the Director of Public Health to highlighting the 
risk to the service and the plans to mitigate against these. 
 

Dr Ian Cameron 

Transfer of Assets To receive a report looking at the wider issues relating to transfer  Chief Officer (Assets Review) 
Paul Broughton 
 

January 21th 2014 

KPMG – Annual Audit 
Letter – including opinion 
 

To receive a report certifying grants and returns and to consider the 
Audit Fee letter. 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

KPMG – Certification of 
Grant Claims and Returns 

To receive a report certifying grants and returns and to consider the 
Audit Fee letter. 
 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

KPMG – Approval of 
External Audit Plan 

To receive a report requesting approval of the external audit plan Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

P
age 143



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 
 

Internal Audit Quarterly 
Report  
 
 

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 
 

Treasury Management 
Annual Report  
 
 

To receive the annually Treasury Management Report providing 
assurance on the processes used by the department 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Development)  
Maureen Taylor 

9th April 2014 

Internal Audit Plan To receive a report informing the Committee of the Internal Audit Plan 
for 2013/14  

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Internal Audit Quarterly 
Report  

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 
 

Information Security 
Annual Report 

To receive a report on the Council’s Information Security 
arrangements. 

Chief Officer (Business 
Transformation) 
Lee Hemsworth 
 

Annual Business 
Continuity Report 

To receive the annual report reviewing the Councils Business 
Continuity planning. 

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 
 

Annual Report of the 
Committee 

To receive the Annual report of the Committee reviewing the work 
completed over the last year 

Head of Governance Services 
Andy Hodson 
 

Unscheduled Items  

   

P
age 144


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 10th July 2013
	7 Decision Making Framework; Annual Assurance Report
	8 Annual Assurance Report on Risk & Performance Management
	9 Annual Financial Management Report (Incorporating Capital)
	Appendix A Fin planning and mgt arrangements
	Appendix B Fin planning and mgt arrangements

	10 Internal Audit Report
	Final Quarterly Report July to August 2013

	11 Report on the Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Review Letter 2012/13
	Appendix 1 LGO annual letter for 2011-12
	Appendix 2 Complaints Q4 and 2012-13 year end

	12 Audited Statement of Accounts and the Value for Money Assessment 2012/13
	Leeds CC Draft ISA260 FINAL

	13 Annual Governance Statement
	130905 draft AGS v0.12

	14 Work Programme
	Live Work Programe


